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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995: Forward-
looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q including, without limitation, statements relating to our future
revenues and cash flows, plans, strategies, objectives, expectations and intentions, are made pursuant to the safe harbor
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Investors are cautioned that such forward-looking
statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which cannot be predicted with accuracy, and some of
which might not be anticipated, including, without limitation, the following: (i) our plans, strategies, objectives, expectations
and intentions are subject to change at any time at our discretion; (ii) the levels of sales of our apparel, footwear and related
products, both to our wholesa le customers and in our retail stores, and the levels of sales of our licensees at wholesale and
retail, and the extent of discounts and promotional pricing in which we and our licensees and other business partners are
required to engage, all of which can be affected by weather conditions, changes in the economy, fuel prices, reductions in travel,
fashion trends, consolidations, repositionings and bankruptcies in the retail industries, repositioning of brands by our licensors
and other factors; (iii) our plans and results of operations will be affected by our ability to manage our growth and inventory,
including our ability to continue to realize revenue growth from developing and growing Calvin Klein; (iv) our operations and
results could be affected by quota restrictions and the imposition of safeguard controls (which, among other things, could limit
our ability to produce products in cost-effective countries that have the labor and technical expertise needed), the availability
and cost of raw materials (p articularly petroleum-based synthetic fabrics, which are currently in high demand), our ability to
adjust timely to changes in trade regulations and the migration and development of manufacturers (which can affect where our
products can best be produced), and civil conflict, war or terrorist acts, the threat of any of the foregoing, or political and labor
instability in the United States or any of the countries where our products are or are planned to be produced; (v) disease
epidemics and health related concerns, which could result in closed factories, reduced workforces, scarcity of raw materials and
scrutiny or embargoing of goods produced in infected areas; (vi) acquisitions and issues arising with acquisitions and proposed
transactions, including without limitation, the ability to integrate an acquired entity into us with no substantial adverse affect on
the acquired entity’s or our existing operations, employee relationships, vendor relationships, customer relationships or
financial performance; ( vii) the failure of our licensees to market successfully licensed products or to preserve the value of our
brands, or their misuse of our brands; and (viii) other risks and uncertainties indicated from time to time in our filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

We do not undertake any obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statement, including, without limitation, any
estimate regarding revenues or cash flows, whether as a result of the receipt of new information, future events or otherwise.



PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We have reviewed the condensed consolidated balance sheets of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation as of May 6, 2007 and April 30,
2006 and the related condensed consolidated income statements and statements of cash flows for the thirteen week periods ended
May 6, 2007 and April 30, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A
review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures to financial data, and making
inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the objective of which is the
expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the condensed consolidated interim
financial statements referred to above for them to be in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated balance sheet of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation as of February 4, 2007, and the related consolidated income
statement, statement of changes in stockholders’ equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein)
and in our report dated March 26, 2007, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our
opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet as of February 4, 2007, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived.

 /s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
June 14, 2007
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Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
 May 6, February 4, April 30,
          2007               2007              2006       
 UNAUDITED AUDITED UNAUDITED
ASSETS    
Current Assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents $   299,732 $   366,099 $   305,154 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of    
  $2,937, $2,553 and $3,878 177,249 92,317 142,618 
Inventories 281,427 284,894 233,471 
Prepaid expenses 41,804 39,553 14,639 
Other, including deferred taxes of $1,969, $1,969 and $23,435          2,211          2,140        23,691 

Total Current Assets 802,423 785,003 719,573 
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 170,767 172,040 154,966 
Goodwill 277,392 271,111 206,736 
Tradenames 621,135 621,135 612,966 
Perpetual License Rights 86,000 86,000 86,000 
Customer Relationships 34,718 35,310 -    
Other Intangible Assets 345 360 405 
Other Assets        29,424        27,526        25,214 

Total Assets $2,022,204 $1,998,485 $1,805,860 
    
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
Current Liabilities:    

Accounts payable $     75,900 $     81,874 $     47,943 
Accrued expenses 128,568 173,583 135,958 
Deferred revenue        25,415        27,709        21,091 

Total Current Liabilities 229,883 283,166 204,992 
Long-Term Debt 399,541 399,538 399,528 
Other Liabilities, including deferred taxes of $220,433, $256,322    
  and $253,738 397,583 373,624 374,885 

    
Series B convertible preferred stock, par value $100 per share; 6,116    
  shares authorized, issued and outstanding as of April 30, 2006 -     -     161,926 

    
Stockholders’ Equity:    

Preferred stock, par value $100 per share; 150,000 total shares    
authorized, including Series B convertible (125,000 shares    
designated as Series A; 25,000; 25,000 and 18,884 shares    
undesignated); no Series A or undesignated shares issued -     -     -     

Common stock, par value $1 per share; 240,000,000 shares    
authorized; shares issued and outstanding 56,099,631;    
55,850,012 and 43,634,731 56,100 55,850 43,635 

Additional capital 538,385 530,002 357,688 
Retained earnings 432,469 388,555 297,174 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (31,523) (32,200) (33,968)
Less: 4,207; 1,000 and 0 shares of common stock held in treasury,    

at cost            (234)              (50)              -     
Total Stockholders’ Equity      995,197      942,157      664,529 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $2,022,204 $1,998,485 $1,805,860 

See accompanying notes.
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Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
Condensed Consolidated Income Statements
Unaudited
(In thousands, except per share data)

     Thirteen Weeks Ended    
 May 6, April 30,
 2007 2006
   
Net sales $520,452 $454,188 
Royalty revenues 51,606 39,635 
Advertising and other revenues    19,848     12,615 
Total revenues 591,906 506,438 
   
Cost of goods sold   299,333   263,714 
   
Gross profit 292,573 242,724 
   
Selling, general and administrative expenses 207,029 191,029 
   
Gain on sale of investments, net       3,335     31,368 
   
Income before interest and taxes 88,879 83,063 
   
Interest expense 8,480 8,538 
Interest income       4,006       2,970 
   
Income before taxes 84,405 77,495 
   
Income tax expense     31,399     28,750 
   
Net income 53,006 48,745 
   
Preferred stock dividends on convertible stock         -             3,230 
   
   
Net income available to common stockholders $  53,006 $  45,515 
   
Basic net income per common share $      0.95 $      1.05 
   
Diluted net income per common share $      0.92 $      0.87 
   
   
Dividends declared per common share $    0.075 $    0.075 

See accompanying notes.
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Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Unaudited
(In thousands)
     Thirteen Weeks Ended    
 May 6, April 30,
 2007 2006
   
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:   

Net income $  53,006 $  48,745 
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash (used) provided by operating activities:   

Depreciation 9,185 8,169 
Amortization 1,740 1,123 
Stock-based compensation 2,528 1,608 
Deferred taxes 415 24,009 
Impairment of long-lived assets 1,279 549 
Gain on sale of investments, net (3,335) (31,368)

   
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   

Accounts receivable (84,932) (39,818)
Inventories 3,467 24,248 
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and deferred revenue (41,513) (25,667)
Prepaid expenses (2,251) 3,483 
Other, net       4,718       2,501 

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities    (55,693)     17,582 
   
   
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:   

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (9,168) (5,916)
Acquisition of Superba 800 -    
Contingent purchase price payments to Mr. Calvin Klein (7,081)  (6,737)
Proceeds from sale of investments      3,335     32,136 

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities   (12,114)     19,483 
   
   
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:   

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 3,606 5,741 
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options 2,226 1,922 
Acquisition of treasury shares (184) -     
Cash dividends on common stock (4,208) (3,701)
Cash dividends on convertible preferred stock           -          (3,230)

Net cash provided by financing activities       1,440          732 
   
(Decrease) Increase in cash (66,367) 37,797 
   
Cash at beginning of period   366,099   267,357 
   
Cash at end of period $299,732 $305,154 
   
See accompanying notes.
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PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollar and share amounts in thousands, except per share data)

1.  GENERAL

The Company’s fiscal years are based on the 52-53 week period ending on the Sunday closest to February 1 and are designated by
the calendar year in which the fiscal year commences.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not contain all disclosures
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for complete financial statements. Reference should be
made to the audited consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto, included in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended February 4, 2007.

The preparation of interim financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ materially from the estimates.

The results of operations for the thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007 and April 30, 2006 are not necessarily indicative of those for a
full fiscal year due, in part, to seasonal factors. The data contained in these financial statements are unaudited and are subject to
year-end adjustments. However, in the opinion of management, all known adjustments (which consist only of normal recurring
accruals) have been made to present fairly the consolidated operating results for the unaudited periods.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the condensed consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto for the prior year
periods to present that information on a basis consistent with the current year.

References to the brand names Calvin Klein Collection, ck Calvin Klein, Calvin Klein, Van Heusen, IZOD, Eagle, Bass, G.H. Bass
Earth, Geoffrey Beene, ARROW, BCBG Max Azria, BCBG Attitude, CHAPS, Sean John, Donald J. Trump Signature Collection,
JOE Joseph Abboud, Kenneth Cole New York, Kenneth Cole Reaction, unlisted, A Kenneth Cole Production, MICHAEL Michael
Kors, DKNY, Tommy Hilfiger, Nautica, Perry Ellis Portfolio, Ike Behar, Jones New York and to other brand names are to registered
trademarks owned by the Company or licensed to the Company by third parties and are identified by italicizing the brand name.

2.  INVENTORIES

Inventories related to the Company’s wholesale operations, comprised principally of finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost
or market. Inventories related to the Company’s retail operations, comprised entirely of finished goods, are stated at the lower of
average cost or market using the retail inventory method. Under the retail inventory method, the valuation of inventories at cost is
calculated by applying a cost-to-retail ratio to the retail value of inventories. Permanent and point of sale markdowns, when
recorded, reduce both the retail and cost components of inventory on hand so as to maintain the already established cost-to-retail
relationship. Cost for certain apparel and accessory inventories is determined using the last-in, first-out method (LIFO). Cost for all
other inventories is determined using the first-in, first-out method (FIFO). At May 6, 2007, February 4, 2007 and April 30, 2006,
no LIFO reserves were recorded because LIFO cost approximated FIFO cost.

3.  ACQUISITION OF SUPERBA

On January 2, 2007, the Company completed its acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Superba, Inc., a privately-held
manufacturer and distributor of neckwear in the United States and Canada. Prior to the acquisition, Superba had been licensing the
ARROW trademark from the Company in the United States for use on and in connection with neckwear. The Company paid
$113,262, including transaction expenses, in the fourth quarter of 2006 and incurred additional transaction expenses of $200 in the
first quarter of 2007 in connection with the acquisition. The amount paid by the Company at closing for the acquisition is subject to
adjustment based on the difference, if any, between the average working capital and closing date working capital of the acquired
business. During the first quarter of 2007, the Company received a payment of $1,000 based on a preliminary estimate of such
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difference. The parties are in the process of finalizing the calculation of the value of the closing date working capital. The Company
is also required to pay contingent purchase price payments to Superba if the earnings of the acquired business exceed certain targets
in 2007, 2008 and 2009. The maximum payout that Superba can receive is $15,000, $25,000 and $30,000 with respect to earnings
in 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively. Any such payments would be payable 90 days after the applicable year end and would be
recorded as additions to goodwill. No such payments were recorded for the thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007.

4.  GOODWILL

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the period ended May 6, 2007, by segment, were as follows:

  Wholesale   
 Wholesale Sportswear   
 Dress and Related Calvin Klein  
 Furnishings Products Licensing Total
     
Balance as of February 4, 2007 $50,289  $82,133 $138,689 $271,111 
Contingent purchase price payments to Mr. Calvin Klein        -              -     7,081 7,081 
Adjustments to Superba purchase price allocation      (800)         -               -            (800)
Balance as of May 6, 2007 $49,489  $82,133 $145,770 $277,392 

Contingent purchase price payments to Mr. Calvin Klein relate to the Company’s acquisition in 2003 of all of the issued and
outstanding stock of Calvin Klein, Inc. and certain affiliated companies. Such payments are based on 1.15% of total worldwide net
sales of products bearing any of the Calvin Klein brands for 15 years from the date of purchase.

5.  RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all United States employees meeting
certain age and service requirements. For those vested (after five years of service), the plans provide monthly benefits upon
retirement based on career compensation and years of credited service.

The Company also has an unfunded non-qualified supplemental defined benefit pension plan which provides benefits for
compensation in excess of Internal Revenue Service earnings limits and requires lump sum payments to vested employees upon
employment termination or retirement, or shortly thereafter.

In addition to the defined benefit pension plans described above, the Company has a capital accumulation program (“CAP Plan”)
which is an unfunded non-qualified supplemental defined benefit plan covering 23 current and retired executives. Under the
individual participants’ CAP Plan agreements, the participants will receive a predetermined amount during the 10 years following
the attainment of age 65, provided that prior to the termination of employment with the Company, the participant has been in the
CAP Plan for at least 10 years and has attained age 55.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries also provide certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits. Retirees
contribute to the cost of this plan, which is unfunded. During 2002, the postretirement plan was amended to eliminate benefits for
active participants who, as of January 1, 2003, had not attained age 55 and 10 years of service.
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Net benefit cost was recognized as follows:
 Pension Plans CAP Plan Postretirement Plan
 Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirteen Weeks Ended
 5/6/07 4/30/06 5/6/07 4/30/06 5/6/07 4/30/06
       
Service cost, including plan       
  expenses $ 1,826  $ 1,551 $  46 $  45 $  -    $    -   
Interest cost 3,589  3,361 251 242 348 403 
Amortization of net loss 1,171  1,838 -    -    95 92 
Expected return on plan assets (4,342) (3,866) -    -    -    -    
Amortization of prior service cost 30       104 -    -    (204)  (111)
Settlement loss -     2,247 -    -    -    -    
Special termination benefits         -           723     -        -        -       242 
Total $ 2,274  $ 5,958 $297 $287 $239 $ 626 

The settlement loss related to the pension plans for the thirteen weeks ended April 30, 2006 resulted from the departure of Mark
Weber, the Company’s former Chief Executive Officer.

The special termination benefits related to the pension plans for the thirteen weeks ended April 30, 2006 resulted from the closure
of the Company’s manufacturing facility located in Ozark, Alabama.

6.  INCOME TAXES

In the first quarter of 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). As a result of
the implementation of FIN 48, the Company increased its liability for unrecognized tax benefits by $4,884, inclusive of interest and
penalties, which was accounted for as a reduction to the Company’s first quarter of 2007 beginning balance of retained earnings. In
addition, the Company also reclassified $48,955 from taxes payable and deferred tax liabilities to a liability for unrecognized tax
benefits. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of the beginning of 2007 was $53,839.

Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Company elected to classify any interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the
Company’s income tax provision. Interest and penalties recognized in the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Income Statement
for the thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007 were immaterial. Interest and penalties accrued in the Company’s Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of May 6, 2007 totaled $2,609.

During the quarter ended May 6, 2007, the Company’s liability for unrecognized tax benefits increased by $4,036 to $57,875. If
such amount was recognized, $56,910 would reduce the effective tax rate and $965 would reduce goodwill.

The Company files income tax returns in the United States and in various foreign, state and local jurisdictions. With few
exceptions, either examinations have been completed by tax authorities or the statute of limitations has expired for United States
Federal, foreign, state and local income tax returns filed by the Company for years through 2002.

While it is expected that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will increase in the next 12 months, the Company does not expect
this change to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations or financial position.

7.  SERIES B CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

In connection with the Company’s acquisition of Calvin Klein in 2003, the Company issued $250,000 of Series B convertible
preferred stock. The Series B convertible preferred stock had a conversion price of $14.00 per share and a dividend rate of 8% per
annum, payable quarterly in cash. In certain quarters in 2003, the Company elected not to pay a cash dividend and the Series B
convertible preferred stock was treated as if an in-kind dividend was paid. As such, by the end of 2003, the liquidation preference
of the originally issued Series B convertible preferred stock increased to $264,746.

7



During the second quarter of 2005, the holders of the Series B convertible preferred stock converted an aggregate of $102,820 of
the Series B convertible preferred stock into 7,344 shares of the Company’s common stock. During the second quarter of 2006, the
holders of the Series B convertible preferred stock converted all of the remaining $161,926 of Series B convertible preferred stock
into 11,566 shares of common stock.

8.  COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income was as follows:

 Thirteen Weeks Ended
 5/6/07 4/30/06
   
Net income $53,006 $48,745 
Pension and postretirement plans, net of tax expense of $415 and $0 677 -    
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax expense of $0 and $17         -              27 
Comprehensive income $53,683 $48,772 

9.  STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 13, 2006, the Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2006
Plan”) was approved. The 2006 Plan replaced the Company’s existing 1997, 2000 and 2003 Stock Option Plans. The 1997, 2000
and 2003 Stock Option Plans terminated on the date of such approval, other than with respect to outstanding options under those
plans, which will continue to be governed by the respective plan under which they were granted. Shares issued as a result of stock
option exercises are primarily funded with the issuance of new shares of the Company’s common stock.

2006 Stock Incentive Plan
Under the 2006 Plan, the Company may grant the following types of incentive awards: (i) non-qualified stock options (“NQs”); (ii)
incentive stock options (“ISOs”); (iii) stock appreciation rights; (iv) restricted stock; (v) restricted stock units (“RSUs”); (vi)
performance shares; and (vii) other stock-based awards. Each award granted under the 2006 Plan is evidenced by an award
agreement that specifies, as applicable, the exercise price, the term of the award, the periods of restriction, the number of shares to
which the award pertains, applicable performance period(s) and performance measure(s), and such other terms and conditions as
the plan committee determines.
 
Through May 6, 2007, the Company has granted only service-based NQs and RSUs along with performance shares under the 2006
Plan. The per share exercise price of options granted under the 2006 Plan cannot be less than the market price of the common stock
on the date of grant (the date prior to the date of grant for awards granted prior to September 21, 2006) and the maximum duration
of options granted under the 2006 Plan is ten years. The award agreements for options and RSUs granted under the 2006 Plan
generally provide for accelerated vesting upon the participant’s retirement (as defined in the 2006 Plan).

1997, 2000 and 2003 Stock Option Plans
Under its 1997, 2000 and 2003 Stock Option Plans, the Company currently has service-based NQs and ISOs outstanding. Options
were granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the common stock on the date immediately preceding the date of
grant. NQs and ISOs granted have a ten-year duration. Options are generally cumulatively exercisable in either three substantially
equal installments commencing three years after the date of grant or in four substantially equal installments commencing one year
after the date of grant. The options provide for accelerated vesting upon the optionee’s retirement (as defined in the 1997, 2000 and
2003 Stock Option Plans).

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model. The estimated
fair value of the options, net of estimated forfeitures, is amortized to expense on a straight-line basis over the options’ vesting
period.
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The following summarizes the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options granted during the thirteen weeks ended
May 6, 2007 and April 30, 2006, respectively:

 Thirteen Weeks Ended
 5/6/07 4/30/06
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 4.67% 4.69%
Weighted average expected option life 6.3 Years 6.1 Years
Weighted average expected volatility 33.3% 33.2%
Expected annual dividends per share $0.15 $0.15
Weighted average estimated fair value per share of options granted $24.02 $15.59

The Company receives a tax deduction for certain stock-based compensation transactions. For the thirteen weeks ended May 6,
2007 and April 30, 2006, such tax deductions related only to the exercise of certain stock options. The actual income tax benefit
realized from stock option exercises for the thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007 and April 30, 2006 was $2,521 and $4,677,
respectively. Of those amounts, $2,226 and $1,922, respectively, were excess tax benefits from stock option exercises. Excess tax
benefits arise when the actual tax benefit resulting from a stock option exercise exceeds the tax benefit associated with the grant
date fair value of the related stock option. In accordance with FASB Statement No. 123R, the Company reported excess tax benefits
as financing cash flows in its Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Stock option activity for the thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007 was as follows:

  Weighted Average
 Options Price Per Option
   
Outstanding at February 4, 2007 3,791  $25.15        
  Granted 216  58.62        
  Exercised 250  14.45        
  Cancelled        8    26.69        
Outstanding at May 6, 2007 3,749  $27.79        
Exercisable at May 6, 2007 1,990  $20.85        

During the thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007, the Company granted 133 RSUs at a weighted average fair value of $55.35 per
share. The RSUs vest in three installments commencing two years after the date of grant. The RSU award agreements provide for
accelerated vesting upon the award recipient’s retirement (as defined in the 2006 Plan). The fair value of the RSUs is equal to the
closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The fair value of the RSUs, net of estimated forfeitures, is
amortized to expense on a straight-line basis over the RSUs’ vesting period.

During the thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007, the Company issued performance share awards to certain qualified individuals. The
Company’s Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Vice Chairman - Retail Apparel and President and Chief
Operating Officer of Calvin Klein, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, each received performance share awards
subject to a performance period of two years. Additionally, these individuals and the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, President
and Chief Operating Officer, and Vice Chairman - Wholesale Apparel each received performance share awards subject to a
performance period of three years. The final number of shares that will be delivered, if any, is contingent upon the Company’s
achievement of a goal based on both earnings growth and improvement in return on equity during the applicable performance
cycle. Depending on the level of objectives achieved, up to a total number of 13 shares wi ll be issued for the two-year performance
period and up to 69 shares for the three-year performance period. The fair value of the performance shares is equal to the closing
price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, reduced for the present value of any dividends expected to be paid on
the Company’s common stock during the performance cycle, as the performance shares do not accrue dividends prior to being
earned. The Company records expense for performance shares ratably based on such fair value and the Company’s current
expectations of the probable number of shares that will ultimately be issued.

10.  ASSET IMPAIRMENTS

During 2007, the level of profitability in certain of the Company’s retail stores was an impairment indicator which caused the
Company to evaluate whether the net book value of the long-lived assets in such stores was recoverable. Based on these
evaluations, the Company determined that the long-lived assets in these stores were not recoverable. These determinations were
made by comparing each store’s expected undiscounted future cash flows to the carrying
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amount of the long-lived assets. The net book value of $1,279 of the long-lived assets was written off, as the fair value of the assets,
which was estimated based on the net present value of the future cash flows expected from these stores, was $0. The impairment
charge was included in selling, general and administrative expenses of the Retail Apparel and Related Products segment.

During 2006, the Company closed its manufacturing facility located in Ozark, Alabama, which resulted in the Company recording
a long-lived asset impairment of $549 in the first quarter of 2006. The impairment charge was included in selling, general and
administrative expenses of the Wholesale Dress Furnishings segment.

11.  SALE OF INVESTMENTS

On January 31, 2006, Warnaco, Inc. (“Warnaco”) acquired 100% of the shares of the companies that operate the licenses and
related wholesale and retail businesses of Calvin Klein jeans and accessories in Europe and Asia and the ck Calvin Klein bridge line
of sportswear and accessories in Europe. The Company’s Calvin Klein, Inc. subsidiary is the licensor of the businesses sold and had
minority interests in certain of the entities sold. The Company accounted for the investments in these entities under the cost method
and, as such, the investments had a carrying amount of $768 at the time of the sale. During the first quarter of 2006, the Company
received $32,136 in cash proceeds from the sale of these entities, net of an amount held in escrow and associated fees. The sale
resulted in a pre-tax gain of $31,368 in the first quarter of 2006, which is net of related fees, an amount held in escrow and the carr
ying value of the investments. The Company’s share of the cash proceeds being held in escrow represents security for
indemnification of certain potential losses incurred by Warnaco, as well as other adjustments to the purchase price. During the first
quarter of 2007, $3,335 was released to the Company from escrow. The escrow release was net of the Company’s share of certain
indemnification obligations and the agreed upon adjustment to the purchase price based on the actual working capital of the
businesses sold as of the closing date. The Company recorded this release of escrow as an additional gain. The balance of the
Company’s share of the amount held in escrow as of May 6, 2007 totaled approximately $1,500. The Company will be entitled to
receive a distribution of its share of any amount remaining in escrow in 2008, and the Company will record the release of any such
amount as an additional gain if and when such amount is released to the Company.

12.  NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

The Company computed its basic and diluted net income per common share as follows:

 Thirteen Weeks Ended
 5/6/07  4/30/06
   
Net income $53,006 $48,745 
Less:   
  Preferred stock dividends on convertible stock        -         3,230 
Net income available to common stockholders for   
  basic net income per common share 53,006 45,515 
Add back preferred stock dividends on convertible stock        -         3,230 
Net income available to common stockholders for   
  diluted net income per common share $53,006 $48,745 
   
Weighted average common shares outstanding for   
  basic net income per common share 55,928 43,434 
Weighted average impact of dilutive securities 1,515 1,267 
Weighted average impact of dilutive warrant 161 76 
Weighted average impact of assumed convertible preferred stock conversion         -       11,566 
Total shares for diluted net income per common share   57,604   56,343 
   
Basic net income per common share $    0.95 $    1.05 
   
Diluted net income per common share $    0.92 $    0.87 
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Potentially dilutive securities excluded from the calculation of diluted net income per common share were as follows:

 Thirteen Weeks Ended
 5/6/07 4/30/06
   
Weighted average antidilutive securities 139      142   

According to FASB Statement No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” contingently issuable shares that have not met the necessary
conditions as of the end of a reporting period should not be included in the calculation of diluted net income per common share for
that period. The performance shares that the Company issued during the first quarter of 2007 did not meet the performance
conditions as of May 6, 2007 and, therefore, were excluded from the calculation of diluted net income per common share for the
thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007. The maximum number of potentially dilutive shares that could be issued upon vesting is 82.
These performance shares were also excluded from the computation of weighted average antidilutive securities.

13.  SEGMENT DATA

The Company manages its operations through its operating divisions, which are aggregated into five reportable segments: (i)
Wholesale Dress Furnishings; (ii) Wholesale Sportswear and Related Products; (iii) Retail Apparel and Related Products; (iv)
Retail Footwear and Related Products; and (v) Calvin Klein Licensing.

Wholesale Dress Furnishings Segment - This segment represents the results of the Company’s wholesale dress shirt and neckwear
divisions. The Company’s wholesale dress shirt division derived revenues primarily from marketing dress shirts under the brand
names Van Heusen, IZOD, Eagle, Geoffrey Beene, ARROW, Kenneth Cole New York, Kenneth Cole Reaction, unlisted, A Kenneth
Cole Production, Calvin Klein Collection, ck Calvin Klein, Calvin Klein, BCBG Max Azria, BCBG Attitude, CHAPS, Sean John,
Donald J. Trump Signature Collection, JOE Joseph Abboud (beginning in the second quarter of 2006) and MICHAEL Michael
Kors, to department, mid-tier department and specialty stores. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company began
marketing neckwear at wholesale upon the acquisition of the assets of Superba. The Company’s neckwear division derived
revenues primarily from marketing neckwear under the br and names ARROW, IZOD, Calvin Klein, DKNY, Tommy Hilfiger,
Nautica, Perry Ellis Portfolio, Ike Behar and Jones New York. The Company also marketed dress shirts and neckwear under
various private label brands.

Wholesale Sportswear and Related Products Segment - The Company aggregates its wholesale sportswear divisions into the
Wholesale Sportswear and Related Products segment. This segment derived revenues primarily from marketing sportswear under
the brand names Van Heusen, IZOD, Geoffrey Beene, ARROW, Calvin Klein, Donald J. Trump Signature Collection and beginning
in 2007, G.H. Bass Earth.

Retail Apparel and Related Products Segment - The Company aggregates its Van Heusen, Izod, Geoffrey Beene and Calvin Klein
outlet retail divisions into the Retail Apparel and Related Products segment. This segment derived revenues principally from
operating retail stores in the outlet channel of distribution which sell apparel and accessories under the brand names Van Heusen,
IZOD, Geoffrey Beene and Calvin Klein. In addition, the Company aggregates the results of its Calvin Klein Collection retail
division into the Retail Apparel and Related Products segment. This division sells Calvin Klein Collection branded high-end
collection apparel and accessories through the Company’s own full price retail store located in New York City.

Retail Footwear and Related Products Segment - This segment represents the results of the Company’s Bass retail division. This
division derived revenues principally from operating retail stores, primarily in the outlet channel of distribution, which sell
footwear, apparel and accessories under the Bass brand name.

Calvin Klein Licensing Segment - The Company aggregates the results of its Calvin Klein licensing and advertising divisions into
the Calvin Klein Licensing segment. This segment derived revenues from licensing and similar arrangements worldwide relating to
the use by third parties of the Calvin Klein Collection, ck Calvin Klein and Calvin Klein brands for a broad array of products and
retail services.
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The following table presents summarized information by segment:

 Thirteen Weeks Ended
 5/6/07 4/30/06
   
Revenues - Wholesale Dress Furnishings   
Net sales $143,466   $100,059   
Royalty revenues 1,646         1,666   
Advertising and other revenues         866            459   
Total 145,978   102,184   
   
Revenues - Wholesale Sportswear and Related Products   
Net sales 163,258   163,252   
Royalty revenues 2,736   2,900   
Advertising and other revenues       1,077         1,342   
Total 167,071   167,494   
   
Revenues - Retail Apparel and Related Products   
Net sales 152,437   133,884   
Royalty revenues       1,940         1,937   
Total 154,377   135,821   
   
Revenues - Retail Footwear and Related Products   
Net sales 61,291   56,993   
Royalty revenues 50            163   
Advertising and other revenues          376            -       
Total 61,717   57,156   
   
Revenues - Calvin Klein Licensing   
Royalty revenues 45,234   32,969   
Advertising and other revenues     17,529      10,814   
Total 62,763   43,783   
   
Total Revenues   
Net sales 520,452   454,188   
Royalty revenues 51,606   39,635   
Advertising and other revenues     19,848       12,615   
Total $591,906   $506,438   
   

Operating income - Wholesale Dress Furnishings $  25,013   $     6,779(2)

   
Operating income - Wholesale Sportswear and Related Products 29,964   35,405   
   
Operating income - Retail Apparel and Related Products 12,949   11,581   
   
Operating income - Retail Footwear and Related Products 3,511   541   
   

Operating income - Calvin Klein Licensing(1) 30,337   49,961   

   

Corporate expenses(3)     12,895       21,204   

   
Income before interest and taxes $  88,879   $  83,063   

(1) Operating income for the Calvin Klein Licensing segment for the thirteen weeks ended April 30, 2006 includes a gain of
$31,368 associated with the sale by a subsidiary of the Company of minority interests in certain entities that operate various
Calvin Klein jeans and sportswear businesses in Europe and Asia and ck Calvin Klein bridge apparel and accessories businesses
in Europe. Operating income for the Calvin Klein Licensing segment for the thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007 includes a gain
of $3,335 associated with the release of cash held in escrow in connection with such sale.
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(2) Operating income for the Wholesale Dress Furnishings segment for the thirteen weeks ended April 30, 2006 includes $9,397 of
costs associated with closing the Company’s manufacturing facility in Ozark, Alabama.

(3) Corporate expenses represent overhead operating expenses that the Company does not allocate to its segments and include
expenses for senior corporate management, corporate finance and information technology related to corporate infrastructure.
Additionally, the Company includes all stock-based compensation expenses in Corporate expenses. Corporate expenses for the
thirteen weeks ended April 30, 2006 include $10,535 of costs resulting from the departure of Mark Weber, the Company’s
former Chief Executive Officer.

14.  OTHER COMMENTS

The Company has guaranteed the payment of certain purchases made by one of the Company’s suppliers from a raw material
vendor. The maximum amount guaranteed is $500. The guarantee expires on January 31, 2008.

The Company has guaranteed to a former landlord the payment of rent and related costs by the tenant currently occupying space
previously leased by the Company. The maximum amount guaranteed as of May 6, 2007 is approximately $4,700, which is subject
to exchange rate fluctuation. The Company has the right to seek recourse of approximately $3,000 as of May 6, 2007, which is
subject to exchange rate fluctuation. The guarantee expires on May 19, 2016.

ITEM 2 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
CONDITION

References to the brand names Calvin Klein Collection, ck Calvin Klein, Calvin Klein, Van Heusen, IZOD, Eagle, Bass, Geoffrey
Beene, ARROW, BCBG Max Azria, BCBG Attitude, CHAPS, Sean John, Donald J. Trump Signature Collection, JOE Joseph
Abboud, Kenneth Cole New York, Kenneth Cole Reaction, unlisted, A Kenneth Cole Production, MICHAEL Michael Kors, DKNY,
Tommy Hilfiger, Nautica, Perry Ellis Portfolio, Ike Behar, Jones New York, Timberland and to other brand names are to registered
trademarks owned by us or licensed to us by third parties and are identified by italicizing the brand name.

References to our acquisition of Superba refer to our January 2007 acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Superba, Inc., a
privately-held manufacturer and distributor of neckwear in the United States and Canada, which we refer to as “Superba.”

References to our acquisition of Arrow refer to our December 2004 acquisition of Cluett Peabody Resources Corporation and
Cluett Peabody & Co., Inc., which companies we refer to collectively as “Arrow.”

References to our acquisition of Calvin Klein refer to our February 2003 acquisition of Calvin Klein, Inc. and certain affiliated
companies, which companies we refer to collectively as “Calvin Klein.”

OVERVIEW

The following discussion and analysis is intended to help you understand us, our operations and our financial performance. It
should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes, which are
included elsewhere in this report.

We are one of the largest apparel companies in the world, with a heritage dating back over 125 years. Our brand portfolio consists
of nationally recognized brand names, including Calvin Klein, Van Heusen, IZOD, ARROW, Bass and Eagle, which are owned, and
Geoffrey Beene, Kenneth Cole New York, Kenneth Cole Reaction, unlisted, A Kenneth Cole Production, BCBG Max Azria, BCBG
Attitude, Sean John, CHAPS, Donald J. Trump Signature Collection and MICHAEL Michael Kors, which are licensed. We
launched a new licensed line of dress shirts under the JOE Joseph Abboud brand in the second quarter of 2006. In the fourth quarter
of 2006, we acquired Superba, which enabled us to add the DKNY, Tommy Hilfiger, Nautica, Perry Ellis Portfolio, Ike Behar and
Jones New York names, as well as various private label names, to our portfolio of licensed brands.

Our historical strategy has been to manage and market a portfolio of nationally recognized brands across multiple product
categories, through multiple channels of distribution and at multiple price points. This strategy was enhanced by our acquisition of
Calvin Klein in 2003, which provided us with one of the most famous designer names in the world and an additional platform for
growth in revenues and profitability. Through that transaction, and to a lesser
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extent, our acquisition of Arrow in 2004, we were able to diversify our business model by providing growth opportunities from
strong and highly profitable licensing streams which do not require capital investments. Our acquisition in January 2007 of
Superba’s established neckwear business complements our heritage business in dress shirts and presents us with opportunities to
grow and enhance the performance of both businesses.

We are currently implementing two initiatives that are intended to build upon our business strategy, both of which we believe
provide us with the opportunity to fill product and brand portfolio needs. The first initiative is our assumption of the wholesale
IZOD women’s sportswear collection. IZOD women’s sportswear was previously a licensed business and we will be taking over the
development and sale of the line for Fall 2007. Our second initiative, announced in early 2007, is a licensing arrangement with The
Timberland Company to design, source and market men’s and women’s casual sportswear under the Timberland brand in North
America. We will assume the management of the men’s apparel line, which is currently produced by The Timberland Company, for
the Fall 2008 season and will launch a women’s line for the Spring 2009 season. Timberland is an authentic outdoor traditional
brand targeted to the depar tment and specialty store channels of distribution that we believe has a unique positioning that will
complement our existing portfolio of sportswear brands and enable us to reach a broader spectrum of consumers. In addition to
these initiatives, during the fourth quarter of 2007, we plan to open a limited number of Calvin Klein better specialty retail stores in
premier malls, which are intended to serve as a platform for showcasing the totality of the Calvin Klein white label product.

OPERATIONS OVERVIEW

We generate net sales from (i) the wholesale distribution of men’s dress shirts, sportswear and, since January 2007, neckwear; and
(ii) the sale, through approximately 725 company-operated retail stores, of apparel, footwear and accessories under the brand names
Van Heusen, IZOD, Geoffrey Beene, Bass and Calvin Klein. Our stores principally operate in an outlet format. We also operate a
full price collection store located in New York City under the Calvin Klein Collection brand, in which we principally sell men’s and
women’s high-end collection apparel and accessories, soft home furnishings and tableware.

We generate royalty, advertising and other revenues from fees for licensing the use of our trademarks. Calvin Klein royalty,
advertising and other revenues, which comprised 88% of total royalty, advertising and other revenues in the first quarter of 2007,
are derived under licenses and other arrangements for a broad array of products, including jeans, underwear, fragrances, eyewear,
watches and home furnishings.

In the first quarter of 2007, net sales were 88% and royalty, advertising and other revenues were 12% of our total revenues.

Gross profit on total revenues is total revenues less cost of goods sold. We include as cost of goods sold, costs associated with the
production and procurement of product, including inbound freight costs, purchasing and receiving costs, inspection costs, internal
transfer costs and other product procurement related charges. Since there is no cost of goods sold associated with royalty,
advertising and other revenues, 100% of such revenues are included in gross profit. Due to the above factors, our gross profit may
not be comparable to that of other entities.

Selling, general and administrative expenses include all other expenses, excluding interest and income taxes. Salaries and related
fringe benefits is the largest component of selling, general and administrative expenses, comprising 48% of such expenses in the
first quarter of 2007. Rent and occupancy for offices, warehouses and retail stores is the next largest expense, comprising 21% of
selling, general and administrative expenses in the first quarter of 2007.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Thirteen Weeks Ended May 6, 2007 Compared With Thirteen Weeks Ended April 30, 2006

Net Sales

Net sales in the first quarter of 2007 increased 14.6% to $520.5 million from $454.2 million in the prior year. This increase
included the following: (i) $43.4 million of net sales attributable to growth in our Wholesale Dress Furnishings segment, due
principally to the addition of sales from our recently-acquired neckwear business; and (ii) $22.9 million of net sales attributable to
growth in our retail segments, driven by a 7% increase in comparable store sales and the opening of Calvin Klein outlet retail stores
in premium outlet malls. Due to the 53rd week in fiscal 2006, we believe that first quarter 2007 comparable store sales are more
appropriately compared with the thirteen
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week period ended May 7, 2006, which is approximately the same period on a calendar basis. On this shifted basis, comparable
store sales increased 4%.

Net sales for the full year 2007 are expected to increase approximately 15% due principally to growth in our existing businesses, as
well as additional sales from our recently-acquired neckwear business and IZOD women’s sportswear, which we will assume for
Fall 2007.

Royalty, Advertising and Other Revenues

Royalty, advertising and other revenues in the first quarter of 2007 increased 36.8% to $71.5 million from $52.3 million in the prior
year. Of the $19.2 million increase, $19.0 million was attributable to our Calvin Klein Licensing segment due to new licensees and
growth exhibited by existing licensees, particularly from the continued success of the fragrance business, which experienced the
successful global launch of the new CKIN2U fragrance line for both men and women, as well as the continued strength in sales of
both the men’s and women’s euphoria fragrance line. Calvin Klein licensing revenues also increased as a result of royalties
generated from the multiple new licensed product categories launched over the past few years and from strong performances in
jeans and underwear.

We currently expect that royalty, advertising and other revenues will increase approximately 15% in our Calvin Klein Licensing
segment for the full year 2007 as a result of growth of existing licensees, as well as royalties generated from new license
agreements. Royalty, advertising and other revenues in our other segments are expected to decrease an aggregate of 3% for the full
year 2007 as a result of the loss of royalties associated with ARROW neckwear, which had been licensed to Superba, and the loss of
royalties associated with IZOD neckwear and IZOD women’s sportswear, which had been licensed to third parties but will now be
produced by us as a result of the termination or expiration of those licenses. ARROW and IZOD neckwear is being marketed by our
Neckwear Group, which we formed in connection with our acquisition of Superba, and IZOD women’s sportswear will be
marketed by our Sportswear Group for F all 2007. Royalty, advertising and other revenues are expected to increase 12% in total for
the full year 2007.

Gross Profit on Total Revenues

Gross profit on total revenues in the first quarter of 2007 was $292.6 million, or 49.4% of total revenues, compared with $242.7
million, or 47.9% of total revenues in the prior year. The 150 basis point improvement was due principally to (i) a change in
revenue mix, as royalty, advertising and other revenues, which do not carry a cost of sales and have a gross profit percentage of
100%, increased as a percentage of total revenues; and, to a lesser extent, (ii) strong product sell-throughs in our wholesale dress
shirt and outlet retail businesses, which yielded more full-price selling. Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease in gross
margin in our wholesale sportswear business, which was negatively impacted by the overall weak retail environment, resulting in
slower than planned sell-throughs at customer accounts.

We currently expect that the gross profit on total revenues percentage will decrease approximately 70 to 80 basis points for the full
year 2007. We anticipate that during the remainder of 2007, the revenue mix that led to an increased gross profit percentage in the
first quarter of 2007 will shift and the gross profit percentage will decrease compared to the prior year as revenues grow faster in
our wholesale businesses, which typically carry a lower gross margin percentage than our retail and licensing businesses.

Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) Expenses

SG&A expenses in the first quarter of 2007 were $207.0 million, or 35.0% of total revenues, and $191.0 million, or 37.7% of total
revenues, in the prior year. The $16.0 million increase in SG&A expenses in the first quarter of 2007 included (i) expenses of
approximately $10.0 million related to our newly-acquired neckwear business; (ii) an increase in advertising expenditures of $9.1
million, principally related to the Calvin Klein brand; (iii) increased expenses in our retail segments to support the sales growth
previously mentioned; and (iv) start-up costs of $1.4 million associated with our Timberland wholesale sportswear business and
Calvin Klein better specialty retail stores. Also impacting the change in SG&A expenses for the first quarter of 2007 compared to
the prior year was the absence of costs incurred in the first quarter of 2006 of (i) $10.5 million in severance and other separation
costs associated with the depa rture of Mark Weber, our former Chief Executive Officer; and (ii) $9.4 million associated with the
closing of our manufacturing facility in Ozark, Alabama.

Our full year 2007 SG&A expenses are currently expected to decrease as a percentage of total revenues by approximately 70 to 80
basis points compared with the full year 2006 percentage excluding the 2006 facility closing
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costs and departure costs described above. This decrease is due primarily to the growth in our wholesale businesses mentioned
previously, as our wholesale businesses typically have lower expense rates than our retail businesses. This decrease is expected to
be partially offset by start-up expenses of approximately $11.3 million associated with our men’s Timberland sportswear line,
which we will assume the management of for Fall 2008 and our Calvin Klein better specialty retail stores, which we plan to begin
to open in the fourth quarter of 2007.

Gain on Sale of Investments

We sold, in the first quarter of 2006, minority interests held by one of our subsidiaries in certain entities that operate the licenses
and related wholesale and retail businesses of Calvin Klein jeans and accessories in Europe and Asia and the ck Calvin Klein bridge
line of sportswear and accessories in Europe. The sale resulted in a pre-tax gain of $31.4 million in the first quarter of 2006, which
is net of related fees, an amount held in escrow and the carrying value of the investments. Our share of the proceeds being held in
escrow represents security for indemnification of certain potential losses incurred by the purchaser, as well as other adjustments to
the purchase price. During the first quarter of 2007, $3.3 million was released to us from escrow. The escrow release was net of our
share of certain indemnification obligations and the agreed upon adjustment to the purchase price based on the actual working
capital of the businesses sold as of the closing date. We recorded this release of escrow as an additional gain. The balance of our
share of the amount held in escrow as of May 6, 2007 totaled approximately $1.5 million. We will be entitled to receive a
distribution of our share of any amount remaining in escrow in 2008, and we will record the release of any such amount as an
additional gain if and when such amount is released to us.

Interest Expense, Net

The majority of our interest expense relates to our fixed rate long-term debt. As a result, variances in our net interest expense tend
to be driven by changes in interest income and, to a lesser extent, costs related to our revolving credit facility.

Net interest expense in the first quarter of 2007 was $4.5 million compared with $5.6 million in the prior year. The net interest
expense decrease was due principally to an increase in interest income from increases in our average cash position and investment
rates of return over the prior year’s first quarter.

Income Taxes

In the first quarter of 2007, we adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”).
Under FIN 48, additional volatility in our tax rate may occur in the future, either from quarter to quarter, or from year to year, due
to events or new information that causes us to re-evaluate our unrecognized tax benefits.

Income taxes for the first quarter of 2007 were provided for at a rate of 37.2% compared with last year’s full year rate of 37.5%.
We currently estimate our full year rate for 2007 to be in a range of 37.0% to 37.5%. It is possible that our estimated full year rate
could change from discrete events arising from specific transactions, audits by tax authorities or the receipt of new information.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Generally, our principal source of cash is from operations, and our principal uses of cash are for capital expenditures, contingent
purchase price payments to Mr. Calvin Klein and dividends.

Operations

Cash used by operating activities was $55.7 million in the first quarter of 2007, which compares with cash provided by operating
activities of $17.6 million in the prior year. This decrease was due principally to changes in working capital, including (i) an
increase in accounts receivable related principally to the revenue growth mentioned previously; (ii) an increase in inventories
related principally to an expected sales increase in the second quarter of 2007; and (iii) a decrease in accounts payable and accrued
expenses due to the payment of incentive compensation costs and advertising expenses incurred in the fourth quarter of 2006.

For the full year 2007, we expect that our cash provided by operating activities will exceed net income, due principally to
depreciation and amortization and noncash stock-based compensation expense. This is expected to be offset, in part, by increases in
working capital to support the anticipated sales growth mentioned previously.
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Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures in the first quarter of 2007 were $9.2 million. We currently expect that capital expenditures for the full
year 2007 will be approximately $100.0 million, which compares with the prior year amount of $46.2 million. The planned increase
in capital expenditures for 2007 is due principally to (i) additional office space, warehouse and distribution facility expansion and
information technology spending both domestically and abroad to allow our infrastructure to support the sales growth and new
businesses mentioned previously; and (ii) the build out of Calvin Klein better specialty retail stores.

Contingent Purchase Price Payments

In connection with our acquisition of Calvin Klein, we are obligated to pay Mr. Calvin Klein contingent purchase price payments
through 2017 based on 1.15% of total worldwide net sales of products bearing any of the Calvin Klein brands. Such contingent
purchase price payments are recorded as additions to goodwill and totaled $7.1 million in the first quarter of 2007. We currently
expect that such payments will be $32 million to $34 million for the full year 2007.

In connection with our acquisition of Superba in January 2007, we are obligated to pay Superba contingent purchase price
payments if the earnings of the acquired business exceed certain targets in 2007, 2008 and 2009. The maximum payout that
Superba can receive is $15 million, $25 million and $30 million with respect to earnings in 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively. Any
such contingent purchase price payments would be payable 90 days after fiscal year end. No such payments were recorded for the
thirteen weeks ended May 6, 2007.

Sale of Investments

In the first quarter of 2006, we sold minority interests held by one of our subsidiaries in certain entities that operate the licenses and
related wholesale and retail businesses of Calvin Klein jeans and accessories in Europe and Asia and the ck Calvin Klein bridge line
of sportswear and accessories in Europe. We received $32.1 million in cash proceeds from the sale of these entities in the first
quarter of 2006 and $3.3 million in cash proceeds in the first quarter of 2007 in connection with the release of a portion of the
amount held in escrow in connection with the sale.

Dividends

Our common stock, which as of May 6, 2007 is the only class of stock issued, currently pays annual dividends totaling $0.15 per
share. Cash dividends on our common stock are currently estimated to be $8.4 million to $8.5 million for the full year 2007.

Cash Flow Summary

Our net cash outflow in the first quarter of 2007 was $66.4 million. Cash flow for the full year 2007 will be impacted by various
other factors in addition to those noted above. For example, the exercise of stock options provided $17.6 million of cash for the full
year in 2006. We currently estimate that the cash generated from the exercise of stock options for the full year 2007 will be similar
to the amount in 2006.

Based on our current operations, and considering all of the above factors, we currently expect to generate $85.0 million to $90.0
million of cash flow for the full year 2007.

Financing Arrangements

Our capital structure as of May 6, 2007 was as follows:

(in millions)

Long-term debt $399.5
Stockholders’ equity $995.2

We believe our capital structure provides a secure base to support our current operations and our planned growth in the future.
There are no maturities of our long-term debt until 2011.
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For near-term liquidity, in addition to our cash balance, we have a $325.0 million secured revolving credit facility that provides for
revolving credit borrowings, as well as the issuance of letters of credit. We may, at our option, borrow and repay amounts up to a
maximum of $325.0 million for revolving credit borrowings and the issuance of letters of credit, with a sublimit of $30.0 million
for standby letters of credit and with no sublimit on trade letters of credit. Based on our working capital projections, we believe that
our borrowing capacity under this facility provides us with adequate liquidity for our peak seasonal needs for the foreseeable
future. During the first quarter of 2007, we had no revolving credit borrowings under the facility, and the maximum amount of
letters of credit outstanding was $120.1 million. As of May 6, 2007, we had $118.9 million outstanding letters of credit under this
facility. We currently do no t expect to have any revolving credit borrowings under the facility during the remainder of 2007.

Given our capital structure and our projections for future profitability and cash flow, we believe we could obtain additional
financing, if necessary, for refinancing our long-term debt, or, if opportunities present themselves, future acquisitions.

SEASONALITY

Our business generally follows a seasonal pattern. Our wholesale businesses tend to generate higher levels of sales and income in
the first and third quarters, as the selling of Spring and Fall merchandise to our customers occurs at higher levels as these selling
seasons begin. Our retail businesses tend to generate higher levels of sales and income in the third and fourth quarters, due to the
back to school and holiday selling seasons. Royalty, advertising and other revenues tend to be earned somewhat evenly throughout
the year, although the third quarter has the highest level of royalty revenue due to higher sales by licensees in advance of the
holiday season.

Due to the above factors, our operating results for the thirteen week period ended May 6, 2007 are not necessarily indicative of
those for a full fiscal year.

ITEM 3 - QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Financial instruments held by us include cash equivalents and long-term debt. Interest rates on our long-term debt are fixed.
Therefore, a change in rates generally would not have an effect on our interest expense. Note 7, “Long-Term Debt,” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 4, 2007
outlines the principal amounts, interest rates, fair values and other terms required to evaluate the expected sensitivity of interest rate
changes on the fair value of our fixed rate long-term debt. Cash equivalents held by us are affected by short-term interest rates.
Therefore, a change in short-term interest rates would have an impact on our interest income. Given our balance of cash and cash
equivalents as of May 6, 2007, the effect of a 50 basis point change in short-term interest rates on our interest income would be
approximately $1.5 million annually.

Principally all of our revenues and expenses are currently denominated in United States dollars. However, certain of our operations
and license agreements expose us to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, primarily the rate of exchange of the United
States dollar against the Euro, the Yen and the Canadian dollar. Our principal exposure to changes in exchange rates for the United
States dollar results from our licensing businesses. Many of our license agreements require the licensee to report sales to us in the
licensee’s local currency, but to pay us in United States dollars based on the exchange rate as of the last day of the contractual
selling period. Thus, while we are not exposed to exchange rate gains and losses between the end of the selling period and the date
we collect payment, we are exposed to exchange rate changes during and up to the last day of the selling period. During times of a
strengthening United Stat es dollar, our foreign royalty revenues will be negatively impacted, and during times of a weakening
United States dollar, our foreign royalty revenues will be favorably impacted.

A secondary exposure to changes in exchange rates for the United States dollar results from our foreign wholesale operations.
During 2006, we expanded our wholesale operations to include sales to department and specialty stores throughout Canada and
parts of Europe. Sales for these foreign operations are both generated and collected in foreign currency, which exposes us to foreign
exchange gains and losses between the date of the sale and the date we collect payment. As with our licensing business, the results
of these operations will be negatively impacted during times of a strengthening United States dollar and favorably impacted during
times of a weakening United States dollar.

Not all foreign license agreements expose us to foreign exchange risk. Many of our foreign license agreements specify that
contractual minimums be paid in United States dollars. Thus, for these foreign license agreements where
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the licensee’s sales do not exceed contractual minimums, the licensee assumes the risk of changes in exchange rates and we do not.

Also somewhat mitigating our exposure to changes in the exchange rate for the Euro is our Calvin Klein administrative office in
Milan, Italy. During times of a strengthening United States dollar against the Euro, our Milan expenses will be favorably impacted,
and during times of a weakening United States dollar against the Euro, our Milan expenses will be negatively impacted.

Due to the overall immateriality of our foreign operations, changes in the exchange rate for the United States dollar have not had a
material effect on our consolidated results of operations or financial position.

ITEM 4 - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of May 6, 2007, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures over financial reporting. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures over financial reporting were effective as of May 6, 2007. Disclosure
controls and procedures over financial reporting are controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the period to which this report relates that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II – OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 2 - UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES (1)

   (c) Total Number (d) Maximum Number
   of Shares (or Units) (or Approximate Dollar
 (a) Total (b) Average Purchased as Part Value) of Shares (or
 Number of Price Paid of Publicly Units) that May Yet Be
 Shares (or per Share Announced Plans Purchased Under the
         Period Units) Purchased (or Unit) or Programs Plans or Programs
     
February 5, 2007 -     
  March 4, 2007 -   -         -        -    
     
March 5, 2007 -     
  April 8, 2007 -   -         -        -    
     
April 9, 2007 -     
  May 6, 2007 3,207 $57.38     -        -    
     
Total 3,207 $57.38     -        -    

(1) Our Stock Option Plans generally provide participants with the right to deliver previously owned stock to pay the exercise price
of stock options. All shares shown in the table were delivered in payment of the exercise price for stock options that permitted such
delivery.

ITEM 6 - EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are included herein:
   
 3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 5 to the Company’s Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 29, 1977).
   
 3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 27, 1984 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3B to

the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 3, 1985).
   
 3.3 Certificate of Designation of Series A Cumulative Participating Preferred Stock, filed June 10, 1986

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the document filed as Exhibit 3 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 4, 1986).

   
 3.4 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 2, 1987 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(c) to

the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1988).
   
 3.5 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 1, 1993 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to

the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 30, 1994).
   
 3.6 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 20, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended July 28, 1996).
   
 3.7 Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of Phillips-Van

Heusen Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, filed on February 26, 2003).

   
 3.8 Corrected Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, dated as of April 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.9 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2003).

   

20



          +3.9 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation, filed June 29, 2006.
   
          +3.10 Certificate Eliminating Reference to Series B Convertible Preferred Stock from Certificate of Incorporation

of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, filed June 12, 2007.
   
            3.11 By-laws of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, as amended through March 3, 2005 (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 8, 2005).
   
 4.1 Specimen of Common Stock certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company’s Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1981).
   
 4.2 Indenture, dated as of November 1, 1993, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and The Bank of New

York, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-3 (Reg. No. 33-50751), filed on October 26, 1993).

   
 4.3 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 17, 2002, to Indenture, dated as of November 1, 1993,

between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and The Bank of New York, as Trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.15 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November
3, 2002).

   
 4.4 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 12, 2002, to Indenture, dated as of November 1,

1993, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and The Bank of New York, as Trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on February 26, 2003).

   
 4.5 Indenture, dated as of May 5, 2003, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and SunTrust Bank, as

Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended May 4, 2003).

   
 4.6 Indenture, dated as of February 18, 2004, between Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and SunTrust Bank, as

Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended February 1, 2004).

   
       +10.1 Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of April 27, 2006, as amended

through May 3, 2007.
  
       +10.2 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Associates under the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006 Stock

Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed on April 11, 2007); Revised Form of Stock Option Agreement for Associates under the Phillips-Van
Heusen Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.

   
         +10.3 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Associates under the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006

Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K, filed on April 11, 2007). Revised Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Associates under the
Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006 Corporation Stock Incentive Plan.

  
           10.4 Form of Performance Share Award Agreement under the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006 Stock

Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed on May 8, 2007).

   
       +10.5 Revised Form of Stock Option Agreement for Directors under the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006

Stock Incentive Plan.
  
       +10.6 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2007, between Francis K. Duane and

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.
  
       +10.7 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2007, between P. Thomas Murry and

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.
  
       +10.8 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2007, between Michael Shaffer and

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.
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       +10.9 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2007, between Allen Sirkin and
Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.

  
       +10.10 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2007, between Michael Zaccaro and

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.
  
         +15 Acknowledgement of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
   
        +31.1 Certification of Emanuel Chirico, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes – Oxley

Act of 2002.
   
        +31.2 Certification of Michael Shaffer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section

302 of the Sarbanes – Oxley Act of 2002.
  
        +32.1 Certification of Emanuel Chirico, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes – Oxley

Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
   
        +32.2 Certification of Michael Shaffer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section

906 of the Sarbanes – Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
  
  + Filed herewith.
   
Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise
subject to the liability of that Section. Such exhibits shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the
Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

 PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION
 Registrant

Dated:  June 13, 2007

 /s/ Bruce Goldstein                                          
 Bruce Goldstein
 Vice President and Controller
 (Chief Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 3.9

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

OF

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION
____________________________

Under Section 242 of the
General Corporation Law

____________________________

The undersigned, Emanuel Chirico, Chief Executive of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, a corporation organized

and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “Corporation”), does hereby certify as follows:

1. The name of the corporation (the "Corporation") is "Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation."

2. The Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation was filed by the Secretary of State on April 1, 1976.

3. The purpose of this amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation is to increase the number
of authorized shares of Common Stock, $1.00 par value from 100,000,000 to 240,000,000.

4. The foregoing amendment is hereby effected by deleting Article FOURTH of the Certificate of Incorporation
of the Corporation in its entirety and substituting in lieu thereof, the following:

“The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is
240,150,000.  150,000 of said shares shall be of the par value of $100 each and shall be designated Preferred Stock and
240,000,000 of said shares shall be of the par value of $1 each and shall be designated Common Stock.”
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5. The foregoing amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation has been duly authorized and
adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affirm, under the penalties of perjury, that this

Certificate is my act and deed and that the facts stated herein are true this 13th day of June 2006

 
/s/ Emanuel Chirico

 Emanuel Chirico, Chief Executive Officer

ATTEST:

        /s/ Mark D. Fischer
Mark D. Fischer, Secretary
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Exhibit 3.10
CERTIFICATE ELIMINATING REFERENCE

TO
SERIES B CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

FROM
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

The undersigned, in order to eliminate reference to the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock from the Certificate of

Incorporation of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, pursuant to Section 151(g) of the General Corporation Law of the State of

Delaware, do hereby certify as follows:

FIRST: The name of the corporation is Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation (the “Corporation”);

SECOND: This certificate relates to the “Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation” filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on February 10, 2003, which
sets forth a resolution adopted by the Corporation’s Board of Directors providing for the designation, amount, voting powers,
preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock.  

THIRD: The Board of Directors of the Corporation has adopted the following resolutions:

RESOLVED, that none of the authorized shares of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the Corporation (the “Series
B Preferred Stock”), designated pursuant to the “Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation” filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on February 10, 2003, are
outstanding;

RESOLVED, that no additional shares of the Series B Preferred Stock will be issued subject to the aforementioned
Certificate of Designation; and

RESOLVED, that each of the appropriate officers of the Corporation be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, directed,
and empowered to execute, deliver, certify and file, on behalf and in the name of the Corporation, a certificate setting forth
these resolutions with the



Secretary of State of Delaware pursuant to Section 151(g) of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware for the
Purpose of eliminating from the Corporation’s certificate of incorporation all reference to the Series B Preferred Stock.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Certificate and affirm, under penalties of perjury, that this

instrument is the act and deed of the Corporation, and the facts stated herein are true.

Dated this 12th day of June, 2007.

          /s/ Mark D. Fischer                        
 Mark D. Fischer, Senior Vice President

  and Secretary
  
Attest:

/s/ Michelle O’Donnell
Michelle O’Donnell, Assistant Secretary



Exhibit 10.1
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
(As Amended Through May 3, 2007)

1. Establishment, Objectives and Duration.

(a) Establishment of the Plan.  Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation established this  incentive compensation plan to be
known as the "Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan."  The Plan permits the granting of Nonqualified Stock
Options, Incentive Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Shares and
Other Stock-Based Awards.  The Plan became effective on April 27, 2006 (the "Effective Date").   Definitions of capitalized terms
used in the Plan are contained in the attached glossary, which is an integral part of the Plan.

(b) Purposes of the Plan.  The purposes of the Plan are to induce certain individuals to remain in the employ, or to
continue to serve as directors of, or consultants or advisors to, the Company and its present and future Subsidiaries, to attract new
individuals to enter into such employment or service and to encourage such individuals to secure or increase on reasonable terms
their stock ownership in the Company.  The Board believes that the granting of Awards under the Plan will promote continuity of
management and increased incentive and personal interest in the welfare of the Company by those who are or may become
primarily responsible for shaping and carrying out the long range plans of the Company and securing its continued growth and
financial success.

(c) Duration of the Plan.  No Award may be granted under the Plan after the day immediately preceding the tenth (10th)
anniversary of the Effective Date, or such earlier date as the Board shall determine.  The Plan will remain in effect with respect to
outstanding Awards until no Awards remain outstanding.

2. Administration of the Plan.

(a) The Committee.  Except as otherwise provided in Section 2(d), the Plan shall be administered by the "Committee."
 The Committee shall consist of two or more members of the Board.  It is intended that all of the members of the Committee shall
be "non-employee directors" within the meaning of Rule 16b-3(b)(3) promulgated under the Exchange Act, and "outside directors"
within the contemplation of Section 162(m)(4)(C)(i) of the Code.  The Committee shall be appointed annually by the Board, which
may at any time and from time to time remove any members of the Committee, with or without cause, appoint additional members
to the Committee and fill vacancies, however caused, in the Committee.  A majority of the members of the Committee shall
constitute a quorum.  All determinations of t he Committee shall be made by a majority of its members present at a meeting duly
called and held, except that the Committee may delegate to any one of its members the authority of the Committee with respect to
the grant of Awards to any person who (i) shall not be an officer and/or director of the Company and (ii) is not, and in the judgment
of the Committee may not be reasonably expected to become, a "covered employee" within the meaning of Section 162(m)(3) of
the Code.  Any decision or determination of the Committee reduced to writing and signed by all of the members



of the Committee (or by the member(s) of the Committee to whom authority has been delegated) shall be fully as effective as if it
had been made at a meeting duly called and held.

(b) Authority of the Committee.  Subject to Applicable Laws and the provisions of the Plan (including any other powers
given to the Committee hereunder), and except as otherwise provided by the Board, the Committee shall have full and final
authority in its discretion to take all actions determined by the Committee to be necessary in the administration of the Plan,
including, without limitation, discretion to:

(i) select the Employees, Directors and Consultants to whom Awards may from time to time be granted
hereunder;

(ii) determine whether and to what extent Awards are granted hereunder;

(iii) determine the size and types of Awards granted hereunder;

(iv) approve forms of Award Agreement for use under the Plan;

(v) determine the terms and conditions of any Award granted hereunder;

(vi) establish performance goals for any Performance Period and determine whether such goals were satisfied;

(vii) amend the terms of any outstanding Award granted under the Plan; provided that, except as otherwise
provided in Section 16, no such amendment shall reduce the Exercise Price of outstanding Options or the grant price of
outstanding SARs without the approval of the stockholders of the Company;

(viii) construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and any Award Agreement entered into under the Plan, and to
decide all questions of fact arising in its application; and

(ix) take such other action, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, as the Committee deems appropriate.

(c) Effect of Committee's Decision.  All decisions, determinations and interpretations of the Committee shall be final,
binding and conclusive on all persons, including the Company, its Subsidiaries, its stockholders, Employees, Directors, Consultants
and their estates and beneficiaries.

(d) Delegation.  As permitted by Applicable Laws, the Committee may delegate its authority as identified herein,
including the power and authority to make Awards to Participants who are not "insiders" subject to Section 16(b) of the Exchange
Act or expected to be "covered employees" within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code, pursuant to such conditions and
limitations as the Committee may establish.
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3. Shares Subject to the Plan; Effect of Grants; Individual Limits.

(a) Number of Shares Available for Grants.  Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 18 hereof, the maximum
number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to Awards under the Plan shall be 3,000,000, plus any Shares remaining available
for issuance under the Prior Plans as of the Effective Date, plus the number of Shares subject to outstanding awards under the Prior
Plans at the Effective Date that are deemed not delivered under the Prior Plans pursuant to paragraph (i) or (ii), of this Section 3(a).

(i) Shares that are potentially deliverable under an Award granted under the Plan or an option granted under a
Prior Plan that expires or is canceled, forfeited, settled in cash or otherwise settled without the delivery of Shares shall not
be treated as having been issued under the Plan or a Prior Plan.

(ii) Shares that are issued pursuant to awards that are assumed, converted or substituted in connection with a
merger, acquisition, reorganization or similar transaction shall not be treated as having been issued under the Plan; provided,
however, that the Shares referred to in this paragraph (ii) shall not be considered for purposes of determining the number of
Shares available for grant as Incentive Stock Options.

Notwithstanding any other provisions herein: (i) shares tendered in payment of the exercise price of an Award shall not be
added to the maximum share limitations described above, (ii) shares withheld by the Company to satisfy the tax withholding
obligation shall not be added to the maximum share limitations described above and (iii) all shares covered by a Stock
Appreciation Right, to the extent that it is exercised and whether or not shares of Common Stock are actually issued upon
exercise of the right, shall be considered issued or transferred pursuant to the Plan.

The Shares to be issued pursuant to Awards may be authorized but unissued Shares or treasury Shares.

(b) Individual Limits.  Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 16 hereof, the maximum aggregate number of
Shares with respect to which Awards may be granted in any calendar year to any one Participant shall be 500,000 Shares.

(c) Share Counting.  A Stock Option or Stock Appreciation Right shall be counted as one share for purposes of the
limits set forth in Sections 3(a) and 3(b).  A combination of Stock Appreciation Right and Stock Option, where the exercise of the
Stock Appreciation Right or Stock Option results in the cancellation of the other, shall be counted as one share for purposes of the
limits set forth in Sections 3(a) and 3(b).  A Restricted Stock Grant, Restricted Stock Unit, Performance Share or Stock Award shall
be counted as three shares for purposes of the limits set forth in Sections 3(a) and 3(b).

4. Eligibility and Participation.

(a) Eligibility.  Persons eligible to participate in the Plan include all Employees, Directors and Consultants.
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(b) Actual Participation.  Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee may, from time to time, select from all
eligible Employees, Directors and Consultants, those to whom Awards shall be granted and shall determine the nature and amount
of each Award.  The Committee may establish additional terms, conditions, rules or procedures to accommodate the rules or laws of
applicable foreign jurisdictions and to afford Participants favorable treatment under such laws; provided, however, that no Award
shall be granted under any such additional terms, conditions, rules or procedures with terms or conditions which are inconsistent
with the provisions of the Plan.

5. Types of Awards.

(a) Type of Awards.  Awards under the Plan may be in the form of Options (both Nonqualified Stock Options and/or
Incentive Stock Options), SARs, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Shares and Other Stock-Based Awards.

(b) Designation of Award.  Each Award shall be designated in the Award Agreement.

6. Options.

(a) Grant of Options.  Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, Options may be granted to Participants in such
number and upon such terms, and at any time and from time to time, as shall be determined by the Committee.

(b) Award Agreement.  Each Option grant shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify the Exercise
Price, the duration of the Option, the number of Shares to which the Option pertains, and such other provisions as the Committee
shall determine including, but not limited to, the Option vesting schedule, repurchase provisions, rights of first refusal, forfeiture
provisions, form of payment (cash, Shares, or other consideration) upon settlement of the Award, and payment contingencies.  The
Award Agreement also shall specify whether the Option is intended to be an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock
Option.  Options that are intended to be Incentive Stock Options shall be subject to the limitations set forth in Section 422 of the
Code.  Options granted pursuant to the Plan shall not provide Participa nts with the right to receive Dividends or Dividend
Equivalents.  

(c) Exercise Price.  Except for Options adjusted pursuant to Section 18 herein, and replacement Options granted in
connection with a merger, acquisition, reorganization or similar transaction, the Exercise Price for each grant of an Option shall not
be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date the Option is granted.  However, in the case of an Incentive Stock
Option granted to a Participant who, at the time the Option is granted, owns stock representing more than 10% of the voting power
of all classes of stock of the Company or any Subsidiary, the Exercise Price for each grant of an Option shall not be less than 110%
of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date the Option is granted.

(d) Term of Options.  The term of an Option granted under the Plan shall be determined by the Committee, in its sole
discretion; provided, however, that such term shall not exceed 10 years.  However, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted
to a Participant who, at the time the Option is granted, owns stock representing more than 10% of the voting power of all classes of
stock of the Company or any Subsidiary, the term of the Incentive Stock
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Option shall be five years from the date of grant thereof or such shorter term as may be provided in the Award Agreement.

(e) Exercise of Options.  Options granted under this Section 6 shall be exercisable at such times and be subject to such
restrictions and conditions as set forth in the Award Agreement and as the Committee shall in each instance approve, which need
not be the same for each grant or for each Participant.

(f) Payments.  Options granted under this Section 6 shall be exercised by the delivery of a written notice to the
Company setting forth the number of Shares with respect to which the Option is to be exercised and payment of the Exercise Price.
 The Exercise Price of an Option shall be payable to the Company: (i) in cash or its equivalent, (ii) by tendering (either actually or
constructively by attestation) Shares having an aggregate Fair Market Value at the time of exercise equal to the Exercise Price, (iii)
in any other manner then permitted by the Committee, or (iv) by a combination of any of the permitted methods of payment.  The
Committee may limit any method of payment, other than that specified under (i), for administrative convenience, to comply with
Applicable Laws or otherwise.

(g) Restrictions on Share Transferability.  The Committee may impose such restrictions on any Shares acquired
pursuant to the exercise of an Option granted under this Section 6 as it may deem advisable, including, without limitation,
restrictions under applicable federal securities laws, under the requirements of any stock exchange or market upon which such
Shares are then listed and/or traded, and under any blue sky or state securities laws applicable to such Shares.

(h) Termination of Employment or Service.  Each Participant's Option Award Agreement shall set forth the extent to
which the Participant shall have the right to exercise the Option following termination of the Participant's employment or, if the
Participant is a Director or Consultant, service with the Company and its Subsidiaries.  Such provisions shall be determined in the
sole discretion of the Committee, need not be uniform among all Options, and may reflect distinctions based on the reasons for
termination of employment or service.

7. Stock Appreciation Rights.

(a) Grant of SARs.  Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, SARs may be granted to Participants in such
amounts and upon such terms, and at any time and from time to time, as shall be determined by the Committee.  

(b) Award Agreement.  Each SAR grant shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify the grant price,
the term of the SAR, and such other provisions as the Committee shall determine.  SARs granted pursuant to the Plan shall not
provide Participants with the right to receive Dividends or Dividend Equivalents.  

(c) Grant Price.  The grant price of a Freestanding SAR shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a Share
on the date of grant of the SAR; provided, however, that these limitations shall not apply to Awards that are adjusted pursuant to
Section 18 herein.
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(d) Term of SARs.  The term of a SAR granted under the Plan shall be determined by the Committee, in its sole
discretion; provided, however, that such term shall not exceed 10 years.

(e) Exercise of SARs.  SARs may be exercised upon whatever terms and conditions the Committee, in its sole
discretion, imposes upon them and sets forth in the Award Agreement.

(f) Payment of SAR Amount.  Upon exercise of a SAR, a Participant shall be entitled to receive payment from the
Company in an amount determined by multiplying:

(i) the difference between the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of exercise over the grant price; by

(ii) the number of Shares with respect to which the SAR is exercised.

At the discretion of the Committee, the payment upon SAR exercise may be in cash, in Shares of equivalent value, or in
some combination thereof.

(g) Termination of Employment or Service.  Each SAR Award Agreement shall set forth the extent to which the
Participant shall have the right to exercise the SAR following termination of the Participant's employment or, if the Participant is a
Director or Consultant, service with the Company and its Subsidiaries.  Such provisions shall be determined in the sole discretion
of the Committee, need not be uniform among all SARs, and may reflect distinctions based on the reasons for termination of
employment or service.

8. Restricted Stock.

(a) Grant of Restricted Stock.  Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, Restricted Stock may be granted to
Participants in such amounts and upon such terms, and at any time and from time to time, as shall be determined by the Committee.

(b) Award Agreement.  Each Restricted Stock grant shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify the
Period of Restriction, the number of Shares of Restricted Stock granted, and such other provisions as the Committee shall
determine.

(c) Period of Restriction and Other Restrictions.  Except as otherwise provided in a Participant's Award Agreement,
upon a termination of employment or, pursuant to Section 19, in the event of a Change in Control or Subsidiary Disposition, an
Award of Restricted Stock shall have a minimum Period of Restriction of three years, which period may, at the discretion of the
Committee, lapse on a pro-rated, graded, or cliff basis (as specified in an Award Agreement).  The Committee shall impose such
other conditions and/or restrictions on any Shares of Restricted Stock granted pursuant to the Plan as it may deem advisable
including, without limitation, a requirement that Participants pay a stipulated purchase price for each Share of Restricted Stock, a
requirement that the issuance of Shares of Restricted Stock be delayed, restric tions based upon the achievement of specific
performance goals, additional time-based restrictions, and/or restrictions under Applicable Laws, or holding requirements or sale
restrictions placed on the Shares by the Company upon vesting of such Restricted Stock. As soon as practicable following the grant
of Restricted Stock, the Shares of Restricted Stock shall be
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registered in the Participant's name in certificate or book-entry form.  If a certificate is issued, it shall bear an appropriate legend
referring to the restrictions and it shall be held by the Company, or its agent, on behalf of the Participant until the Period of
Restriction has lapsed or otherwise been satisfied.  If the Shares are registered in book-entry form, the restrictions shall be placed
on the book-entry registration.  

(d) Removal of Restrictions.  Subject to Applicable Laws, Restricted Stock shall become freely transferable by the
Participant after the last day of the Period of Restriction applicable thereto.  Once Restricted Stock is released from the restrictions,
the Participant shall be entitled to receive a certificate evidencing the Shares.

(e) Voting Rights.  Unless otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in a Participant's Award Agreement, to
the extent permitted or required by Applicable Laws.  Participants holding Shares of Restricted Stock granted hereunder may
exercise full voting rights with respect to those Shares during the Period of Restriction.

(f) Dividends and Other Distributions.  Except as otherwise provided in a Participant's Award Agreement, during the
Period of Restriction, Participants holding Shares of Restricted Stock shall receive all regular cash Dividends paid with respect to
all Shares while they are so held, and, except as otherwise determined by the Committee, all other distributions paid with respect to
such Restricted Stock shall be credited to Participants subject to the same restrictions on transferability and forfeitability as the
Restricted Stock with respect to which they were paid and paid at such time following full vesting as are paid the Shares of
Restricted Stock with respect to which such distributions were made.

(g) Termination of Employment or Service.  Each Award Agreement shall set forth the extent to which the Participant
shall have the right to retain unvested Restricted Stock following termination of the Participant's employment or, if the Participant
is a Director or Consultant, service with the Company and its Subsidiaries.  Such provisions shall be determined in the sole
discretion of the Committee, need not be uniform among all Awards of Restricted Stock, and may reflect distinctions based on the
reasons for termination of employment or service.

9. Restricted Stock Units.

(a) Grant of Restricted Stock Units.  Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, Restricted Stock Units may be
granted to Participants in such amounts and upon such terms, and at any time and from time to time, as shall be determined by the
Committee.

(b) Award Agreement.  Each grant of Restricted Stock Units shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall
specify the applicable Period of Restriction, the number of Restricted Stock Units granted, and such other provisions as the
Committee shall determine.

(c) Value of Restricted Stock Units.  The initial value of a Restricted Stock Unit shall equal the Fair Market Value of a
Share on the date of grant; provided, however, that this restriction shall not apply to Awards that are adjusted pursuant to Section
16.
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(d) Period of Restriction.  Except as otherwise provided in a Participant's Award Agreement, upon a termination of
employment or, pursuant to Section 17, in the event of a Change in Control or Subsidiary Disposition, an Award of Restricted Stock
Units shall have a minimum Period of Restriction of three (3) years, which period may, at the discretion of the Committee, lapse on
a pro-rated, graded, or cliff basis.

(e) Form and Timing of Payment.  Except as otherwise provided in Section 17 or a Participant's Award Agreement,
payment of Restricted Stock Units shall be made at a specified settlement date that shall not be earlier than the last day of the
Period of Restriction.  The Committee, in its sole discretion, may pay earned Restricted Stock Units by delivery of Shares or by
payment in cash of an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of such Shares (or a combination thereof).  The Committee may
provide that settlement of Restricted Stock Units shall be deferred, on a mandatory basis or at the election of the Participant.

(f) Voting Rights.  A Participant shall have no voting rights with respect to any Restricted Stock Units granted
hereunder.

(g) Termination of Employment or Service.  Each Award Agreement shall set forth the extent to which the Participant
shall have the right to receive a payout respecting an Award of Restricted Stock Units following termination of the Participant's
employment or, if the Participant is a Director or Consultant, service with the Company and its Subsidiaries.  Such provisions shall
be determined in the sole discretion of the Committee, need not be uniform among all Restricted Stock Units, and may reflect
distinctions based on the reasons for termination of employment or service.

(h) At the discretion of the Committee, Restricted Stock Units granted pursuant to the Plan may provide Participants
with the right to receive Dividend Equivalents, which may be paid currently or credited to an account for the Participants, and may
be settled in cash and/or Shares, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, subject in each case to such terms and
conditions as the Committee shall establish.

10. Performance Shares.

(a) Grant of Performance Shares.  Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, Performance Shares may be granted
to Participants in such amounts and upon such terms, and at any time and from time to time, as shall be determined by the
Committee.

(b) Award Agreement.  Each grant of Performance Shares shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify
the applicable Performance Period and Performance Measure(s), the number of Performance Shares granted, and such other
provisions as the Committee shall determine.

(c) Value of Performance Shares.  The initial value of a Performance Share shall equal the Fair Market Value of a Share
on the date of grant; provided, however, that this restriction shall not apply to Awards that are adjusted pursuant to Section 16.

(d) Form and Timing of Payment.  Except as otherwise provided in Section 17 or a Participant's Award Agreement,
payment of Performance Shares shall be made at a specified
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settlement date that shall not be earlier than the last day of the Performance Period.  The Committee, in its sole discretion, may pay
earned Performance Shares by delivery of Shares or by payment in cash of an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of such
Shares (or a combination thereof).  The Committee may provide that settlement of Performance Shares shall be deferred, on a
mandatory basis or at the election of the Participant.

(e) Voting Rights.  A Participant shall have no voting rights with respect to any Performance Shares granted hereunder.

(f) Termination of Employment or Service.  Each Award Agreement shall set forth the extent to which the Participant
shall have the right to receive a payout respecting an Award of Performance Shares following termination of the Participant's
employment or, if the Participant is a Consultant, service with the Company and its Subsidiaries.  Such provisions shall be
determined in the sole discretion of the Committee, need not be uniform among all Participants, and may reflect distinctions based
on the reasons for termination of employment or service

11. Other Stock-Based Awards.

(a) Grant.  The Committee shall have the right to grant other Awards that may include, without limitation, the grant of
Shares based on attainment of performance goals established by the Committee, the payment of Shares as a bonus or in lieu of cash
based on attainment of performance goals established by the Committee, and the payment of Shares in lieu of cash under other
Company incentive or bonus programs.

(b) Period of Restriction.  Except as otherwise provided in a Participant's Award Agreement, upon a termination of
employment or, pursuant to Section 17, in the event of a Change in Control or Subsidiary Disposition, Awards granted pursuant to
this Section 12 shall have a minimum Period of Restriction of three years, which period may, at the discretion of the Committee,
lapse on a pro-rated, graded, or cliff basis (as specified in an Award Agreement).  Notwithstanding the above, the payment of
Shares in lieu of cash under other Company incentive or bonus programs shall not be subject to the minimum Period of Restriction
limitations described above.

(c) Payment of Other Stock-Based Awards.  Subject to Section 11(b) hereof, payment under or settlement of any such
Awards shall be made in such manner and at such times as the Committee may determine.  The Committee may provide that
settlement of Other Stock-Based Awards shall be deferred, on a mandatory basis or at the election of the Participant.

(d) Termination of Employment or Service.  The Committee shall determine the extent to which the Participant shall
have the right to receive Other Stock-Based Awards following termination of the Participant's employment or, if the Participant is a
Director or Consultant, service with the Company and its Subsidiaries.  Such provisions shall be determined in the sole discretion
of the Committee, such provisions may be included in an agreement entered into with each Participant, but need not be uniform
among all Other Stock-Based Awards, and may reflect distinctions based on the reasons for termination of employment or service.

9



 

12. Performance-Based Exception.

(a) The Committee may specify that the attainment of one or more of the Performance Measures set forth in this Section
12 shall determine the degree of granting, vesting and/or payout with respect to Awards that the Committee intends will qualify for
the Performance-Based Exception.  The performance goals to be used for such Awards shall be chosen from among the following
performance measures (the "Performance Measures"): earnings, earnings before interest and taxes, earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, earnings per share, economic value created, market share, net income (before or after taxes),
operating income, adjusted net income after capital charge, return on assets, return on capital (based on earnings or cash flow),
return on equity, return on investment, revenue, cash flow, operating margin, share price, total stockholder return, total market
value, and strategic business criteria, consisting of one or more objectives based on meeting specified market penetration goals,
productivity measures, geographic business expansion goals, cost targets, customer satisfaction or employee satisfaction goals,
goals relating to merger synergies, management of employment practices and employee benefits, or supervision of litigation or
information technology, and goals relating to acquisitions or divestitures of subsidiaries, affiliates or joint ventures.  The targeted
level or levels of performance with respect to such Performance Measures may be established at such levels and on such terms as
the Committee may determine, in its discretion, on a corporate-wide basis or with respect to one or more business units, divisions,
subsidiaries, business segments or functions, and in either absolute terms or relative to the performance of one or more comparable
companies or an index covering multiple companies.  Awards that are not intended to qualify for the Performance-Based Exception
may be based on these or such other performance measures as the Committee may determine.

(b) Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, measurement of performance goals with respect to the Performance
Measures above shall exclude the impact of charges for restructurings, discontinued operations, extraordinary items, and other
unusual or non-recurring items, as well as the cumulative effects of tax or accounting changes, each as determined in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles or identified in the Company's financial statements, notes to the financial statements,
management's discussion and analysis or other filings with the SEC, as well as any other items determined in accordance with
Section 18(b).

(c) Performance goals may differ for Awards granted to any one Participant or to different Participants.

(d) Achievement of performance goals in respect of Awards intended to qualify under the Performance-Based Exception
shall be measured over a Performance Period specified in the Award Agreement, and the goals shall be established not later than 90
days after the beginning of the Performance Period or, if less than 90 days, the number of days which is equal to 25% of the
relevant Performance Period applicable to the Award.

(e) The Committee shall have the discretion to adjust the determinations of the degree of attainment of the pre-
established performance goals; provided, however, that Awards that are designed to qualify for the Performance-Based Exception
may not be adjusted upward (the Committee may, in its discretion, adjust such Awards downward).
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13. Transferability of Awards.  Incentive Stock Options may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated
or hypothecated, other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and shall be exercisable during a Participant's
lifetime only by such Participant.  Other Awards shall be transferable to members of the Participant's Immediate Family to the
extent provided in the Award Agreement, except that no Award may be transferred for consideration.  

14. Taxes.  The Company shall have the power and right, prior to the delivery of Shares pursuant to an Award, to deduct or
withhold, or require a participant to remit to the Company (or a Subsidiary), an amount (in cash or Shares) sufficient to satisfy any
applicable tax withholding requirements applicable to an Award.  Whenever under the Plan payments are to be made in cash, such
payments shall be net of an amount sufficient to satisfy any applicable tax withholding requirements.  Subject to such restrictions as
the Committee may prescribe, in the event that an Award of Restricted Stock shall become taxable to a Participant during any
Company-imposed blackout period, a Participant may satisfy all or a portion of any tax withholding requirements by electing to
have the Company withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount to be withheld up to the minimum statutory tax
withholding rate (or such other rate that will not result in a negative accounting impact).

15. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares.

(a) Shares shall not be issued pursuant to the exercise of an Award unless the exercise of such Award and the issuance
and delivery of such Shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all Applicable Laws, and shall be further subject to the approval of
counsel for the Company with respect to such compliance.  

(b) As a condition to the exercise of an Award, the Company may require the person exercising such Award to represent
and warrant at the time of any such exercise that the Shares are being purchased only for investment and without any present
intention to sell or distribute such Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a representation is required by any
Applicable Laws.

16. Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization.  In the event of any equity restructuring (within the meaning of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123R), such as a stock dividend, stock split, spinoff, rights offering, or recapitalization through a large,
nonrecurring cash dividend the Committee shall cause there to be an equitable adjustment in the number and kind of Shares that
may be delivered under the Plan, the individual limits set forth in Section 3(b), and, with respect to outstanding Awards, in the
number and kind of Shares subject to outstanding Awards, the Exercise Price, grant price or other price of Shares subject to
outstanding Awards, any performance conditions relating to Shares, the market price of Shares, or per-Share results, and other
terms and conditions of outst anding Awards, to prevent dilution or enlargement of rights.  In the event of any other change in
corporate capitalization, such as a merger, consolidation, or liquidation, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, cause there to be
such equitable adjustment as described in the foregoing sentence, to prevent dilution or enlargement of rights; provided, however,
that, unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the number of Shares subject to any Award shall always be rounded down to a
whole number.  Adjustments made by the Committee pursuant to this Section 16 shall be final, binding, and conclusive.
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17. Change in Control, Cash-Out and Termination of Underwater Options/SARs, and Subsidiary Disposition.

(a) Change in Control.  Except as otherwise provided in a Participant's Award Agreement or pursuant to Section 17(b),
upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, unless otherwise specifically prohibited under Applicable Laws:

(i) any and all outstanding Options and SARs granted hereunder shall become immediately exercisable;

(ii) any Period of Restriction or other restriction imposed on Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, and Other
Stock-Based Awards shall lapse; and

(iii) any and all Performance Shares and other Awards (if performance-based) shall vest on a pro-rata monthly
basis, including full credit for partial months elapsed, and will be paid (A) based on the level of performance achieved as of
the date of the Change in Control, if determinable, or (B) at the target level, if not determinable.  The amount of the vested
Award may be computed under the following formula:  total Award number of Shares times (number of full months elapsed
in shortest possible vesting period divided by number of full months in shortest possible vesting period) times percent
performance level achieved immediately prior to the specified effective date of the Change in Control.

(b) Cash-Out and Termination of Underwater Options/SARs.  The Committee may, in its sole discretion, provide that (i)
all outstanding Options and SARs shall be terminated upon the occurrence of a Change in Control and that each Participant shall
receive, with respect to each Share subject to such Options or SARs, an amount in cash equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value
of a Share immediately prior to the occurrence of the Change in Control over the Option Exercise Price or the SAR grant price; and
(ii) Options and SARs outstanding as of the date of the Change in Control may be cancelled and terminated without payment
therefore if the Fair Market Value of a Share as of the date of the Change in Control is less than the Option Exercise Price or the
SAR grant price.

(c) Subsidiary Disposition.  The Committee shall have the authority, exercisable either in advance of any actual or
anticipated Subsidiary Disposition or at the time of an actual Subsidiary Disposition and either at the time of the grant of an Award
or at any time while an Award remains outstanding, to provide for the automatic full vesting and exercisability of one or more
outstanding unvested Awards under the Plan and the termination of restrictions on transfer and repurchase or forfeiture rights on
such Awards, in connection with a Subsidiary Disposition, but only with respect to those Participants who are at the time engaged
primarily in Continuous Service with the Subsidiary involved in such Subsidiary Disposition.  The Committee also shall have the
authority to condition any such Award vesting and exercisability or release f rom such limitations upon the subsequent termination
of the affected Participant's Continuous Service with that Subsidiary within a specified period following the effective date of the
Subsidiary Disposition.  The Committee may provide that any Awards so vested or released from such limitations in connection
with a Subsidiary Disposition, shall remain fully exercisable until the expiration or sooner termination of the Award.
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18. Amendment, Suspension or Termination of the Plan.

(a) Amendment, Modification and Termination.  The Board may at any time and from time to time, alter, amend,
suspend or terminate the Plan in whole or in part; provided, however, that no amendment that requires stockholder approval in
order for the Plan to continue to comply with the New York Stock Exchange listing standards or any rule promulgated by the SEC
or any securities exchange on which Shares are listed or any other Applicable Laws shall be effective unless such amendment shall
be approved by the requisite vote of stockholders of the Company entitled to vote thereon within the time period required under
such applicable listing standard or rule.

(b) Adjustment of Awards Upon the Occurrence of Certain Unusual or Nonrecurring Events.  The Committee may make
adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the criteria included in, Awards in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events
(including, without limitation, the events described in Section 16) affecting the Company or the financial statements of the
Company or of changes in Applicable Laws, regulations, or accounting principles, whenever the Committee determines that such
adjustments are appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made
available under the Plan.  With respect to any Awards intended to comply with the Performance-Based Exception, unless otherwise
determined by the Committee, any such exception shall be specified at such times and in such manner as will not cause such
Awards to fail to qualify under the Performance-Based Exception.

(c) Awards Previously Granted.  No termination, amendment or modification of the Plan or of any Award shall
adversely affect in any material way any Award previously granted under the Plan without the written consent of the participant
holding such Award, unless such termination, modification or amendment is required by Applicable Laws and except as otherwise
provided herein.

(d) No Repricing.  Except for adjustments made pursuant to Section 16, no amendment shall reduce the Exercise Price
of outstanding Options or the grant price of outstanding SARs, nor may any outstanding Options or outstanding SARs be
surrendered to the Company as consideration for the grant of new Options or SARs with a lower Exercise Price or grant price,
without the approval of the stockholders of the Company.

(e) Compliance with the Performance-Based Exception.  If it is intended that an Award comply with the requirements of
the Performance-Based Exception, the Committee may apply any restrictions it deems appropriate such that the Awards maintain
eligibility for the Performance-Based Exception.  If changes are made to Code Section 162(m) or regulations promulgated
thereunder to permit greater flexibility with respect to any Award or Awards available under the Plan, the Committee may, subject
to this Section 18, make any adjustments to the Plan and/or Award Agreements it deems appropriate.

19. Reservation of Shares.

(a) The Company, during the term of the Plan, will at all times reserve and keep available such number of Shares as
shall be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Plan.
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(b) The inability of the Company to obtain authority from any regulatory body having jurisdiction, which authority is
deemed by the Company's counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any Shares hereunder, shall relieve the
Company of any liability in respect of the failure to issue or sell such Shares as to which such requisite authority shall not have
been obtained.

20. Rights of Participants.

(a) Continued Service.  The Plan shall not confer upon any Participant any right with respect to continuation of
employment or consulting relationship with the Company, nor shall it interfere in any way with his or her right or the Company's
right to terminate his or her employment or consulting relationship at any time, with or without cause.

(b) Participant.  No Employee, Director or Consultant shall have the right to be selected to receive an Award under the
Plan, or, having been so selected, to be selected to receive future Awards.

21. Successors.  All obligations of the Company under the Plan and with respect to Awards shall be binding on any successor to
the Company, whether the existence of such successor is the result of a direct or indirect purchase, merger, consolidation, or other
event, or a sale or disposition of all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of the Company and references to the
"Company" herein and in any Award agreements shall be deemed to refer to such successors.

22. Legal Construction.

(a) Gender, Number and References.  Except where otherwise indicated by the context, any masculine term used herein
also shall include the feminine, the plural shall include the singular and the singular shall include the plural.  Any reference in the
Plan to a Section of the Plan either in the Plan or any Award agreement or to an act or code or to any section thereof or rule or
regulation thereunder shall be deemed to refer to such Section of the Plan, act, code, section, rule or regulation, as may be amended
from time to time, or to any successor Section of the Plan, act, code, section, rule or regulation.

(b) Severability.  In the event any provision of the Plan shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or
invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of the Plan, and the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid
provision had not been included.

(c) Requirements of Law.  The granting of Awards and the issuance of Shares or cash under the Plan shall be subject to
all Applicable Laws and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national securities exchanges as may be required.

(d) Governing Law.  To the extent not preempted by federal law, the Plan, and all agreements hereunder, shall be
construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of New York, excluding any conflicts or choice of law rule or
principle that might otherwise refer construction or interpretation of this Plan to the substantive law of another jurisdiction.
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(e) Non-Exclusive Plan.  Neither the adoption of the Plan by the Board nor its submission to the stockholders of the
Company for approval shall be construed as creating any limitations on the power of the Board or a committee thereof to adopt
such other incentive arrangements as it may deem desirable.

(f) Code Section 409A Compliance.  To the extent applicable, it is intended that this Plan and any Awards granted
hereunder comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated
with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service ("Section 409A").  Any
provision that would cause the Plan or any Award granted hereunder to fail to satisfy Section 409A shall have no force or effect
until amended to comply with Section 409A, which amendment may be retroactive to the extent permitted by Section 409A.
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS

1. Definitions.  As used in the Plan and any Award Agreement, the following definitions shall apply:

"Applicable Laws" means the legal requirements relating to the administration of stock incentive plans, if any, under
applicable provisions of federal law, applicable state law, and the rules and regulations of any applicable stock exchange or national
market system.

"Award" means, individually or collectively, Nonqualified Stock Options, Incentive Stock Options, Stock Appreciation
Rights, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Shares, and Other Stock-Based Awards granted under the Plan.

"Award Agreement" means an agreement entered into by the Company and a Participant setting forth the terms and
provisions applicable to an Award.

"Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company.

"Cause" means, with respect to any Participant (i) gross negligence or willful misconduct, as the case may be, in the
performance of the material responsibilities of the Participant's office or position; (ii) the willful and continued failure of the
Participant to perform substantially the Participant's duties with the Company or any Subsidiary (other than any such failure
resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness); (iii) the Participant is convicted of, or pleads guilty or nolo contendere
to, a felony within the meaning of U.S. Federal, state or local law (other than a traffic violation); (iv) the Participant having
willfully divulged, furnished or made accessible to anyone other than the Company or any Subsidiary, or any of their respective
directors, officers, employees, auditors and legal advisors, otherwise tha n in the ordinary course of business, any confidential or
proprietary information of the Company or such Subsidiary; or (v) any act or failure to act by the Participant, which, under the
provisions of applicable law, disqualifies the Participant from performing his or her duties or serving in his or her then current
capacity with the Company or a Subsidiary; provided, however, that with respect to a Participant who has an employment
agreement with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries which has a definition of "cause", the definition contained therein shall
govern.

"Change in Control" means the first to occur of the following events:

1. Any Person, other than a Person who as of the date the Plan is first approved by the Board is the owner of at least 8% of the
combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of
directors (the "Outstanding Company Voting Securities"), becomes (A) a "beneficial owner," as such term is used in Rule 13d-3 of
the Exchange Act, of at least one-quarter but less than one-half of the Outstanding Company Voting Securities, unless such
acquisition has been approved within 30 days thereafter by at least a majority of the Incumbent Board (as defined in clause (2)
below taking into account the provisos), or (B) a "beneficial owner," as such term is used in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at
least one-half of the Out standing Company Voting Securities; provided, however, that, for purposes of this definition, the following
acquisitions shall not constitute a Change in Control: (I) any acquisition directly from the Company, other than an acquisition by
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virtue of the exercise of a conversion privilege unless the security being so converted was itself acquired directly from the
Company, (II) any acquisition by the Company, (III) any acquisition by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or
maintained by the Company or any of its affiliates, or (IV) any acquisition pursuant to a transaction which complies with clauses
(A), (B) and (C) of paragraph 3 of this definition; or

2. Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (such Board, and any Board consisting of individuals who
hereafter replace such individuals or otherwise join the Board in accordance with the terms of the proviso to this sentence, the
"Incumbent Board") cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual
becoming a director subsequent to when the Plan is first approved by the Board whose election, or nomination for election by the
Company's stockholders, was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall
be considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any such
individual whose initial assumption of office occ urs as a result of an actual or threatened election contest with respect to the
election or removal of directors or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a Person other
than the Board; or

3. Consummation of a reorganization, merger, consolidation or a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets
of the Company (each, a "Business Combination"), in each case unless, following such Business Combination, (A) all or
substantially all of the individuals and entities that were the beneficial owners of the outstanding Shares (the "Outstanding
Company Common Stock") and the Outstanding Company Voting Securities, immediately prior to such Business Combination,
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the then-outstanding shares of common stock and more than 50% of the
combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, as the case
may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combinat ion (including, without limitation, a corporation that, as a result
of such transaction, owns the Company or all or substantially all of the Company's assets either directly or through one or more
subsidiaries) in substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of the
Outstanding Company Common Stock and the Outstanding Company Voting Securities, as the case may be, (B) no Person (other
than the Company, any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or such corporation resulting from such Business
Combination) beneficially owns directly or indirectly, 20% or more of, respectively, the outstanding shares of common stock of the
corporation resulting from such Business Combination or the outstanding voting securities of such corporation entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors, except to the extent that such ownership existed prior to the Business Combination or to the
extent that such Business Combination has been approved w ithin 30 days thereafter by at least a majority of the Incumbent Board,
and (C) at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination
were members of the Incumbent Board at the time of the execution of the initial agreement or of the action of the Board providing
for such Business Combination, whichever occurs first; or
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4. The approval by the stockholders of the Company of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Committee" means the Committee, as specified in Section 2(a), appointed by the Board to administer the Plan.

"Company" means Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and any successor thereto, as provided in
Section 23 herein.

"Consultant" means any consultant or advisor to the Company or a Subsidiary.

"Continuous Service" means that the provision of services to the Company or any Subsidiary in any capacity by an
Employee is not interrupted or terminated.  Continuous Service shall not be considered interrupted in the case of (i) any leave of
absence approved by the Company or (ii) transfers between locations of the Company or between the Company, any Subsidiary, or
any successor.  A leave of absence approved by the Company shall include sick leave, military leave, or any other personal leave
approved by an authorized representative of the Company.  For purposes of Incentive Stock Options, no such leave may exceed 90
days, unless reemployment upon expiration of such leave is guaranteed by statute or contract.

"Director" means any individual who is a member of the Board of Directors of the Company or a Subsidiary who is not an
Employee and is not designated or elected to serve as a director by the holders of the Company's Series B convertible preferred
stock, or the holders of any other securities of the Company, other than Shares, voting separately as a class.

"Dividend" means the dividends declared and paid on Shares subject to an Award.

"Dividend Equivalent" means, with respect to Shares subject to an Award, a right to be paid an amount equal to the
Dividends declared and paid on an equal number of outstanding Shares.

"Employee" means any employee of the Company or a Subsidiary.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

"Exercise Price" means the price at which a Share may be purchased by a Participant pursuant to an Option.

"Fair Market Value" means, as of any date, the value of a Share equal to (i) the closing sale price of a Share on the New
York Stock Exchange on the date of determination or (ii) if there is no sale of Shares on that date, the closing sale price of a Share
on the last trading date on which sales were reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

"Full-Value Award" means Awards other than Options, SARs, or other Awards for which the Participant pays the grant date
intrinsic value directly or by forgoing a right to receive a cash payment from the Company.  
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"Immediate Family" means a Participant's children, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, stepparents, grandparents, spouse,
former spouse, siblings, nieces, nephews, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law,
including adoptive relationships or any person sharing the Participant's household (other than a tenant or employee).

"Incentive Stock Option" or "ISO" means an Option intended to qualify as an incentive stock option within the meaning of
Section 422 of the Code.

"Nonqualified Stock Option" means an Option that is not intended to meet the requirement of Section 422 of the Code.

"Option" means an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock Option granted under the Plan, as described in Section
6.

"Other Stock-Based Award" means a Share-based or Share-related Award granted pursuant to Section 11 herein.

"Participant" means a current or former Employee, Director or Consultant who has rights relating to an outstanding Award.

"Performance-Based Exception" means the performance-based exception from the tax deductibility limitations of Code
Section 162(m).

"Performance Measures" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12(a).

"Performance Period" means the period during which a performance measure must be met.

"Performance Share" means an Award granted to a Participant, as described in Section 10 herein.

"Period of Restriction" means the period Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units or Other Stock-Based Awards are subject
to a substantial risk of forfeiture and are not transferable, as provided in Sections 8, 9 and 11 herein.

"Person" means person as such term is used in Section 3(a)(9) and 13(d) of the Exchange Act.

"Plan" means the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.

"Prior Plans" means the Company's 1997 Stock Option Plan, 2000 Stock Option Plan and 2003 Stock Option Plan.

"Restricted Stock" means an Award granted to a Participant, as described in Section 8.

"Restricted Stock Units" means an Award granted to a Participant, as described in Section 9.
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“Retirement” means:

1. With respect to all Awards made prior to March 19, 2007 and all Awards made to Employees prior to May 3, 2007,
a Participant’s termination of employment by the Company and its Subsidiaries at or after age 63 other than for
Cause.

2. With respect to all Awards made to Directors on or after March 19, 2007, the termination of a Director’s service,
other than by reason of death or removal for cause (under applicable law), after at least four years of service.

3. With respect to all Awards made to Employees on or after May 3, 2007, the termination of an Employee’s
employment from the Company and its Subsidiaries, other than by reason of death or for Cause, at or after age 62,
provided that the Employee has at least five years of employment with the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries.

"SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Share" means a share of the common stock, $1.00 par value, of the Company, subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 16.

"Stock Appreciation Right" or "SAR" means an Award granted to a Participant, either alone or in connection with a related
Option, as described in Section 7.

"Subsidiary" has the meaning ascribed to such term in Code Section 424(f).

"Subsidiary Disposition" means the disposition by the Company of its equity holdings in any Subsidiary effected by a
merger or consolidation involving that Subsidiary, the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of that Subsidiary or the
Company's sale or distribution of substantially all of the outstanding capital stock of such Subsidiary.

"Voting Securities" means voting securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of Directors.
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Exhibit 10.2
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT

(Employee)

NOTICE OF STOCK OPTION GRANT
Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation (the “Company”) grants to the Optionee named below an option (the “Option”) to purchase, in
accordance with the terms of the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and this nonqualified
stock option agreement (this “Agreement”), the number of shares of Common Stock of the Company (the “Shares”) at the exercise
price per share (the “Exercise Price”) as follows:

OPTIONEE  
OPTIONS GRANTED [                  ] Shares

EXERCISE PRICE PER SHARE [The closing price of the Company’s stock on the Date
of Grant]

DATE OF GRANT  
EXPIRATION DATE  

VESTING SCHEDULE Options will vest in four substantially equal
installments on the following dates, subject to the
Optionee being employed by the Company on each
such date:

 Vesting Date Options Vesting
[First Anniversary of the
Date of Grant]

[25% of Award]

[Second Anniversary of the
Date of Grant]

[25% of Award]

[Third Anniversary of the
Date of Grant]

[25% of Award]

[Fourth Anniversary of the
Date of Grant]

[25% of Award]

AGREEMENT

1. Grant of Option.  The Company hereby grants to the Optionee the Option to purchase the Shares at the Exercise Price,
subject to the terms, definitions and provisions of the Plan and this Agreement.  All terms, provisions, and conditions
applicable to the Option set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are incorporated by reference.  Other than with respect
to paragraph b of Section 4 hereof, to the extent any provision hereof is inconsistent with a provision of the Plan the
provisions of the Plan will govern.  All capitalized terms that are used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined herein
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

2. Exercise of Option.

a. Right to Exercise.  This Option shall be exercisable on or prior to the expiration date set forth above (the “Expiration
Date”), in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth above (the “Vesting Schedule”) and with the applicable
provisions of the Plan and this Agreement.  In no event may this Option be exercised after the Expiration Date.

 
b. Method of Exercise.  This Option shall be exercisable only by delivery of an exercise notice (the “Exercise Notice”)

which shall state the election to exercise the Option, the whole number of



    

Shares in respect of which the Option is being exercised and such other provisions as may be required by the
Committee.  Such Exercise Notice shall be signed by the Optionee and shall be delivered by mail or fax, to the
Company’s designee accompanied by payment of the Exercise Price.  The Company may require the Optionee to
furnish or execute such other documents as the Company shall reasonably deem necessary (i) to evidence such
exercise and (ii) to comply with or satisfy the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Exchange
Act, or any Applicable Laws.  The Option shall be deemed to be exercised upon receipt by the Company’s designee
of such written notice accompanied by the Exercise Price.

c. Taxes.  Pursuant to Section 14 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and the right to deduct or withhold, or
require the Optionee to remit to the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy any applicable tax withholding
requirements applicable to this Option.  The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon the Optionee’s
satisfaction of such withholding obligations.  To the extent permitted by the Committee, the Optionee may elect to
satisfy all or part of such withholding requirement by tendering previously owned Shares or by having the Company
withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum statutory tax withholding rate that could be
imposed on the transaction (or such other rate that will not result in a negative accounting impact).  Such election
shall be irrevocable, made in writing, signed by the Optionee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or limitations
that the Co mmittee, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.

3. Method of Payment.  Pursuant to Section 6(f) of the Plan and subject to such limitations as the Committee may impose
(including prohibition of one or more of the following payment methods), payment of the Exercise Price may be made in
cash or by check, by delivery of shares of Common Stock of the Company or a combination thereof.

4. Termination of Employment and Expiration of Exercise Period.  

a. Termination of Employment.  If the Optionee’s employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries is terminated,
the Optionee may exercise all or part of this Option prior to the expiration dates set forth in paragraph b. herein, but
only to the extent that the Option had become vested before the Optionee’s employment terminated.
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the termination of Optionee’s employment is due to Retirement or death, the
following shall apply:

1. If the Optionee’s employment is terminated due to Retirement, this Option shall become 100% vested and shall
remain exercisable until the expiration dates determined pursuant to paragraph b. of this Section.
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Option shall expire immediately upon the Retirement of the Optionee if the
Retirement occurs prior to December 31 of the year in which this Option was granted.

2. If the Optionee’s employment is terminated due to death, this Option shall become 100% vested and shall remain
exercisable until the expiration dates determined pursuant to paragraph b. of this Section.

When the Optionee’s employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries terminates (except when due to Retirement
or death), this Option shall expire immediately with respect to the number of Shares for which the Option is not yet
vested.  If the Optionee dies after termination of employment, but before the expiration of the Option, all or part of
this Option may be exercised (prior to expiration) by the personal representative of the Optionee or by any person
who has acquired this Option directly from the Optionee by will, bequest or inheritance, but only to the extent that
the Option was vested and exercisable upon termination of the Optionee’s employment.

b. Expiration of Exercise Period.  Upon termination of the Optionee’s employment with the Company and its
Subsidiaries, the Option shall expire on the earliest of the following occasions:
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i. The Expiration Date;

ii.The date three months following the termination of the Optionee’s employment for any reason other than
death, Cause or Retirement;

iii. The date three years following the termination of the Optionee’s employment due to Retirement;

iv. In the event of the death of the Optionee, the date three months following the qualification of a
representative of the Optionee’s estate; or

v.The date of termination of the Optionee’s employment for Cause.
  

5. Transferability of Option.  The Option may not be transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise disposed of, except (i) by
will or the laws of descent and distribution or (ii) for no consideration, subject to such rules and conditions as may be
established by the Committee, to a member or members of the Optionee’s Immediate Family.  For purposes of this Option
Agreement, the Optionee’s “Immediate Family” means the Optionee’s children, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents,
stepparents, grandparents, spouse, former spouse, siblings, nieces, nephews, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, including adoptive relationships or any person sharing the Optionee’s
household (other than a tenant or employee).

6. Miscellaneous Provisions.  

a. Rights as a Stockholder.  Neither the Optionee nor the Optionee’s transferee or representative shall have any rights
as a stockholder with respect to any Shares subject to this Option until the Option has been exercised and Share
certificates have been issued to the Optionee, transferee or representative, as the case may be.

 
b. Regulatory Compliance and Listing.  The issuance or delivery of any certificates representing Shares issuable

pursuant to this Agreement may be postponed by the Committee for such period as may be required to comply with
any applicable requirements under the federal or state securities laws, any applicable listing requirements of the New
York Stock Exchange, and any applicable requirements under any other Applicable Law, and the Company shall not
be obligated to deliver any such Shares to the Optionee if either delivery thereof would constitute a violation of any
provision of any law or of any regulation of any governmental authority or the New York Stock Exchange, or the
Optionee shall not yet have complied fully with the provisions of Paragraph 2(c) hereof.  Assuming compliance with
Applicable Laws, for income tax purposes, the Shares shall be considered transferred to the Optionee on the date on
which the Option is exercised with respect to such Shares.  The Company shall not be liable to the Optionee for any
damages relating to any delays in issuing the certificates to the Optionee, any loss of the certificates, or any mistakes
or errors in the issuance of the certificates or the certificates themselves.

c. Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of
New York, excluding any conflicts or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise refer construction or
interpretation of this Agreement to the substantive law of another jurisdiction.  

d. Modification or Amendment.  This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by
the parties hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 16 of the Plan may be
made without such written agreement.

e. Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the
illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be
construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been included.
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f. References to Plan.  All references to the Plan shall be deemed references to the Plan as may be amended.

g. Headings.  The captions used in this Agreement are inserted for convenience and shall not be deemed a part of this
Option for construction or interpretation.

h. Interpretation.  Any dispute regarding the interpretation of this Agreement shall be submitted by the Optionee or by
the Company forthwith to the Board or the Committee, which shall review such dispute at its next regular meeting.
 The resolution of such dispute by the Board or the Committee shall be final and binding on all persons.  

i. Section 409A of the Code.  The provisions of this Agreement and any payments made herein are intended to comply
with, and should be interpreted consistent with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related
regulations or other effective guidance promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the
Internal Revenue Service.

j. Signature in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with
the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

 By: ______________________________
 Name:

Title:

The Optionee represents that s/he is familiar with the terms and provisions thereof, and hereby accepts this Agreement
subject to all of the terms and provisions thereof.  The Optionee has reviewed the Plan and this Agreement in their
entirety, has had an opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement and fully understands
all provisions of this Agreement.  The Optionee hereby agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or
interpretations of the Committee upon any questions arising under the Plan or this Agreement.  

Dated:______________________________   Signed:___________________________________
 Optionee
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Exhibit 10.3
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT 

(Employee)

NOTICE OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD
Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation (the “Company”) grants to the Grantee named below, in accordance with the terms of the Phillips-
Van Heusen Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and this restricted stock unit agreement (this “Agreement”), the
number of restricted stock units (the “Restricted Stock Units” or the “Award”) provided as follows:

GRANTEE  
RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS GRANTED  

DATE OF GRANT  
VESTING SCHEDULE Restricted Stock Units will vest in three

installments on the following dates, subject to
the Grantee being employed by the Company
on each such date:

 Vesting Date Restricted Stock
Units Vesting

[Second anniversary of
the date of grant]

[25% of Award]

[Third anniversary of
the date of grant]

[25% of Award]

[Fourth anniversary of
the date of grant]

[50% of Award]

AGREEMENT

1. Grant of Award.  The Company hereby grants to the Grantee the Restricted Stock Units, subject to the terms, definitions and
provisions of the Plan and this Agreement.  All terms, provisions, and conditions applicable to the Restricted Stock Units set
forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are incorporated by reference.  To the extent any provision hereof is inconsistent
with a provision of the Plan the provisions of the Plan will govern.  All capitalized terms that are used in this Agreement
and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

2. Vesting and Settlement of Award.

a. Right to Award.  This Award shall vest in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth above (the “Vesting
Schedule”) and with the applicable provisions of the Plan and this Agreement.  

 
b. Settlement of Award.  The vested portion of this Award shall be settled as soon as practicable following the vesting

date set forth in the Vesting Schedule, but in no event later than March 15 of the year following the year in which the
Award vests.

The Company may require the Grantee to furnish or execute such documents as the Company shall reasonably deem
necessary (i) to evidence such settlement and (ii) to comply with or satisfy the requirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, the Exchange Act, Section 409A of the Code or any Applicable Laws.



    

c. Method of Settlement.  The Company shall deliver to the Grantee one Share for each vested Restricted Stock Unit,
less any Shares withheld in accordance with Paragraph 2(e) of this Agreement.  Share certificates shall be issued in
the name of the Grantee (or of the person or persons to whom such Restricted Stock Units were transferred in
accordance with Paragraph 4 of this Agreement).

d. Dividend Equivalents.  If a cash Dividend is declared on the Shares, the Grantee shall be credited with a Dividend
Equivalent in an amount of cash equal to the number of Restricted Stock Units held by the Grantee as of the
dividend record date, multiplied by the amount of the cash dividend paid per Share.  Such Dividend Equivalent shall
be paid if and when the underlying Restricted Stock Units are settled.  If a Share Dividend is declared on the Shares,
the Grantee shall be credited with a Dividend Equivalent in an amount of Shares equal to the number of Restricted
Stock Units held by the Grantee as of the dividend record date, multiplied by the amount of the Share dividend
distributed per Share.  Such Dividend Equivalent shall be settled if and when the underlying Restricted Stock Units
are settled, rounded down to the nearest whole share.  Dividend Equ ivalents shall not accrue interest prior to the
date of payment or settlement, as applicable.  

e. Taxes.  Pursuant to Section 14 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and the right to deduct or withhold, or
require the Grantee to remit to the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy any applicable tax withholding
requirements applicable to this Award.  The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon the Grantee’s
satisfaction of such withholding obligations. To the extent permitted by the Committee, the Grantee may elect to
satisfy all or part of such withholding requirement by tendering previously-owned Shares or by having the Company
withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum statutory tax withholding rate that could be
imposed on the transaction (or such other rate that will not result in a negative accounting impact).  Such election
shall be irrevocable, made in writing, signed by the Grantee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or limitations
that the Committee, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.

3. Termination of Employment.  If the Grantee’s employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries is terminated, due to the
Grantee’s (i) Retirement or (ii) death, the Award shall become 100% vested on the date of such termination of employment;
provided, however, that this Award shall be forfeited immediately if the Grantee retires prior to December 31 of the year in
which this Award was granted.

When the Grantee’s employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries terminates (except when due to Retirement or
death), this Award shall be forfeited immediately with respect to the number of Restricted Stock Units for which the Award
is not yet vested.  If the Grantee dies after termination of employment, but before the settlement of the Award, all or part of
this Award may be settled by payment to the personal representative of the Grantee or by any person who has acquired this
Award directly from the Grantee but only to the extent that the Award was vested upon termination of the Grantee’s
employment.

4. Transferability of Award.
  

The Award may not be transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise disposed of, except (i) by will or the laws of descent and
distribution or (ii) for no consideration, subject to such rules and conditions as may be established by the Committee, to a
member or members of the Grantee’s Immediate Family.  For purposes of this Award Agreement, the Grantee’s “Immediate
Family” means the Grantee’s children, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, stepparents, grandparents, spouse, former
spouse, siblings, nieces, nephews, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law,
including adoptive relationships or any person sharing the Grantee’s household (other than a tenant or employee).

5. Miscellaneous Provisions.  

a. Rights as a Stockholder.  Neither the Grantee nor the Grantee’s representative shall have any rights as a stockholder
with respect to any Shares subject to this Award, except as provided in
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Paragraph 2(d), until the Award has vested and Share certificates, if any, have been issued to the Grantee, transferee
or representative, as the case may be.  

b. Regulatory Compliance and Listing.  The issuance or delivery of any certificates representing Shares issuable
pursuant to this Agreement may be postponed by the Committee for such period as may be required to comply with
any applicable requirements under the federal or state securities laws, any applicable listing requirements of the New
York Stock Exchange, and any applicable requirements under any other Applicable Law, and the Company shall not
be obligated to deliver any such Shares to the Grantee if either delivery thereof would constitute a violation of any
provision of any law or of any regulation of any governmental authority or the New York Stock Exchange, or the
Grantee shall not yet have complied fully with the provisions of Paragraph 2(e) hereof.  The Company shall not be
liable to the Grantee for any damages relating to any delays in issuing the certificates to the Grantee, any loss of the
certificates, or any mistakes or errors in the issuance of the certificates or the certificates themselves.

c. Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of
New York, excluding any conflicts or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise refer construction or
interpretation of this Agreement to the substantive law of another jurisdiction.  

d. Modification or Amendment.  This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by
the parties hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 16 and Section 18(b) of the
Plan may be made without such written agreement.

e. Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the
illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be
construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been included.

f. References to Plan.  All references to the Plan shall be deemed references to the Plan as may be amended.

g. Headings.  The captions used in this Agreement are inserted for convenience and shall not be deemed a part of this
Award for construction or interpretation.

h. Interpretation.  Any dispute regarding the interpretation of this Agreement shall be submitted by the Grantee or by
the Company forthwith to the Board or the Committee, which shall review such dispute at its next regular meeting.
 The resolution of such dispute by the Board or the Committee shall be final and binding on all persons.  

i. Section 409A of the Code.  The provisions of this Agreement and any payments made herein are intended to comply
with, and should be interpreted consistent with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related
regulations or other effective guidance promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the
Internal Revenue Service.
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j.
j. Signature in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with

the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

 By: ______________________________
 Name:

Title:

The Grantee represents that s/he is familiar with the terms and provisions thereof, and hereby accepts this Agreement
subject to all of the terms and provisions thereof.  The Grantee has reviewed the Plan and this Agreement in their
entirety, has had an opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement and fully understands
all provisions of this Agreement.  The Grantee hereby agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or
interpretations of the Committee upon any questions arising under the Plan or this Agreement.  

Dated:______________________________   Signed:___________________________________
 Grantee
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Exhibit 10.5
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT 

(Director)

NOTICE OF STOCK OPTION GRANT
Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation (the “Company”) grants to the Optionee named below an option (the “Option”) to purchase, in
accordance with the terms of the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and this nonqualified
stock option agreement (this “Agreement”), the number of shares of Common Stock of the Company (the “Shares”) at the exercise
price per share (the “Exercise Price”) as follows:

OPTIONEE
OPTIONS GRANTED

EXERCISE PRICE PER SHARE
DATE OF GRANT

EXPIRATION DATE The date prior to the tenth anniversary of the Date
of Grant

VESTING SCHEDULE Options will vest in four substantially equal
installments on each of the first four anniversaries
of the Date of Grant

AGREEMENT

1. Grant of Option.  The Company hereby grants to the Optionee the Option to purchase the Shares at the Exercise Price,
subject to the terms, definitions and provisions of the Plan and this Agreement.  All terms, provisions, and conditions
applicable to the Option set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are incorporated by reference.  To the extent any
provision hereof is inconsistent with a provision of the Plan the provisions of the Plan will govern.  All capitalized terms
that are used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

2. Exercise of Option.

a. Right to Exercise.  This Option shall be exercisable on or prior to the expiration date set forth above (the “Expiration
Date”), in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth above (the “Vesting Schedule”) and with the applicable
provisions of the Plan and this Agreement.  In no event may this Option be exercised after the Expiration Date.

 
b. Method of Exercise.  This Option shall be exercisable only by delivery of an exercise notice (the “Exercise Notice”)

which shall state the election to exercise the Option, the whole number of Shares in respect of which the Option is
being exercised and such other provisions as may be required by the Committee.  Such Exercise Notice shall be
signed by the Optionee and shall be delivered by mail or fax, to the Company’s designee accompanied by payment
of the Exercise Price.  The Company may require the Optionee to furnish or execute such other documents as the
Company shall reasonably deem necessary (i) to evidence such exercise and (ii) to comply with or satisfy the
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Exchange Act, or any Applicable Laws.  The Option
shall be deemed to be exercised upon receipt by the Company’s designee of such written notice accompanied by the
Exercise Price.



    

No Shares will be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Option unless such issuance and such exercise shall comply
with all Applicable Laws.  Assuming such compliance, for income tax purposes, the Shares shall be considered
transferred to the Optionee on the date on which the Option is exercised with respect to such Shares.

3. Method of Payment.  Pursuant to Section 6(f) of the Plan and subject to such limitations as the Committee may impose
(including prohibition of one or more of the following payment methods), payment of the Exercise Price may be made in
cash or by check, by delivery of shares of Common Stock of the Company or a combination thereof.

4. Termination of Service and Expiration of Exercise Period.  

a. Termination of Service.  If the Optionee’s service with the Company and its Subsidiaries is terminated, the Optionee
may exercise all or part of this Option prior to the expiration dates set forth in paragraph b. herein, but only to the
extent that this Option had become vested before the Optionee’s service terminated.  Notwithstanding the foregoing,
if the Optionee’s termination of service is due to Retirement or death, the following shall apply:

1. If the Optionee’s service is terminated due to Retirement, this Option shall become 100% vested and shall
remain exercisable until the expiration dates determined pursuant to paragraph b. of this Section.
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Option shall expire immediately upon the Retirement of the Optionee if the
Retirement occurs prior to the date of the Company’s annual meeting of stockholders to be held in the year
subsequent to the year in which this Option was granted.

2. If the Optionee’s service is terminated due to death, this Option shall become 100% vested and shall remain
exercisable until the expiration dates determined pursuant to paragraph b. of this Section.

When the Optionee’s service with the Company and its Subsidiaries terminates (except when due to Retirement or
death), this Option shall expire immediately with respect to the number of Shares for which the Option is not yet vested.
 If the Optionee dies after termination of service, but before the expiration of the Option, all or part of this Option may
be exercised (prior to expiration) by the personal representative of the Optionee or by any person who has acquired this
Option directly from the Optionee by will, bequest or inheritance, but only to the extent that the Option was vested and
exercisable upon termination of the Optionee’s service.

b. Expiration of Exercise Period.  Upon termination of the Optionee’s service with the Company and its Subsidiaries,
this Option shall expire on the earliest of the following occasions:

i. The Expiration Date;

ii.The date three months following the termination of the Optionee’s service for any reason other than death,
removal for cause (under applicable law) or Retirement;

iii. The date three years following the termination of the Optionee’s service due to Retirement;
iv. In the event of the death of the Optionee, the date three months following the qualification of a

representative of the Optionee’s estate; or

v.The effective date of termination of the Optionee’s service as a Director, if the Optionee is removed for cause
under applicable law.

5. Transferability of Option.  The Option may not be transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise disposed of, except (i) by
will or the laws of descent and distribution or (ii) for no consideration, subject to such rules and conditions as may be
established by the Committee, to a member or members of the Optionee’s Immediate Family.  For purposes of this Option
Agreement, the Optionee’s “Immediate Family” means the
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Optionee’s children, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, stepparents, grandparents, spouse, former spouse, siblings, nieces,
nephews, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, including adoptive
relationships or any person sharing the Optionee’s household (other than a tenant or employee).

6. Miscellaneous Provisions.  

a. Rights as a Stockholder.  Neither the Optionee nor the Optionee’s transferee or representative shall have any rights
as a stockholder with respect to any Shares subject to this Option until the Option has been exercised and Share
certificates have been issued to the Optionee, transferee or representative, as the case may be.  

b. Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of
New York, excluding any conflicts or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise refer construction or
interpretation of this Agreement to the substantive law of another jurisdiction.  

c. Modification or Amendment.  This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by
the parties hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 16 of the Plan may be
made without such written agreement.

d. Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the
illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be
construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been included.

e. References to Plan.  All references to the Plan shall be deemed references to the Plan as may be amended.

f. Headings.  The captions used in this Agreement are inserted for convenience and shall not be deemed a part of this
Option for construction or interpretation.

g. Interpretation.  Any dispute regarding the interpretation of this Agreement shall be submitted by the Optionee or by
the Company forthwith to the Board or the Committee, which shall review such dispute at its next regular meeting.
 The resolution of such dispute by the Board or the Committee shall be final and binding on all persons.  

h. Signature in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with
the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.

i. Section 409A of the Code.  The provisions of this Agreement and any payments made herein are intended to comply
with, and should be interpreted consistent with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related
regulations or other effective guidance promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the
Internal Revenue Service.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

 By:  
 Name:  

Title:
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The Optionee represents that s/he is familiar with the terms and provisions thereof, and hereby accepts this Agreement
subject to all of the terms and provisions thereof.  The Optionee has reviewed the Plan and this Agreement in their
entirety, has had an opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement and fully understands
all provisions of this Agreement.  The Optionee hereby agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or
interpretations of the Committee upon any questions arising under the Plan or this Agreement.  

Dated:______________________________   Signed:___________________________________
 Optionee:  
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Exhibit 10.6

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of June 14, 2007, between
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (“PVH” and, together with its affiliates and subsidiaries, the
“Company”), and FRANCIS K. DUANE (the “Executive”).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Company has previously entered into an Employment Agreement with the Executive dated as of March 4,
2003 (the “Existing Agreement”), and, in connection with the Executive’s promotion to Vice Chairman, Wholesale of the
Company, desires to amend and restate the Existing Agreement so as to ensure that the Executive is retained on a full-time basis in
accordance with the terms set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company on the terms and conditions set forth herein, and agrees
that this Agreement shall amend and supercede the terms and conditions of the Existing Agreement effective as of the Effective
Date (as defined below).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto
hereby agree as follows:

1. Employment.

(a) Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective as of March 9, 2006, the date on which the Executive’s
promotion was made (the “Effective Date”).  

(b) Employment Period.  The Company agrees to continue to employ the Executive, and the Executive agrees to
continue to be employed by the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof.  The Executive shall be an employee
at will and this Agreement shall not constitute a guarantee of employment.  Each of the parties acknowledges and agrees that either
party may terminate the Executive’s employment at any time, for any reason, with or without Cause (as defined in Section 3(a)).
 The period commencing on the Effective Date and ending on the effective date of the termination of the Executive’s employment
is hereinafter referred to as the “Employment Period.”  

(c) Position and Duties.   (i)  During the Employment Period, (A) the Executive shall serve as the Vice
Chairman, Wholesale of the Company, with such duties and responsibilities as shall from time to time be assigned to him and as are
consistent and commensurate with his title and position, and (B) the Executive’s services shall be performed at the Company’s
headquarters in New York, New York as of the Effective Date or such other location as may be mutually agreed between the
Company and the Executive, except for travel,



and visits to Company offices and facilities worldwide, reasonably required to attend to the Company’s business.

(ii) During the Employment Period, and excluding any periods of vacation and sick leave to which the
Executive is entitled, the Executive agrees to devote substantially all of his business attention and time (with business time
determined in accordance with the Company’s usual and customary standards for its senior executives) to the business and affairs
of the Company and, to the extent necessary to discharge the responsibilities assigned to the Executive hereunder, to use the
Executive’s reasonable best efforts to perform faithfully and conscientiously such responsibilities.  During the Employment Period,
the Executive shall be entitled to serve as a member of the board of directors of a reasonable number of other companies, to serve
on civic and charitable boards and to manage his personal and family investments, in each case, to the extent such activities do not
materi ally interfere, in the reasonable judgment of the Company’s Board of Directors (which, for purposes of this Agreement,
includes any committee thereof, unless the context requires otherwise (the “Board”)), with the performance of his duties for the
Company and are otherwise consistent with the Company’s governance policies.

2. Compensation.

(a) Base Salary.  During the Employment Period, the Company shall pay the Executive a salary at the annual
rate of $800,000 (“Base Salary”), payable in accordance with the normal payroll procedures of the Company in effect from time to
time.  The Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed for increase at least annually by the Board pursuant to its normal performance
review policies for senior executives.  Base Salary shall not be reduced after any increase, and the term Base Salary as utilized in
this Agreement shall refer to the Executive’s annual base salary as then in effect.  

(b) Incentive and Bonus Compensation.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in the Company’s existing
and future bonus and stock option plans and other incentive compensation programs for similarly situated executives (collectively,
“Plans”), to the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such Plan under the generally applicable provisions
thereof in effect from time to time.  Such eligibility is not a guarantee of participation in or of the receipt of any award, payment or
other compensation under any Plan.  To the extent the Executive does participate in a Plan and the Plan does not expressly provide
otherwise, the Chief Executive Officer and/or the Board, as appropriate, may determine all terms of participation (including,
without limitation, the type and size of any award, payment or other compensation and the timin g and conditions of receipt thereof
by the Executive) in the Chief Executive Officer’s or the Board’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to
prohibit the Company or the Board from amending or terminating any and all Plans in its sole and absolute discretion.  Except as
otherwise provided herein, the terms of each Plan shall govern the Executive’s rights and obligations thereunder during the
Executive’s employment and upon the termination thereof.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the definition of
“Cause” hereunder shall not supersede the definition of “cause” in any Plan (unless the Plan expressly defers to the definition of
“cause” under an executive’s employment agreement) and any rights of the Executive hereunder upon and subsequent to the
termination of the Executive’s
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employment shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any right of the Executive under any Plan then in effect upon or subsequent
to a termination of employment.

(c) Benefits.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in all employee benefit and insurance plans
sponsored or maintained by the Company for similarly situated executives (including any savings, retirement, life, health and
disability plans), to the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such plan under the generally applicable
provisions thereof in effect from time to time.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to prohibit the Company or the Board from
amending or terminating any such plan in its sole and absolute discretion.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the terms of each
such plan shall govern the Executive’s rights and obligations thereunder during the Executive’s employment and upon the
termination thereof.

(d) Expenses.  The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for reasonable expenses incurred or paid by
the Executive in the performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder in accordance with the generally applicable policies and
procedures of the Company, as in effect from time to time and subject to the terms and conditions thereof.  

3. Termination of Employment.  The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate, or shall be subject to
termination at any time, as described in this Section 3.  A termination of employment shall mean that the Executive has ceased to
provide any services as an employee of the Company.

(a) Termination for Cause by the Company.  The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment with the
Company at any time for Cause.  Upon such termination, the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder
except for the payment or provision, as applicable, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) other payments,
entitlements or benefits, if any, in accordance with terms of the applicable plans, programs, arrangements or other agreements of
the Company or any affiliate thereof (other than any severance plan or policy) as to which the Executive held rights to such
payments, entitlements or benefits, whether as a participant, beneficiary or otherwise on the date of termination (� 7;Other
Benefits”).  For the avoidance of doubt, the Executive shall have no right to receive any amounts under the Company’s severance
policy upon his termination for Cause.

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean:  (1) gross negligence or willful misconduct, as
the case may be, in the performance of the material responsibilities of the Executive’s office or position, which results in material
economic harm to the Company or its affiliates or in reputational harm causing demonstrable injury to the Company or its affiliates;
(2) the willful and continued failure of the Executive to perform substantially the Executive’s duties with the Company or any
affiliate (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness), after a written demand for
substantial performance is delivered to the Executive by the Board or the Company that specifically identifies the manner in which
the Board or the Company believes that the Executive has not substantially performed the Executive’s duties ; (3) the Executive is
convicted of, or pleads guilty or nolo contendere to, a
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felony within the meaning of U.S. Federal, state or local law (other than a traffic violation); (4) the Executive having willfully
divulged, furnished or made accessible to anyone other than the Company, its directors, officers, employees, auditors and legal
advisors, otherwise than in the ordinary course of business, any Confidential Information (as hereinafter defined); or (5) any act or
failure to act by the Executive, which, under the provisions of applicable law, disqualifies the Executive from acting in any or all
capacities in which he is then acting for the Company.

(ii) For purposes of this provision, no act or failure to act, on the part of the Executive, shall be
considered “willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in bad faith or without reasonable belief that the
Executive’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company.  Any act, or failure to act, based upon authority given
pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or upon the instructions of the Board or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company or based upon the advice of counsel for the Company shall be conclusively presumed to be done, or omitted to be done,
by the Executive in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.  The Executive’s employment shall not be terminated for
“Cause” within the meaning of clause (1) or (2) above, unless the Executive has been given notice stating the basis for such
termination and he is given 20 days to cure the neglect or conduct that is the basis of any such determination.  The Board or the
Company shall determine whether the Executive has cured such neglect or conduct.

(b) Termination without Cause by the Company or for Good Reason by the Executive Prior to a Change in
Control.  The Company may also terminate the Executive’s employment with the Company at any time without Cause, and the
Executive may terminate his employment with the Company at any time for Good Reason (as defined in Section 3(f)(i)(B)).  

(i) If the Company terminates the Executive’s services without Cause or the Executive terminates his
employment with the Company for Good Reason, other than during the two-year period following a Change in Control (as defined
in Section 3(f)(i)(A)), the Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (W) the portion of the Base Salary for periods
prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (X) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to
Section 2(d), (Y) an aggregate amount (the “Severance Amount”) equal to one and a half (1.5) times the average annual Cash
Compensation (as hereinafter defined) paid to and/or accrued with respect to the Executive during the two completed fiscal years of
the Company immediately preceding the date of such termination, and (Z) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.  For
purposes of th is Agreement, “Cash Compensation” shall mean only annual base salary and annual cash bonus (if any) and, for the
avoidance of doubt, shall not include any payouts under any long-term incentive Plan.  The Severance Amount shall be paid in 36
substantially equal payments and on the same schedule that Base Salary was paid immediately prior to the Executive’s date of
termination, commencing on the first such scheduled payroll date that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the
Executive’s termination of employment, subject to the Executive’s compliance with the requirement to deliver the release
contemplated pursuant to Section 4(a).  Each such installment payment shall be treated as a separate payment as defined under
Treasury Regulation §1.409A-2(b)(2).  If the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined under the Company's policy for
determining specified employees  on the date on which he separates from service, all payments o f the Severance Amount (other
than payments that satisfy the short-term deferral rule,

4



as defined in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4), or that are treated as separation pay under Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(b)
(9)(iii) or §1.409A-1(b)(9)(v)) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that
is six months following the Executive's separation from service.  The first payment that can be made shall include the cumulative
amount of any amounts that could not be paid during such six-month period.  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill
rate (as in effect as of the first business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on all payments not
paid to the Executive prior to the first business day after the sixth month anniversary of his separation from service that otherwise
would have been paid during such six-month period had this delay prov ision not applied to the Executive and shall be paid with
the first payment after such six-month period.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, payments delayed pursuant to this six-month delay
requirement shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-month period.  For purposes
hereof, the Executive shall have a “separation from service” upon his death or other termination of employment for any reason.  

(ii) In addition, if the Company terminates the Executive’s employment with the Company without Cause
or the Executive terminates his employment with the Company for Good Reason, then the Company shall also provide to the
Executive, during the 18-month period following the Executive’s date of termination, medical, dental, life and disability insurance
coverage for the Executive and the members of his family which is not less favorable to the Executive than the group medical,
dental, life and disability insurance coverage carried by the Company for the Executive and the members of his family immediately
prior to such termination of employment; provided, however, that the obligations set forth in this sentence shall terminate to the
extent the Executive obtains comparable medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other employer during such
peri od, but the Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during such period, whether or not any such
employment would provide comparable medical and dental insurance coverage; and provided further, however, that the Executive
shall be obligated to pay an amount equal to the active employee contribution, if any, for each such coverage.  For the avoidance of
doubt, the payment of the Severance Amount shall be in lieu of any amounts payable under the Company’s severance policy (as
then in effect) and the Executive hereby waives any and all rights thereunder.

(c) Termination by Voluntary Resignation (without Good Reason) by the Executive.  The Executive may
terminate his employment with the Company without Good Reason at any time by voluntary resignation.  Upon such termination,
the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder except for the payment of (i) the portion of the Base
Salary for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any),
subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive
shall provide no less than 90 days’ prior written notice of the effective date of his resignation (other than for Good Reason).  The
Company shall continue to pay the Executive his Base Salary during such 90-day period.  The Executive acknowledges and agrees
that the Company may elect to place the Executive on paid leave for all or any part of such 90-day period.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Company, in its sole and absolute discretion, may waive the requirement for prior notice of the Executive’s
resignation or decrease the notice period, in which event the Company shall have no continuing
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obligation to pay the Executive’s Base Salary or shall only have such obligation with respect to the shortened period, as the case
may be.

(d) Disability.  The Executive’s employment shall be terminable by the Company, subject to applicable law and
the Company’s short-term and long-term disability policies then in effect, if the Executive becomes physically or mentally disabled,
whether totally or partially, such that he is prevented from performing his usual duties and services hereunder for a period of 180
consecutive days as determined by a medical doctor selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the Executive or his
legal representative  (“Disability”).  If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company due to his Disability, the
Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder, except for the payment to the Executive or his legal guardian
or representative, as appropriate, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to th e effective date of termination accrued
but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other
Benefits.

(e) Death.  If the Executive shall die during the Employment Period, this Agreement shall terminate on the date
of the Executive’s death and the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder except for the payment to the
Executive’s estate of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if
any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d) and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.

(f) Termination by the Company without Cause or by the Executive For Good Reason Subsequent to a Change
in Control.

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(A) “Change in Control” shall be deemed to occur upon the first to occur of the following
events:

(1) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)), other than a “person” who as of the Effective Date was the owner of
at least 8% of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities of the Company entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors (the “Outstanding Company Voting Securities”), becomes (A) a “beneficial
owner,” as such term is used in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at least one-quarter but less than one-half of the
Outstanding Company Voting Securities, unless such acquisition has been approved within thirty (30) days
thereafter by at least a majority of the Incumbent Board (as defined in clause (2) below taking into account the
provisos), or (B) a “beneficial owner,” as such term is us ed in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at least one-half
of the Outstanding Company Voting Securities; provided, however, that, for purposes of this Section 3(f)(i)(A)(1),
the following acquisitions shall not constitute a Change in Control:  (I) any acquisition directly
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from the Company, other than an acquisition by virtue of the exercise of a conversion privilege unless the security
being so converted was itself acquired directly from the Company, (II) any acquisition by the Company, (III) any
acquisition by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any of its
affiliates, or (IV) any acquisition pursuant to a transaction which complies with clauses (A), (B) and (C) of Section
3(f)(i)(A)(3) below;

(2) Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”)
cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual becoming a
director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders,
was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall be
considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any
such individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as a result of an actual or threatened election contest (as
such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act) with respect to the
election or removal of directors or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a
person other than the Board;

(3) Consummation of a reorganization, merger, consolidation or a sale or other disposition
of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company (each, a “Business Combination”), in each case unless,
following such Business Combination, (A) all or substantially all of the individuals and entities that were the
beneficial owners of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company (the “Outstanding Company Common
Stock”) and the Outstanding Company Voting Securities, immediately prior to such  Business Combination,
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the then-outstanding shares of common stock and more
than 50% of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination (including,
without limitation, a corporation that, as a result of such transaction, owns the Company or all or substantially all of
the Company’s assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries) in substantially the same proportions as
their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of the Outstanding Company Common Stock and
the Outstanding Company Voting Securities, as the case may be, (B) no person (other than the Company, any
employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or such corporation resulting from such Business
Combination) beneficially owns directly or indirectly, 20% or more of, respectively, the outstanding shares of
common stock of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination or the outstanding voting securities of
such corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, except to the extent that such ownership
existed prior to the Business Combination, and (C) at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the
corporation resulting from such Business Combination were
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members of the Incumbent Board at the time of the execution of the initial agreement or of the action of the Board
providing for such Business Combination, whichever occurs first; or

(4) The approval by the stockholders of the Company of a complete liquidation or
dissolution of the Company.

(B) “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events or circumstances
without the Executive’s prior written consent:

(1) the assignment to the Executive of any duties inconsistent in any material respect with
the Executive’s position (including status, offices, titles and reporting requirements), authority, duties or
responsibilities as contemplated by Section 1(c) (or following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to
such Change in Control), or any other action by the Company that results in a material diminution in such position,
authority, duties or responsibilities, excluding for this purpose an isolated, insubstantial and inadvertent action not
taken in bad faith and that is remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of notice thereof given by the
Executive and the assignment of additional or alternate duties or responsibilities to the Executive in connection with
his professional development or the reallocation of some of the Executive’s duties or responsibilities to other
executives of the Company in connection with the evolution of the Executive’s position;

(2) a reduction of the Executive’s Base Salary;

(3) the taking of any action by the Company that substantially diminishes (A) the
aggregate value of the Executive’s total compensation opportunity, and/or (B) the aggregate value of the employee
benefits provided to the Executive pursuant to the Company’s employee benefit and insurance plans as in effect on
the Effective Date (or, following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to such Change in Control);

(4) the Company requiring that the Executive’s services be rendered primarily at a
location or locations more than 35 miles from the location set forth in Section 1(c), except for travel, and visits to
Company offices and facilities worldwide, reasonably required to attend to the Company’s business; or

(5) the failure of the Company to require any successor to the Company (whether direct or
indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of
the Company to assume expressly and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent
that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.  
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(ii) If within two years after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Executive terminates his
employment with the Company for Good Reason or the Company terminates the Executive’s employment for any reason other than
death, Disability or Cause, the Company (or the then former Company subsidiary employing the Executive), or the consolidated,
surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation, merger or sale of assets, the
Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (A) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (B) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), (C) an aggregate amount
equal to two times the average annual Cash Compensation paid to and/or accrued with respect to the Executive during the two
completed fiscal years of th e Company immediately preceding the date of such termination, and (D) the payment or provision of
any Other Benefits.  The severance amount described in clause (C) of the immediately preceding sentence shall be paid in a lump
sum on the first scheduled payroll date (in accordance with the Company’s payroll schedule in effect for the Executive immediately
prior to such termination) that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the Executive’s termination of employment;
provided, however, that  the payment of such severance amount is subject to the Executive’s compliance with the requirement to
deliver the release contemplated pursuant to Section 4(a). If the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined under the
Company’s policy for determining specified employees on the date on which he separates from service, the lump sum amount
described in clause (C) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six
months following the Executive’s separation from service (unless such amount shall satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined
in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first
business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on such amount during the six-month period and
shall be paid at the same time at which the lump sum payment is made.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a payment delayed
pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-
month period. Upon the termination of employment with the Company for Good Reason by the Executive or upon the involuntary
termination of employment with the Company of the Executive for any reason other than death, Disability or Cause, in either case
within two years after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Company (or the the n former Company subsidiary employing the
Executive), or the consolidated, surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation,
merger or sale of assets, shall also provide, for the period of two consecutive years commencing on the date of such termination of
employment, medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage for the Executive and the members of his family which is not
less favorable to the Executive than the group medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage carried by the Company for
the Executive and the members of his family either immediately prior to such termination of employment or immediately prior to
the occurrence of such Change in Control, whichever is greater; provided, however, that the obligations set forth in this sentence
shall terminate to the extent the Executive obtains comparable medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other
employer during such two-year period, but the Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during such
two-year period, whether or not any such employment would provide comparable medical, dental, life and disability insurance
coverage.  For the avoidance of doubt, the amounts payable under clause (C) of this Section 3(f)(ii) as severance shall be in lieu
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of any amounts payable under the Company’s severance policy and the Executive hereby waives any and all rights thereunder.  

(iii) Certain Additional Payments by the Company.

(A)  In the event it shall be determined that any payment or distribution by the Company or its
affiliated companies to or for the benefit of the Executive (whether paid or payable or distributed or distributable pursuant
to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise, but determined without regard to any additional payments required under this
Section 3(f)(iii)) (a “Payment”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code or any interest or
penalties are incurred by the Executive with respect to such excise tax (such excise tax, together with any such interest and
penalties, collectively the “Excise Tax”), then the Executive shall be entitled to receive an additional payment (the “Gross-
Up Payment”) in an amount such that, after payment by the Executive of all taxes (including any interest or penal ties
imposed with respect to such taxes), including, without limitation, any income taxes (and any interest and penalties
imposed with respect thereto) and Excise Tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment, the Executive retains an amount of the
Gross-Up Payment equal to the Excise Tax imposed upon the Payments.  

(B) Subject to the provisions of Section 3(f)(iii)(C), all determinations required to be made under
this Section 3(f)(iii), including whether and when a Gross-Up Payment is required, the amount of such Gross-Up Payment
and the assumptions to be utilized in arriving at such determination, shall be made by the Company’s auditors or such other
nationally recognized certified public accounting firm reasonably acceptable to the Executive as may be designated by the
Company (the “Accounting Firm”).  The Accounting Firm shall provide detailed supporting calculations both to the
Company and the Executive within 15 business days of the receipt of notice from the Executive that there has been a
Payment or such earlier time as is requested by the Company.  All fees and expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be borne
solely by the Company.  Any G ross-Up Payment, as determined pursuant to this Section 3(f)(iii), shall be paid by the
Company to the Executive in accordance with Section 3(f)(iii)(F).  Any determination by the Accounting Firm shall be
binding upon the Company and the Executive.  As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 4999 of the Code
at the time of the initial determination by the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is possible that Gross-Up Payments that will not
have been made by the Company should have been made (the “Underpayment”), consistent with the calculations required to
be made hereunder.  In the event the Company exhausts its remedies pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C) and the Executive
thereafter is required to make a payment of any Excise Tax, the Accounting Firm shall determine the amount of the
Underpayment that has occurred and any such Underpayment shall be paid by the Company to or for the benefit of the
Executive in accordance with Section 3(f)(iii)(F).

(C) The Executive shall notify the Company in writing of any claim by the Internal Revenue
Service that, if successful, would require the payment by the Company of the Gross-Up Payment.  Such notification shall be
given as soon as
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practicable, but no later than ten business days after the Executive is informed in writing of such claim.  The Executive shall
apprise the Company of the nature of such claim and the date on which such claim is requested to be paid.  The Executive
shall not pay such claim prior to the expiration of the 30-day period following the date on which the Executive gives such
notice to the Company (or such shorter period ending on the date that any payment of taxes with respect to such claim is
due).  If the Company notifies the Executive in writing prior to the expiration of such period that the Company desires to
contest such claim, the Executive shall:

(1) give the Company any information reasonably requested by the Company relating to
such claim,

(2) take such action in connection with contesting such claim as the Company shall
reasonably request in writing from time to time, including, without limitation, accepting legal representation with
respect to such claim by an attorney reasonably selected by the Company,

(3) cooperate with the Company in good faith in order effectively to contest such claim,
and

(4) permit the Company to participate in any proceedings relating to such claim;

provided, however, that the Company shall bear and pay directly all costs and expenses (including additional interest and
penalties) incurred in connection with such contest, and shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax
basis, for any Excise Tax or income tax (including interest and penalties) imposed as a result of such representation and
payment of costs and expenses.  Without limitation on the foregoing provisions of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company shall
control all proceedings taken in connection with such contest, and, at its sole discretion, may pursue or forgo any and all
administrative appeals, proceedings, hearings and conferences with the applicable taxing authority in respect of such claim
and may, at its sole discretion, either pay the tax claimed to the appropriate taxing authority on behalf of the Executive and
direct th e Executive to sue for a refund or contest the claim in any permissible manner, and the Executive agrees to
prosecute such contest to a determination before any administrative tribunal, in a court of initial jurisdiction and in one or
more appellate courts, as the Company shall determine; provided, however, that, if the Company pays such claim and
directs the Executive to sue for a refund, the Company shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax
basis, from any Excise Tax or income tax (including interest or penalties) imposed with respect to such payment or with
respect to any imputed income in connection with such payment; and, provided further, however, that any extension of the
statute of limitations relating to payment of taxes for the taxable year of the Executive with respect to which such contested
amount is claimed to be due is limited solely to such contested amount.  Furthermore, the Company’s control of the contest
shall be limited to issu es with respect to which the Gross-Up Payment would be payable hereunder, and the Executive shall
be entitled to settle or contest, as the case may
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be, any other issue raised by the Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.

(D) If, after the receipt by the Executive of a Gross-Up Payment or payment by the Company of
an amount on the Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), the Executive becomes entitled to receive any refund
with respect to the Excise Tax to which such Gross-Up Payment relates or with respect to such claim, the Executive shall
(subject to the Company’s complying with the requirements of Section 3(f)(iii)(C), if applicable) promptly pay to the
Company the amount of such refund (together with any interest paid or credited thereon after taxes applicable thereto).  If,
after payment by the Company of an amount on the Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), a determination is
made that the Executive shall not be entitled to any refund with respect to such claim and the Company does not notify the
Executive in writing of i ts intent to contest such denial of refund prior to the expiration of 30 days after such determination,
then the amount of such payment shall offset, to the extent thereof, the amount of Gross-Up Payment required to be paid.

(E) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company may, in its sole
discretion, withhold and pay to the Internal Revenue Service or any other applicable taxing authority, for the benefit of the
Executive, all or any portion of any Gross-Up Payment, and the Executive hereby consents to such withholding.

(F) Any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company of expenses incurred by the
Executive in connection with a tax audit or litigation relating to the Excise Tax, as provided for in this Section 3(f)(iii), shall
be paid no later than the last day of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the Executive remitted the Excise
Tax or, if no Excise Tax is paid, the end of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the audit is completed or
there is a final and nonappealable settlement or other resolution of the litigation.  Furthermore, if the Executive is a
“specified employee,” as determined under the Company’s policy for determining specified employees, on the date on
which he separates from service, any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company as required by this Section 3(f)
(iii) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six months
following the Executive’s separation from service (unless such amount shall satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined
in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the
first business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on such amount during the six-month
period and shall be paid at the same time at which such Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement is made.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, a payment delayed pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the
Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-month period.

(g) Notice of Termination.  Any termination by the Company or by the Executive, other than a termination by
reason of the Executive’s death, shall be communicated by a Notice of Termination to the other party hereto given in accordance
with Section 7(c).  “Notice of Termination” means a written notice that (i) indicates the specific termination provision in this
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Agreement relied upon, (ii) to the extent applicable, sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a
basis for termination of the Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated, and (iii) if the date of termination is other
than the date of receipt of such notice, specifies the date of termination.  

(h) Date of Termination.  For purposes of this Agreement the Executive’s date of termination of employment
shall be (i) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company with or without Cause, by the Executive for Good Reason,
or due to the Executive’s Disability, the date of termination shall be the date on which the other party receives the Notice of
Termination, unless a later date is mutually agreed, (ii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Executive other than for
Good Reason, the 90th day following the Company’s receipt of the Notice of Termination, unless the Company waives or reduces
such period as provided in Section 3(c), and (iii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by reason of death, the date of
termination shall be the date of death.

(i) Resignation.  Upon termination of the Executive’s employment for any reason, the Executive agrees to
resign, effective as of the date of termination, from any positions that the Executive holds with the Company and its affiliates, the
Board (and any committees thereof), unless the Board requests otherwise and the Executive agrees, and the board of directors (and
any committees thereof) of any of the Company’s subsidiaries and affiliates.

4. Effect of Termination.  (a)  Full Settlement.  The amounts paid to the Executive pursuant to Section 3(b) or 3(f)(ii),
as applicable, following termination of his employment shall be in full and complete satisfaction of the Executive’s rights under
this Agreement and any other claims he may have with respect to his employment by the Company and the termination thereof,
other than as expressly provided in Section 2(b).  Such amounts shall constitute liquidated damages with respect to any and all such
rights and claims.  In consideration of the Executive’s receipt thereof, the Executive shall execute a release in favor of the
Company, substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.  Pursuant to said release, the Company shall be released and discharged
from any and all liability to the Executive in connection with this Agreeme nt and otherwise in connection with the Executive’s
employment with the Company and the termination thereof, including, without limitation, any claims arising under federal, state or
local labor, employment and employment discrimination laws, but excluding claims with respect to this Agreement and any Plan. 
 The payments and provision of benefits to the Executive required by Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii), other than amounts that are
required to be paid to the Executive under applicable law, shall be conditioned upon the Executive’s delivery (and non-revocation
prior to the expiration of the revocation period contained in the release) of such release in favor of the Company, provided that such
conditions are met on or before the date that is 30 days after the date of the Executive’s termination of employment.  If such
conditions are not met by such date, the Executive shall forfeit such payments and benefits.  Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein shall be const rued to release the Company from its obligations to indemnify the Executive (as set forth in Section
7(h)).

(b) No Duplication; No Mitigation; Limited Offset.  In no event shall the Executive be entitled to duplicate
payments or benefits under different provisions of this Agreement or pursuant to the terms of any other plan, program or
arrangement of the Company
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or its affiliates.  In the event of any termination of the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall be under no obligation to seek
other employment, and, there shall be no offset against amounts due the Executive under this Agreement or pursuant to any plan of
the Company or any of its affiliates on account of any remuneration attributable to any subsequent employment or any claim
asserted by the Company or any of its affiliates, except with respect to the continuation of benefits under Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii),
which shall terminate immediately upon obtaining comparable coverage from another employer.  

5. Restrictive Covenants.

(a) Confidentiality.  The Executive recognizes that any knowledge and information of any type whatsoever of a
confidential nature relating to the business of the Company, including, without limitation, all types of trade secrets, vendor and
customer lists and information, employee lists and information, information regarding product development, marketing plans,
management organization information, operating policies and manuals, sourcing data, performance results, business plans, financial
records, and other financial, commercial, business and technical information (collectively, “Confidential Information”), must be
protected as confidential, not copied, disclosed or used, other than for the benefit of the Company, at any time.  The Executive
further agrees that at any time during the Employment Period or thereafter he will not divulge to anyone (other than t he Company
or any person employed or designated by the Company), publish or make use of any Confidential Information without the prior
written consent of the Company, except as (and only to the extent) (i) required by an order of a court having competent jurisdiction
or under subpoena from an appropriate government agency and then only after providing the Company with the reasonable
opportunity to prevent such disclosure or to receive confidential treatment for the Confidential Information required to be
disclosed, (ii) with respect to any other litigation, arbitration or mediation involving this Agreement, including, but not limited to
the enforcement of this Agreement or (iii) as to Confidential Information that becomes generally known to the public or within the
relevant trade or industry other than due to the Executive’s violation of this Section 5(a).  The Executive further agrees that
following the termination of the Employment Period for whatever reason, (A) the Company shall keep all tangib le property
assigned to the Executive or prepared by the Executive and (B) the Executive shall not misappropriate or infringe upon the
Confidential Information of the Company (including the recreation or reconstruction of Confidential Information from memory).

(b) Non-Interference.  The Executive acknowledges that information regarding the Company’s business and
financial relations with its vendors and customers is Confidential Information and proprietary to the Company and that any
interference with such relations based directly or indirectly on the use of such information would cause irreparable damage to the
Company.  The Executive acknowledges that by virtue of his employment with the Company, he has gained or may gain knowledge
of such information concerning the Company’s vendors and customers (respectively “Vendor Information” or “Customer
Information”), and that he would inevitably have to draw on this Vendor Information and Customer Information and on other
Confidential Information if he were to solicit or service the Company’s vendors or customers on behalf of a competing business e
nterprise.  Accordingly, and subject to the immediately following sentence, the Executive agrees that during the Employment
Period and for
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a period of 18 months following the termination thereof, other than by reason of a termination by the Company without Cause or by
the Executive for Good Reason, the Executive will not, on behalf of himself or any other person, other than the Company, directly
or indirectly do business with, solicit the business of, or perform any services for any actual vendor or customer of the Company,
any person that has been a vendor or customer of the Company within the 12-month period preceding such termination or any
actively solicited prospective vendor or customer as to whom or which the Executive provided any services or as to whom or which
the Executive has knowledge of Vendor Information, Customer Information or Confidential Information. The foregoing restrictive
covenant shall only apply to business activities engaged in by the Executive on behalf of himself or any other person t hat are
directly competitive with those of the operating divisions of the Company in which the Executive has worked or over which he has
or has had supervisory responsibility, in terms of channels of distribution, types of products, gender for which the products have
been designed and similarity of price range.  In addition, the Executive agrees that, during the Employment Period and such 18-
month period thereafter, he will not, directly or indirectly, seek to encourage or induce any such vendor or customer to cease doing
business with, or lessen its business with, the Company, or otherwise interfere with or damage (or attempt to interfere with or
damage) any of the Company’s relationships with its vendors and customers, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s
business.

(c) Non-Competition.  The Executive agrees that, during the Employment Period and for a period of 12 months
following his termination of employment, other than upon a termination by the Company without Cause or by the Executive for
Good Reason, the Executive shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly, on the Executive’s
behalf or on behalf of any other person, firm, corporation, association or other entity, as an employee, director, advisor, partner,
consultant or otherwise, engage in any business of, provide services to, enter the employ of, or have any interest in, any other
person, firm, corporation or other entity that is engaged in a business that is in competition with the primary businesses or products
of the Company as of the Executive’s date of termination (following a Change in Control, such businesses or products shall be
limited to those in which the Executive has worked or over which he has or has had supervisory responsibility, in terms of channels
of distribution, types of products, gender for which the products have been designed and similarity of price range, as of his date of
termination).  Nothing herein shall restrict the Executive from owning, for personal investment purposes only, less than 5% of the
voting stock of any publicly held corporation or 2% of the ownership interest in any non-publicly held company, if the Executive
has no other connection or relationship with the issuer of such securities.     

(d) Non-Solicitation.  The Executive agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of 18 months
following the termination thereof for any reason, he will not hire or solicit to hire, whether on his own behalf or on behalf of any
other person (other than the Company), any employee of the Company or any individual who had left the employ of the Company
within 12 months of the termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.  In addition, during the Employment Period
and such 18-month period thereafter, the Executive will not, directly or indirectly, encourage or induce any employee of the
Company to leave the Company’s employ, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.
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(e) Public Comment.  The Executive, during the Employment Period and at all times thereafter, shall not make
any derogatory comment concerning the Company or any of its current or former directors, officers, stockholders or employees.
 Similarly, the then current (i) members of the Board and (ii) members of the Company’s senior management shall not make any
derogatory comment concerning the Executive, and the Company shall use reasonable efforts to ensure that the former (A)
members of the Board and (B) members of the Company’s senior management do not make any derogatory comment concerning
the Executive.      

(f) Blue Penciling.  If any of the restrictions on competitive or other activities contained in this Section 5 shall
for any reason be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessively broad as to duration, geographical scope, activity or
subject, such restrictions shall be construed so as thereafter to be limited or reduced to be enforceable to the extent compatible with
the applicable law; it being understood that by the execution of this Agreement, (i) the parties hereto regard such restrictions as
reasonable and compatible with their respective rights and (ii) the Executive acknowledges and agrees that the restrictions will not
prevent him from obtaining gainful employment subsequent to the termination of his employment.  The existence of any claim or
cause of action by the Executive against the Company shall not constitute a defense to the enforcemen t by the Company of the
foregoing restrictive covenants, but such claim or cause of action shall be determined separately.

(g) Injunctive Relief.  The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the covenants and obligations of the
Executive set forth in this Section 5 relate to special, unique and extraordinary services rendered by the Executive to the Company
and that a violation of any of the terms of such covenants and obligations will cause the Company irreparable injury for which
adequate remedies are not available at law.  Therefore, the Executive agrees that the Company shall be entitled to seek an
injunction, restraining order or other temporary or permanent equitable relief (without the requirement to post bond) restraining the
Executive from committing any violation of the covenants and obligations contained herein.  These injunctive remedies are
cumulative and are in addition to any other rights and remedies the Company may have at law or in equity.

6. Work for Hire.  The Executive agrees that all marketing, operating and training ideas, sourcing data, processes and
materials, including all inventions, discoveries, improvements, enhancements, written materials and development related to the
business of the Company (“Proprietary Materials”) to which the Executive may have access or that the Executive may develop or
conceive while employed by the Company shall be considered works made for hire for the Company and prepared within the scope
of employment and shall belong exclusively to the Company.  Any Proprietary Materials developed by the Executive that, under
applicable law, may not be considered works made for hire, are hereby assigned to the Company without the need for any further
consideration, and the Executive agrees to take such further action, including executing such instruments and documents as the
Company may reasonably request, to evidence such assignment.
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7. Miscellaneous.

(a) Assignment and Successors.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective heirs, legatees, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  Notwithstanding
anything in the foregoing to the contrary, the Executive may not assign any of his rights or obligations under this Agreement
without first obtaining the written consent of the Company.  The Company may assign this Agreement in connection with a sale of
all or substantially all of its business and/or assets (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) and
will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of
the business and/or assets of the Company to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manne r and to the same
extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.  “Company” means the Company
as hereinbefore defined and any successor to its business and/or assets as aforesaid that assumes and agrees to perform this
Agreement by operation of law or otherwise.

(b) Survival.  The provisions of Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement
pursuant to Section 3.

(c) Notices.  Any notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered
or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid as follows:

If to the Executive, addressed to the Executive at the address then shown in the Executive’s employment
records

If to the Company at:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
New York, New York  10016 
Attention:  Chairman

With a copy to:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
New York, New York  10016
Attention:  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Any party may change the address to which notices are to be sent by giving notice of such change of address to the other party in
the manner provided above for giving notice.

(d) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the
laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles thereof relating to the conflict of laws.
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(e) Consent to Jurisdiction.  Any judicial proceeding brought against the Executive with respect to this
Agreement may be brought in any court of competent jurisdiction in the Borough of Manhattan in the City and State of New York
and, by execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Executive: (i) accepts, generally and unconditionally, the nonexclusive
jurisdiction of such courts and any related appellate courts, and irrevocably agrees to be bound by any final judgment (after
exhausting all appeals therefrom or after all time periods for such appeals have expired) rendered thereby in connection with this
Agreement, and (ii) irrevocably waives any objection the Executive may now or hereafter have as to the venue of any such suit,
action or proceeding brought in such a court or that such court is an inconvenient forum.

(f) Severability.  The invalidity of any one or more provisions of this Agreement or any part thereof shall not
affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement or part thereof; and in the event that one or more provisions contained
herein shall be held to be invalid, the Agreement shall be reformed to make such provisions enforceable.

(g) Waiver.  The Company, in its sole discretion, may waive any of the requirements imposed on the Executive
by this Agreement.  The Company, however, reserves the right to deny any similar waiver in the future.  Each such waiver must be
express and in writing and there will be no waiver by conduct.  Pursuit by the Company of any available remedy, either in law or
equity, or any action of any kind, does not constitute waiver of any other remedy or action.  Such remedies and actions are
cumulative and not exclusive. The Executive’s or the Company’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this
Agreement or the failure to assert any right the Executive or the Company may have hereunder, including, without limitation, the
right of the Executive to terminate employment for Good Reason or the Company’s right to terminate th e Executive’s employment
for Cause, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such provision or right or any other provision or right of this Agreement.

(h) Indemnification.  The Executive shall be entitled to indemnification (and the advancement of expenses) in
connection with a litigation or proceeding arising out of the Executive’s acting as Vice Chairman, Wholesale or an employee,
officer or director of the Company (or, to the extent such service is requested by the Company, any of its affiliates), to the
maximum extent permitted by applicable law; provided, however, that in the event that it is finally determined that the Executive is
not entitled to indemnification, the Executive shall promptly return any advanced amounts to the Company.  In addition, the
Executive shall be entitled to liability insurance coverage pursuant to a Company-purchased directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance policy on the same basis as other officers of the Company.  

(i) Section Headings.  The section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and
shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

(j) Withholding.  Any payments provided for herein shall be reduced by any amounts required to be withheld by
the Company from time to time under applicable Federal, State or local employment or income tax laws or similar statutes or other
provisions of law then in effect.
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(k) Section 409A of the Code.  The provisions of this Agreement and any payments made herein are intended to
comply with, and should be interpreted consistent with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related regulations
or other effective guidance promulgated thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”). The time or schedule of a payment to which the
Executive is entitled under this Agreement may be accelerated at any time that this Agreement fails to meet the requirements of
Section 409A and any such payment will be limited to the amount required to be included in the Executive’s income as a result of
the failure to comply with Section 409A.

(l) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding, and cancels and supersedes all prior
agreements, including, without limitation, the Existing Agreement, and any agreement in principle or oral statement, letter of intent,
statement of understanding or guidelines of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, excluding the agreement to
be entered into between the Company and the Executive relating to the Company’s Capital Accumulation Program, the Plans or the
plans referred to in Section 2(c), the terms and conditions of which shall not be affected hereby.  This Agreement may be amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified only by a written document executed by each of the parties hereto or their respective
successors or assigns.  The Executive acknowledges that he is entering into this Agreement of his own free will and accord with no
duress, and that he has read this Agreement and understands it and its legal consequences.

(m) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement on the day and year first above
written.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

By:    /s/  Mark D. Fischer
Name:  Mark D. Fischer
Title:  Senior Vice President

  /s/ Francis K. Duane
Francis K. Duane
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EXHIBIT A

RELEASE

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME OR MAY CONCERN, KNOW THAT FRANCIS K.
DUANE (the “Releasor”), on behalf of himself and his heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives, in consideration
of the amounts paid pursuant to Section [3(b)][3(f)] of the Employment Agreement between the Releasor and PHILLIPS-VAN
HEUSEN CORPORATION, dated as of June 14, 2007 (as the same may have been heretofore amended, the “Agreement”), hereby
irrevocably, unconditionally, generally and forever releases and discharges Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and its current and
former affiliates (collectively, the “Company”), each of their respective current and former officers, directors, employees, agents,
representatives and advisors and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, receivers, affiliates,
beneficial owners, succ essors and assigns (collectively, the “Releasees”), from, and hereby waives and settles, any and all, actions,
causes of action, suits, debts, promises, damages, or any liability, claims or demands, known or unknown and of any nature
whatsoever and which the Releasor ever had, now has or hereafter can, shall or may have, for, upon, or by reason of any matter,
cause or thing whatsoever from the beginning of the world to the date of this Release arising directly or indirectly pursuant to or out
of his employment with the Company or the termination of such employment (collectively, “Claims”), including, without
limitation, any Claims (i) arising under any federal, state, local or other statutes, orders, laws, ordinances, regulations or the like
that relate to the employment relationship and/or specifically that prohibit discrimination based upon age, race, religion, gender,
national origin, disability, sexual orientation or any other unlawful bases, including, without limitation, the Age Dis crimination in
Employment Act of 1967, as amended, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, as
amended, the Civil Rights Acts of 1866 and 1871, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended, the New
Jersey Law Against Discrimination, as amended, the New York State and New York City Human Rights Laws, as amended, the
laws of the States of New York and New Jersey, the City of New York and Somerset County, New Jersey relating to discrimination,
as amended, and any and all applicable rules and regulations promulgated pursuant to or concerning any of the foregoing statutes;
(ii) arising under or pursuant to any contract, express or implied, written or oral, including, without limitation, the Agreement; (iii)
for wrongful dismissal or termination of employment; (iv) for tort, tortious or harassing conduct, infliction of mental or em otional
distress, fraud, libel or slander; and (v) for damages, including, without limitation, punitive or compensatory damages or for
attorneys’ fees, expenses, costs, wages, injunctive or equitable relief.  This Release shall not apply to any claim that the Releasor
may have for a breach of Section [3(b)] [3(f)], 5(e) or 7(h) of the Agreement, any plan or program referred to in Section 2(b) or 2(c)
of the Agreement or the Releasor’s agreement under the Company’s Capital Accumulation Program.

The Releasor agrees not to file, assert or commence any Claims against any Releasee with any federal, state or local court or
any administrative or regulatory agency or body.

The Releasor represents and warrants that there has been no assignment or other transfer of any interest in any Claim which
the Releasor may have against the Releasees, or any of them, and the
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Releasor agrees to indemnify and hold the Releasees, and each of them, harmless from any Claims, or other liability, demands,
damages, costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred by the Releasees, or any of them, as a result of any person asserting any such
assignment or transfer. It is the intention of the parties that this indemnity does not require payment as a condition precedent to
recovery by the Releasees against the Releasor under this indemnity.

The Releasor agrees that if he hereafter commences, joins in, or in any manner seeks relief through any suit arising out of,
based upon, or relating to any Claim released hereunder, or in any manner asserts against the Releasees, or any of them, any Claim
released hereunder, then the Releasor shall pay to the Releasees, and each of them, in addition to any other damages caused to the
Releasees thereby, all attorneys’ fees incurred by the Releasees in defending or otherwise responding to said suit or Claim.

The Releasor hereby waives any right to, and agrees not to, seek reinstatement of his employment with the Company or any
Releasee.  The Releasor acknowledges that the amounts to be paid to him under Section [3(b)][3(f)] of the Agreement do not
include any benefit, monetary or otherwise, which the Releasor has earned or accrued, or to which he is already entitled.

The Releasor acknowledges that he was advised by the Company to consult with his attorney concerning the waivers
contained in this Release, that he has consulted with counsel, and that the waivers the Releasor has made herein are knowing,
conscious and with full appreciation that he is forever foreclosed from pursuing any of the rights so waived.  The Releasor has a
period of 21 days from the date on which a copy of this Release has been delivered to him to consider whether to sign it.  In
addition, in the event that the Releasor elects to sign and return to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation a copy of this Release, the
Releasor has a period of seven days (the “Revocation Period”) following the date of such return to revoke this Release, which
revocation must be in writing and delivered to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, 200 Madison Avenue, New York, New York
10016, Attention: General Coun sel, within the Revocation Period.  This Release, and the Releasor’s right to receive the amounts to
be paid to him under Section [3(b)] [3(f)(ii)], shall not be effective or enforceable until the expiration of the Revocation Period
without the Releasor’s exercise of his right of revocation.

This Release shall not be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified in any way except in a writing signed by the
Releasor and Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.

This Release shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York,
without reference to its principles of conflicts of law.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Releasor has caused this Release to be executed as of ___________________, 20__.

Francis K. Duane

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED
BEFORE ME THIS ____ DAY OF
____________________, 20__.

Notary Public
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Exhibit 10.7

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of June 14, 2007, between
CALVIN KLEIN, INC., a New York corporation (“CKI”, together with its affiliates, including, without limitation, its parent
corporation, Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation (the “Company”; the Company shall refer to CKI or Phillips-Van Heusen
Corporation (“PVH”) or PVH and its affiliates and subsidiaries, including CKI, collectively, as the context may require), and PAUL
THOMAS MURRY (the “Executive”).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Company has previously entered into an Employment Agreement with the Executive, dated as of January
1, 2004 (the “Existing Agreement”), and, in connection with the Executive’s promotion to the Company’s operating committee,
desires to amend and restate the Existing Agreement so as to ensure that the Executive is retained on a full-time basis in accordance
with the terms set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company on the terms and conditions set forth herein, and agrees
that this Agreement shall amend and supercede the terms and conditions of the Existing Agreement effective as of the Effective
Date (as defined below).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto
hereby agree as follows:

1. Employment.

(a) Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective as of March 9, 2006, the date on which the Executive’s
promotion was made (the “Effective Date”).  

(b) Employment Period.  The Company agrees to continue to employ the Executive, and the Executive agrees to
continue to be employed by the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof.  The Executive shall be an employee
at will and this Agreement shall not constitute a guarantee of employment.  Each of the parties acknowledges and agrees that either
party may terminate the Executive’s employment at any time, for any reason, with or without Cause (as defined in Section 3(a)).
 The period commencing on the Effective Date and ending on the effective date of the termination of the Executive’s employment
is hereinafter referred to as the “Employment Period.”  

(c) Position and Duties.   (i)  During the Employment Period, (A) the Executive shall serve as President and
Chief Operating Officer of CKI, with such duties and responsibilities as shall from time to time be assigned to him and as are
consistent and commensurate with his title and position, and (B) the Executive’s services shall be performed at the Company’s
headquarters in New York, New York as of the Effective Date or such other location as may be mutually agreed between the
Company and the Executive, except for travel, and visits to Company offices and facilities worldwide, reasonably required to
attend to the Company’s business.  
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(ii) During the Employment Period, and excluding any periods of vacation and sick leave to which the
Executive is entitled, the Executive agrees to devote substantially all of his business attention and time (with business time
determined in accordance with the Company’s usual and customary standards for its senior executives) to the business and affairs
of the Company and, to the extent necessary to discharge the responsibilities assigned to the Executive hereunder, to use the
Executive’s reasonable best efforts to perform faithfully and conscientiously such responsibilities.  During the Employment Period,
the Executive shall be entitled to serve as a member of the board of directors of a reasonable number of other companies, to serve
on civic and charitable boards and to manage his personal and family investments, in each case, to the extent such activities do not
materi ally interfere, in the reasonable judgment of PVH’s Board of Directors (which, for purposes of this Agreement, includes any
committee thereof, unless the context requires otherwise (the “Board”)), with the performance of his duties for the Company and
are otherwise consistent with the Company’s governance policies.

2. Compensation.

(a) Base Salary.  During the Employment Period, the Company shall pay the Executive a salary at the annual
rate of $850,000 (“Base Salary”), payable in accordance with the normal payroll procedures of the Company in effect from time to
time.  The Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed for increase at least annually by the Board pursuant to its normal performance
review policies for senior executives.  Base Salary shall not be reduced after any increase, and the term Base Salary as utilized in
this Agreement shall refer to the Executive’s annual base salary as then in effect.  

(b) Incentive and Bonus Compensation.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in the Company’s existing
and future bonus and stock option plans and other incentive compensation programs for similarly situated executives (collectively,
“Plans”), to the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such Plan under the generally applicable provisions
thereof in effect from time to time.  Such eligibility is not a guarantee of participation in or of the receipt of any award, payment or
other compensation under any Plan.  To the extent the Executive does participate in a Plan and the Plan does not expressly provide
otherwise, the Chief Executive Officer of PVH and/or the Board, as appropriate, may determine all terms of participation
(including, without limitation, the type and size of any award, payment or other compensation and th e timing and conditions of
receipt thereof by the Executive) in the Chief Executive Officer’s or the Board’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing herein shall
be deemed to prohibit the Company or the Board from amending or terminating any and all Plans in its sole and absolute discretion.
 Except as otherwise provided herein, the terms of each Plan shall govern the Executive’s rights and obligations thereunder during
the Executive’s employment and upon the termination thereof.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the definition of
“Cause” hereunder shall not supersede the definition of “cause” in any Plan (unless the Plan expressly defers to the definition of
“cause” under an executive’s employment agreement) and any rights of the Executive hereunder upon and subsequent to the
termination of the Executive’s employment shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any right of the Executive under any Plan then
in effect upon or subsequent to a termination of employment.
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(c) Benefits.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in all employee benefit and insurance plans
sponsored or maintained by the Company for similarly situated executives (including any savings, retirement, life, health and
disability plans), to the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such plan under the generally applicable
provisions thereof in effect from time to time.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to prohibit the Company or the Board from
amending or terminating any such plan in its sole and absolute discretion.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the terms of each
such plan shall govern the Executive’s rights and obligations thereunder during the Executive’s employment and upon the
termination thereof.

(d) Expenses.  The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for reasonable expenses incurred or paid by
the Executive in the performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder in accordance with the generally applicable policies and
procedures of the Company, as in effect from time to time and subject to the terms and conditions thereof.  

3. Termination of Employment.  The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate, or shall be subject to
termination at any time, as described in this Section 3.  A termination of employment shall mean that the Executive has ceased to
provide any services as an employee of the Company.

(a) Termination for Cause by the Company.  The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment with the
Company at any time for Cause.  Upon such termination, the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder
except for the payment or provision, as applicable, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) other payments,
entitlements or benefits, if any, in accordance with terms of the applicable plans, programs, arrangements or other agreements of
the Company or any affiliate thereof (other than any severance plan or policy) as to which the Executive held rights to such
payments, entitlements or benefits, whether as a participant, beneficiary or otherwise on the date of termination (� 7;Other
Benefits”).  For the avoidance of doubt, the Executive shall have no right to receive any amounts under the Company’s severance
policy upon his termination for Cause.

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean:  (1) gross negligence or willful misconduct, as
the case may be, in the performance of the material responsibilities of the Executive’s office or position, which results in material
economic harm to the Company or its affiliates or in reputational harm causing demonstrable injury to the Company or its affiliates;
(2) the willful and continued failure of the Executive to perform substantially the Executive’s duties with the Company or any
affiliate (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness), after a written demand for
substantial performance is delivered to the Executive by the Board or the Company that specifically identifies the manner in which
the Board or the Company believes that the Executive has not substantially performed the Executive’s duties ; (3) the Executive is
convicted of, or pleads guilty or nolo contendere to, a felony within the meaning of U.S. Federal, state or local law (other than a
traffic violation); (4) the Executive having willfully divulged, furnished or made accessible to anyone other than the Company, its
directors, officers, employees, auditors and legal advisors, otherwise than in the
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ordinary course of business, any Confidential Information (as hereinafter defined); or (5) any act or failure to act by the Executive,
which, under the provisions of applicable law, disqualifies the Executive from acting in any or all capacities in which he is then
acting for the Company.  

(ii) For purposes of this provision, no act or failure to act, on the part of the Executive, shall be
considered “willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in bad faith or without reasonable belief that the
Executive’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company.  Any act, or failure to act, based upon authority given
pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or upon the instructions of the Board or the Chief Executive Officer of PVH or
based upon the advice of counsel for the Company shall be conclusively presumed to be done, or omitted to be done, by the
Executive in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.  The Executive’s employment shall not be terminated for “Cause”
within the meaning of clause (1) or (2) above, unless the Executive has been given notice stating the basis for such termination and
he is given 20 days to cure the neglect or conduct that is the basis of any such determination.  The Board or the Company shall
determine whether the Executive has cured such neglect or conduct.

(b) Termination without Cause by the Company or for Good Reason by the Executive Prior to a Change in
Control.  The Company may also terminate the Executive’s employment with the Company at any time without Cause, and the
Executive may terminate his employment with the Company at any time for Good Reason (as defined in Section 3(f)(i)(B)).  

(i) If the Company terminates the Executive’s services without Cause or the Executive terminates his
employment with the Company for Good Reason, other than during the two-year period following a Change in Control (as defined
in Section 3(f)(i)(A)), the Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (W) the portion of the Base Salary for periods
prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (X) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to
Section 2(d), (Y) an aggregate amount (the “Severance Amount”) equal to one and a half (1.5) times the average annual Cash
Compensation (as hereinafter defined) paid to and/or accrued with respect to the Executive during the two completed fiscal years of
the Company immediately preceding the date of such termination, and (Z) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.  For
purposes of th is Agreement, “Cash Compensation” shall mean only annual base salary and annual cash bonus (if any) and, for the
avoidance of doubt, shall not include any payouts under any long-term incentive Plan.  The Severance Amount shall be paid in 36
substantially equal payments and on the same schedule that Base Salary was paid immediately prior to the Executive’s date of
termination, commencing on the first such scheduled payroll date that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the
Executive’s termination of employment, subject to the Executive’s compliance with the requirement to deliver the release
contemplated pursuant to Section 4(a).  Each such installment payment shall be treated as a separate payment as defined under
Treasury Regulation §1.409A-2(b)(2).  If the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined under the Company’s policy for
determining specified employees  on the date on which he separates from service, all payme nts of the Severance Amount (other
than payments that satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4), or that are treated as
separation pay under Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii) or §1.409A-1(b)(9)(v)) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on
any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six months following the
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Executive’s separation from service.  The first payment that can be made shall include the cumulative amount of any amounts that
could not be paid during such six-month period.  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first
business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on all payments not paid to the Executive prior to the
first business day after the sixth month anniversary of his separation from service that otherwise would have been paid during such
six-month period had this delay provision not applied to the Executive and shall be paid with the first payment after such six-month
period.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, payments delayed pursuant to this six-month delay requirement shall commence earlier in
the event of the Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-mont h period.  For purposes hereof, the Executive shall have a
“separation from service” upon his death or other termination of employment for any reason.

(ii) In addition, if the Company terminates the Executive’s employment with the Company without Cause
or the Executive terminates his employment with the Company for Good Reason, then the Company shall also provide to the
Executive, during the 18-month period following the Executive’s date of termination, medical, dental, life and disability insurance
coverage for the Executive and the members of his family which is not less favorable to the Executive than the group medical,
dental, life and disability insurance coverage carried by the Company for the Executive and the members of his family immediately
prior to such termination of employment; provided, however, that the obligations set forth in this sentence shall terminate to the
extent the Executive obtains comparable medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other employer during such
peri od, but the Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during such period, whether or not any such
employment would provide comparable medical and dental insurance coverage; and provided further, however, that the Executive
shall be obligated to pay an amount equal to the active employee contribution, if any, for each such coverage.  For the avoidance of
doubt, the payment of the Severance Amount shall be in lieu of any amounts payable under the Company’s severance policy (as
then in effect) and the Executive hereby waives any and all rights thereunder.

(c) Termination by Voluntary Resignation (without Good Reason) by the Executive.  The Executive may
terminate his employment with the Company without Good Reason at any time by voluntary resignation.  Upon such termination,
the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder except for the payment of (i) the portion of the Base
Salary for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any),
subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive
shall provide no less than 90 days’ prior written notice of the effective date of his resignation (other than for Good Reason).  The
Company shall continue to pay the Executive his Base Salary during such 90-day period.  The Executive acknowledges and agrees
that the Company may elect to place the Executive on paid leave for all or any part of such 90-day period.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Company, in its sole and absolute discretion, may waive the requirement for prior notice of the Executive’s
resignation or decrease the notice period, in which event the Company shall have no continuing obligation to pay the Executive’s
Base Salary or shall only have such obligation with respect to the shortened period, as the case may be.
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(d) Disability.  The Executive’s employment shall be terminable by the Company, subject to applicable law and
the Company’s short-term and long-term disability policies then in effect, if the Executive becomes physically or mentally disabled,
whether totally or partially, such that he is prevented from performing his usual duties and services hereunder for a period of 180
consecutive days as determined by a medical doctor selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the Executive or his
legal representative  (“Disability”).  If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company due to his Disability, the
Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder, except for the payment to the Executive or his legal guardian
or representative, as appropriate, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to th e effective date of termination accrued
but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other
Benefits.

(e) Death.  If the Executive shall die during the Employment Period, this Agreement shall terminate on the date
of the Executive’s death and the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder except for the payment to the
Executive’s estate of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if
any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d) and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.

(f) Termination by the Company without Cause or by the Executive For Good Reason Subsequent to a Change
in Control.

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(A) “Change in Control” shall be deemed to occur upon the first to occur of the following
events:

(1) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)), other than a “person” who as of the Effective Date was the owner of
at least 8% of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities of PVH entitled to vote generally
in the election of directors (the “Outstanding Company Voting Securities”), becomes (A) a “beneficial owner,” as
such term is used in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at least one-quarter but less than one-half of the
Outstanding Company Voting Securities, unless such acquisition has been approved within thirty (30) days
thereafter by at least a majority of the Incumbent Board (as defined in clause (2) below taking into account the
provisos), or (B) a “beneficial owner,” as such term is used in Ru le 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at least one-half
of the Outstanding Company Voting Securities; provided, however, that, for purposes of this Section 3(f)(i)(A)(1),
the following acquisitions shall not constitute a Change in Control:  (I) any acquisition directly from the Company,
other than an acquisition by virtue of the exercise of a conversion privilege unless the security being so converted
was itself acquired directly from the Company, (II) any acquisition by the Company, (III) any acquisition by any
employee benefit
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plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any of its affiliates, or (IV) any acquisition
pursuant to a transaction which complies with clauses (A), (B) and (C) of Section 3(f)(i)(A)(3) below;

(2) Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”)
cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual becoming a
director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders,
was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall be
considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any
such individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as a result of an actual or threatened election contest (as
such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act) with respect to the
election or removal of directors or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a
person other than the Board;

(3) Consummation of a reorganization, merger, consolidation or a sale or other disposition
of all or substantially all of the assets of PVH (each, a “Business Combination”), in each case unless, following such
Business Combination, (A) all or substantially all of the individuals and entities that were the beneficial owners of
the outstanding shares of common stock of PVH (the “Outstanding Company Common Stock”) and the Outstanding
Company Voting Securities, immediately prior to such  Business Combination, beneficially own, directly or
indirectly, more than 50% of the then-outstanding shares of common stock and more than 50% of the combined
voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, as the
case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination (including, wit hout limitation, a
corporation that, as a result of such transaction, owns PVH or all or substantially all of PVH’s assets either directly
or through one or more subsidiaries) in substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately prior to
such Business Combination of the Outstanding Company Common Stock and the Outstanding Company Voting
Securities, as the case may be, (B) no person (other than the Company, any employee benefit plan (or related trust)
of the Company or such corporation resulting from such Business Combination) beneficially owns directly or
indirectly, 20% or more of, respectively, the outstanding shares of common stock of the corporation resulting from
such Business Combination or the outstanding voting securities of such corporation entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors, except to the extent that such ownership existed prior to the Business Combination, and (C) at
least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the corporation resulting fro m such Business
Combination were members of the Incumbent Board at the time of the execution of the initial agreement or of the
action of the Board providing for such Business Combination, whichever occurs first; or
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(4) The approval by the stockholders of PVH of a complete liquidation or dissolution of
PVH.

(B) “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events or circumstances
without the Executive’s prior written consent:

(1) the assignment to the Executive of any duties inconsistent in any material respect with
the Executive’s position (including status, offices, titles and reporting requirements), authority, duties or
responsibilities as contemplated by Section 1(c) (or following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to
such Change in Control), or any other action by the Company that results in a material diminution in such position,
authority, duties or responsibilities, excluding for this purpose an isolated, insubstantial and inadvertent action not
taken in bad faith and that is remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of notice thereof given by the
Executive and the assignment of additional or alternate duties or responsibilities to the Executive in connection with
his professional development or the reallocation of some of the Executive’s duties or responsibilities to other
executives of the Company in connection with the evolution of the Executive’s position;

(2) a reduction of the Executive’s Base Salary;

(3) the taking of any action by the Company that substantially diminishes (A) the
aggregate value of the Executive’s total compensation opportunity, and/or (B) the aggregate value of the employee
benefits provided to the Executive pursuant to the Company’s employee benefit and insurance plans as in effect on
the Effective Date (or, following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to such Change in Control);

(4) the Company requiring that the Executive’s services be rendered primarily at a
location or locations more than 35 miles from the location set forth in Section 1(c), except for travel, and visits to
Company offices and facilities worldwide, reasonably required to attend to the Company’s business; or

(5) the failure of the Company to require any successor to the Company (whether direct or
indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of
the Company to assume expressly and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent
that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.  

(ii) If within two years after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Executive terminates his
employment with the Company for Good Reason or the Company terminates the Executive’s employment for any reason other than
death, Disability or Cause, the Company (or the then former Company subsidiary employing the Executive), or the consolidated,
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surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation, merger or sale of assets, the
Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (A) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (B) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), (C) an aggregate amount
equal to two times the average annual Cash Compensation paid to and/or accrued with respect to the Executive during the two
completed fiscal years of the Company immediately preceding the date of such termination, and (D) the payment or provision of
any Other Benefits.  The severance amount described in clause (C) of the immediately preceding sentence shall be paid in a lump
sum on the first scheduled payroll date (in accordance with the Company’s payroll schedule in effect for the Executive immediately
prior to such termination) that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the Executive’s termination of employment;
provided, however, that  the payment of such severance amount is subject to the Executive’s compliance with the requirement to
deliver the release contemplated pursuant to Section 4(a). If the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined under the
Company’s policy for determining specified employees on the date on which he separates from service, the lump sum amount
described in clause (C) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six
months following the Executive’s separation from service (unless such amount shall satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined
in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first
business day of the calendar year in whi ch the separation from service occurs) on such amount during the six-month period and
shall be paid at the same time at which the lump sum payment is made.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a payment delayed
pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-
month period. Upon the termination of employment with the Company for Good Reason by the Executive or upon the involuntary
termination of employment with the Company of the Executive for any reason other than death, Disability or Cause, in either case
within two years after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Company (or the then former Company subsidiary employing the
Executive), or the consolidated, surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation,
merger or sale of assets, shall also provide, for the period of two consecutive years commencing on the date of such termination of
employment, medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage for the Executive and the members of his family which is not
less favorable to the Executive than the group medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage carried by the Company for
the Executive and the members of his family either immediately prior to such termination of employment or immediately prior to
the occurrence of such Change in Control, whichever is greater; provided, however, that the obligations set forth in this sentence
shall terminate to the extent the Executive obtains comparable medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other
employer during such two-year period, but the Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during such
two-year period, whether or not any such employment would provide comparable medical, dental, life and disability insurance
coverage.  For the avoidance of doubt, the amounts payable under clause (C) of this Section 3(f)(ii) as severance shall be in lieu of
any amo unts payable under the Company’s severance policy and the Executive hereby waives any and all rights thereunder.  
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(iii) Certain Additional Payments by the Company.

(A)  In the event it shall be determined that any payment or distribution by the Company or its
affiliated companies to or for the benefit of the Executive (whether paid or payable or distributed or distributable pursuant
to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise, but determined without regard to any additional payments required under this
Section 3(f)(iii)) (a “Payment”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code or any interest or
penalties are incurred by the Executive with respect to such excise tax (such excise tax, together with any such interest and
penalties, collectively the “Excise Tax”), then the Executive shall be entitled to receive an additional payment (the “Gross-
Up Payment”) in an amount such that, after payment by the Executive of all taxes (including any interest or penal ties
imposed with respect to such taxes), including, without limitation, any income taxes (and any interest and penalties
imposed with respect thereto) and Excise Tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment, the Executive retains an amount of the
Gross-Up Payment equal to the Excise Tax imposed upon the Payments.  

(B) Subject to the provisions of Section 3(f)(iii)(C), all determinations required to be made under
this Section 3(f)(iii), including whether and when a Gross-Up Payment is required, the amount of such Gross-Up Payment
and the assumptions to be utilized in arriving at such determination, shall be made by the Company’s auditors or such other
nationally recognized certified public accounting firm reasonably acceptable to the Executive as may be designated by the
Company (the “Accounting Firm”).  The Accounting Firm shall provide detailed supporting calculations both to the
Company and the Executive within 15 business days of the receipt of notice from the Executive that there has been a
Payment or such earlier time as is requested by the Company.  All fees and expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be borne
solely by the Company.  Any G ross-Up Payment, as determined pursuant to this Section 3(f)(iii), shall be paid by the
Company to the Executive in accordance with Section 3(f)(iii)(F).  Any determination by the Accounting Firm shall be
binding upon the Company and the Executive.  As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 4999 of the Code
at the time of the initial determination by the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is possible that Gross-Up Payments that will not
have been made by the Company should have been made (the “Underpayment”), consistent with the calculations required to
be made hereunder.  In the event the Company exhausts its remedies pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C) and the Executive
thereafter is required to make a payment of any Excise Tax, the Accounting Firm shall determine the amount of the
Underpayment that has occurred and any such Underpayment shall be paid by the Company to or for the benefit of the
Executive in accordance with Section 3(f)(iii)(F).

(C) The Executive shall notify the Company in writing of any claim by the Internal Revenue
Service that, if successful, would require the payment by the Company of the Gross-Up Payment.  Such notification shall be
given as soon as practicable, but no later than ten business days after the Executive is informed in writing of such claim.
 The Executive shall apprise the Company of the nature of such claim and the date on which such claim is requested to be
paid.  The Executive shall not pay such
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claim prior to the expiration of the 30-day period following the date on which the Executive gives such notice to the
Company (or such shorter period ending on the date that any payment of taxes with respect to such claim is due).  If the
Company notifies the Executive in writing prior to the expiration of such period that the Company desires to contest such
claim, the Executive shall:

(1) give the Company any information reasonably requested by the Company relating to
such claim,

(2) take such action in connection with contesting such claim as the Company shall
reasonably request in writing from time to time, including, without limitation, accepting legal representation with
respect to such claim by an attorney reasonably selected by the Company,

(3) cooperate with the Company in good faith in order effectively to contest such claim,
and

(4) permit the Company to participate in any proceedings relating to such claim;

provided, however, that the Company shall bear and pay directly all costs and expenses (including additional interest and
penalties) incurred in connection with such contest, and shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax
basis, for any Excise Tax or income tax (including interest and penalties) imposed as a result of such representation and
payment of costs and expenses.  Without limitation on the foregoing provisions of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company shall
control all proceedings taken in connection with such contest, and, at its sole discretion, may pursue or forgo any and all
administrative appeals, proceedings, hearings and conferences with the applicable taxing authority in respect of such claim
and may, at its sole discretion, either pay the tax claimed to the appropriate taxing authority on behalf of the Executive and
direct th e Executive to sue for a refund or contest the claim in any permissible manner, and the Executive agrees to
prosecute such contest to a determination before any administrative tribunal, in a court of initial jurisdiction and in one or
more appellate courts, as the Company shall determine; provided, however, that, if the Company pays such claim and
directs the Executive to sue for a refund, the Company shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax
basis, from any Excise Tax or income tax (including interest or penalties) imposed with respect to such payment or with
respect to any imputed income in connection with such payment; and, provided further, however, that any extension of the
statute of limitations relating to payment of taxes for the taxable year of the Executive with respect to which such contested
amount is claimed to be due is limited solely to such contested amount.  Furthermore, the Company’s control of the contest
shall be limited to issu es with respect to which the Gross-Up Payment would be payable hereunder, and the Executive shall
be entitled to settle or contest, as the case may be, any other issue raised by the Internal Revenue Service or any other
taxing authority.
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(D) If, after the receipt by the Executive of a Gross-Up Payment or payment by the Company of
an amount on the Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), the Executive becomes entitled to receive any refund
with respect to the Excise Tax to which such Gross-Up Payment relates or with respect to such claim, the Executive shall
(subject to the Company’s complying with the requirements of Section 3(f)(iii)(C), if applicable) promptly pay to the
Company the amount of such refund (together with any interest paid or credited thereon after taxes applicable thereto).  If,
after payment by the Company of an amount on the Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), a determination is
made that the Executive shall not be entitled to any refund with respect to such claim and the Company does not notify the
Executive in writing of i ts intent to contest such denial of refund prior to the expiration of 30 days after such determination,
then the amount of such payment shall offset, to the extent thereof, the amount of Gross-Up Payment required to be paid.

(E) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company may, in its sole
discretion, withhold and pay to the Internal Revenue Service or any other applicable taxing authority, for the benefit of the
Executive, all or any portion of any Gross-Up Payment, and the Executive hereby consents to such withholding.

(F) Any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company of expenses incurred by the
Executive in connection with a tax audit or litigation relating to the Excise Tax, as provided for in this Section 3(f)(iii), shall
be paid no later than the last day of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the Executive remitted the Excise
Tax or, if no Excise Tax is paid, the end of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the audit is completed or
there is a final and nonappealable settlement or other resolution of the litigation.  Furthermore, if the Executive is a
“specified employee,” as determined under the Company’s policy for determining specified employees, on the date on
which he separates from service, any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company as required by this Section 3(f)
(iii) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six months
following the Executive’s separation from service (unless such amount shall satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined
in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the
first business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on such amount during the six-month
period and shall be paid at the same time at which such Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement is made.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, a payment delayed pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the
Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-month period.

(g) Notice of Termination.  Any termination by the Company or by the Executive, other than a termination by
reason of the Executive’s death, shall be communicated by a Notice of Termination to the other party hereto given in accordance
with Section 7(c).  “Notice of Termination” means a written notice that (i) indicates the specific termination provision in this
Agreement relied upon, (ii) to the extent applicable, sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a
basis for termination of the Executive’s employment under
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the provision so indicated, and (iii) if the date of termination is other than the date of receipt of such notice, specifies the date of
termination.  

(h) Date of Termination.  For purposes of this Agreement the Executive’s date of termination of employment
shall be (i) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company with or without Cause, by the Executive for Good Reason,
or due to the Executive’s Disability, the date of termination shall be the date on which the other party receives the Notice of
Termination, unless a later date is mutually agreed, (ii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Executive other than for
Good Reason, the 90th day following the Company’s receipt of the Notice of Termination, unless the Company waives or reduces
such period as provided in Section 3(c), and (iii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by reason of death, the date of
termination shall be the date of death.

(i) Resignation.  Upon termination of the Executive’s employment for any reason, the Executive agrees to
resign, effective as of the date of termination, from any positions that the Executive holds with the Company and its affiliates, the
Board (and any committees thereof), unless the Board requests otherwise and the Executive agrees, and the board of directors (and
any committees thereof) of any of the Company’s subsidiaries and affiliates.

4. Effect of Termination.  (a)  Full Settlement.  The amounts paid to the Executive pursuant to Section 3(b) or 3(f)(ii),
as applicable, following termination of his employment shall be in full and complete satisfaction of the Executive’s rights under
this Agreement and any other claims he may have with respect to his employment by the Company and the termination thereof,
other than as expressly provided in Section 2(b).  Such amounts shall constitute liquidated damages with respect to any and all such
rights and claims.  In consideration of the Executive’s receipt thereof, the Executive shall execute a release in favor of the
Company, substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.  Pursuant to said release, the Company shall be released and discharged
from any and all liability to the Executive in connection with this Agreeme nt and otherwise in connection with the Executive’s
employment with the Company and the termination thereof, including, without limitation, any claims arising under federal, state or
local labor, employment and employment discrimination laws, but excluding claims with respect to this Agreement and any Plan. 
 The payments and provision of benefits to the Executive required by Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii), other than amounts that are
required to be paid to the Executive under applicable law,  shall be conditioned upon the Executive’s delivery (and non-revocation
prior to the expiration of the revocation period contained in the release) of such release in favor of the Company, provided that such
conditions are met on or before the date that is 30 days after the date of the Executive’s termination of employment.  If such
conditions are not met by such date, the Executive shall forfeit such payments and benefits.  Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein shall be construed to release the Company from its obligations to indemnify the Executive (as set forth in Section
7(h)).

(b) No Duplication; No Mitigation; Limited Offset.  In no event shall the Executive be entitled to duplicate
payments or benefits under different provisions of this Agreement or pursuant to the terms of any other plan, program or
arrangement of the Company or its affiliates.  In the event of any termination of the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall
be under no obligation to seek other employment, and, there shall be no offset against
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amounts due the Executive under this Agreement or pursuant to any plan of the Company or any of its affiliates on account of any
remuneration attributable to any subsequent employment or any claim asserted by the Company or any of its affiliates, except with
respect to the continuation of benefits under Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii), which shall terminate immediately upon obtaining
comparable coverage from another employer.  

5. Restrictive Covenants.

(a) Confidentiality.  The Executive recognizes that any knowledge and information of any type whatsoever of a
confidential nature relating to the business of the Company, including, without limitation, all types of trade secrets, vendor and
customer lists and information, employee lists and information, information regarding product development, marketing plans,
management organization information, operating policies and manuals, sourcing data, performance results, business plans, financial
records, and other financial, commercial, business and technical information (collectively, “Confidential Information”), must be
protected as confidential, not copied, disclosed or used, other than for the benefit of the Company, at any time.  The Executive
further agrees that at any time during the Employment Period or thereafter he will not divulge to anyone (other than t he Company
or any person employed or designated by the Company), publish or make use of any Confidential Information without the prior
written consent of the Company, except as (and only to the extent) (i) required by an order of a court having competent jurisdiction
or under subpoena from an appropriate government agency and then only after providing the Company with the reasonable
opportunity to prevent such disclosure or to receive confidential treatment for the Confidential Information required to be
disclosed, (ii) with respect to any other litigation, arbitration or mediation involving this Agreement, including, but not limited to
the enforcement of this Agreement or (iii) as to Confidential Information that becomes generally known to the public or within the
relevant trade or industry other than due to the Executive’s violation of this Section 5(a).  The Executive further agrees that
following the termination of the Employment Period for whatever reason, (A) the Company shall keep all tangib le property
assigned to the Executive or prepared by the Executive and (B) the Executive shall not misappropriate or infringe upon the
Confidential Information of the Company (including the recreation or reconstruction of Confidential Information from memory).

(b) Non-Interference.  The Executive acknowledges that information regarding the Company’s business and
financial relations with its vendors and customers is Confidential Information and proprietary to the Company and that any
interference with such relations based directly or indirectly on the use of such information would cause irreparable damage to the
Company.  The Executive acknowledges that by virtue of his employment with the Company, he has gained or may gain knowledge
of such information concerning the Company’s vendors and customers (respectively “Vendor Information” or “Customer
Information”), and that he would inevitably have to draw on this Vendor Information and Customer Information and on other
Confidential Information if he were to solicit or service the Company’s vendors or customers on behalf of a competing business e
nterprise.  Accordingly, and subject to the immediately following sentence, the Executive agrees that during the Employment
Period and for a period of 18 months following the termination thereof, other than by reason of a termination by the Company
without Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason, the Executive will not, on
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behalf of himself or any other person, other than the Company, directly or indirectly do business with, solicit the business of, or
perform any services for any actual vendor or customer of the Company, any person that has been a vendor or customer of the
Company within the 12-month period preceding such termination or any actively solicited prospective vendor or customer as to
whom or which the Executive provided any services or as to whom or which the Executive has knowledge of Vendor Information,
Customer Information or Confidential Information. The foregoing restrictive covenant shall only apply to business activities
engaged in by the Executive on behalf of himself or any other person that are directly competitive with those of the operating
divisions of the Company in which the Executive has worked or over which he has or has had supervisory responsibility, in terms
of channels of distribution, types of products, gender for which the products have been designed and similarity of price range.  In
addition, the Executive agrees that, during the Employment Period and such 18-month period thereafter, he will not, directly or
indirectly, seek to encourage or induce any such vendor or customer to cease doing business with, or lessen its business with, the
Company, or otherwise interfere with or damage (or attempt to interfere with or damage) any of the Company’s relationships with
its vendors and customers, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

(c) Non-Competition.  The Executive agrees that, during the Employment Period and for a period of 12 months
following his termination of employment, other than upon a termination by the Company without Cause or by the Executive for
Good Reason, the Executive shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly, on the Executive’s
behalf or on behalf of any other person, firm, corporation, association or other entity, as an employee, director, advisor, partner,
consultant or otherwise, engage in any business of, provide services to, enter the employ of, or have any interest in, any other
person, firm, corporation or other entity that is engaged in a business that is in competition with the primary businesses or products
of the Company as of the Executive’s date of termination (following a Change in Control, such businesses or products shall be
limited to those in which the Executive has worked or over which he has or has had supervisory responsibility, in terms of channels
of distribution, types of products, gender for which the products have been designed and similarity of price range, as of his date of
termination).  Nothing herein shall restrict the Executive from owning, for personal investment purposes only, less than 5% of the
voting stock of any publicly held corporation or 2% of the ownership interest in any non-publicly held company, if the Executive
has no other connection or relationship with the issuer of such securities.     

(d) Non-Solicitation.  The Executive agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of 18 months
following the termination thereof for any reason, he will not hire or solicit to hire, whether on his own behalf or on behalf of any
other person (other than the Company), any employee of the Company or any individual who had left the employ of the Company
within 12 months of the termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.  In addition, during the Employment Period
and such 18-month period thereafter, the Executive will not, directly or indirectly, encourage or induce any employee of the
Company to leave the Company’s employ, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

(e) Public Comment.  The Executive, during the Employment Period and at all times thereafter, shall not make
any derogatory comment concerning the Company or any of its current or former directors, officers, stockholders or employees.
 Similarly, the then current (i)
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members of the Board and (ii) members of the Company’s senior management shall not make any derogatory comment concerning
the Executive, and the Company shall use reasonable efforts to ensure that the former (A) members of the Board and (B) members
of the Company’s senior management do not make any derogatory comment concerning the Executive.      

(f) Blue Penciling.  If any of the restrictions on competitive or other activities contained in this Section 5 shall
for any reason be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessively broad as to duration, geographical scope, activity or
subject, such restrictions shall be construed so as thereafter to be limited or reduced to be enforceable to the extent compatible with
the applicable law; it being understood that by the execution of this Agreement, (i) the parties hereto regard such restrictions as
reasonable and compatible with their respective rights and (ii) the Executive acknowledges and agrees that the restrictions will not
prevent him from obtaining gainful employment subsequent to the termination of his employment.  The existence of any claim or
cause of action by the Executive against the Company shall not constitute a defense to the enforcemen t by the Company of the
foregoing restrictive covenants, but such claim or cause of action shall be determined separately.

(g) Injunctive Relief.  The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the covenants and obligations of the
Executive set forth in this Section 5 relate to special, unique and extraordinary services rendered by the Executive to the Company
and that a violation of any of the terms of such covenants and obligations will cause the Company irreparable injury for which
adequate remedies are not available at law.  Therefore, the Executive agrees that the Company shall be entitled to seek an
injunction, restraining order or other temporary or permanent equitable relief (without the requirement to post bond) restraining the
Executive from committing any violation of the covenants and obligations contained herein.  These injunctive remedies are
cumulative and are in addition to any other rights and remedies the Company may have at law or in equity.

6. Work for Hire.  The Executive agrees that all marketing, operating and training ideas, sourcing data, processes and
materials, including all inventions, discoveries, improvements, enhancements, written materials and development related to the
business of the Company (“Proprietary Materials”) to which the Executive may have access or that the Executive may develop or
conceive while employed by the Company shall be considered works made for hire for the Company and prepared within the scope
of employment and shall belong exclusively to the Company.  Any Proprietary Materials developed by the Executive that, under
applicable law, may not be considered works made for hire, are hereby assigned to the Company without the need for any further
consideration, and the Executive agrees to take such further action, including executing such instruments and documents as the
Company may reasonably request, to evidence such assignment.

7. Miscellaneous.

(a) Assignment and Successors.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective heirs, legatees, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  Notwithstanding
anything in the foregoing to the contrary, the Executive may not assign any of his rights or obligations under this
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Agreement without first obtaining the written consent of the Company.  The Company may assign this Agreement in connection
with a sale of all or substantially all of its business and/or assets (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or
otherwise) and will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or
substantially all of the business and/or assets of the Company to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner
and to the same extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.  “Company” means
the Company as hereinbefore defined and any successor to its business and/or assets as aforesaid that assumes and agrees to
perform this Agreement by operation of law or otherwise.

(b) Survival.  The provisions of Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement
pursuant to Section 3.

(c) Notices.  Any notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered
or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid as follows:

If to the Executive, addressed to the Executive at the address then shown in the Executive’s employment
records

If to the Company at:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
New York, New York  10016 
Attention:  Chairman

With a copy to:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
New York, New York  10016
Attention:  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Any party may change the address to which notices are to be sent by giving notice of such change of address to the other party in
the manner provided above for giving notice.

(d) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the
laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles thereof relating to the conflict of laws.

(e) Consent to Jurisdiction.  Any judicial proceeding brought against the Executive with respect to this
Agreement may be brought in any court of competent jurisdiction in the Borough of Manhattan in the City and State of New York
and, by execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Executive: (i) accepts, generally and unconditionally, the nonexclusive
jurisdiction of such courts and any related appellate courts, and irrevocably agrees to be bound by any final judgment (after
exhausting all appeals therefrom or after all time periods for such
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appeals have expired) rendered thereby in connection with this Agreement, and (ii) irrevocably waives any objection the Executive
may now or hereafter have as to the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding brought in such a court or that such court is an
inconvenient forum.

(f) Severability.  The invalidity of any one or more provisions of this Agreement or any part thereof shall not
affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement or part thereof; and in the event that one or more provisions contained
herein shall be held to be invalid, the Agreement shall be reformed to make such provisions enforceable.

(g) Waiver.  The Company, in its sole discretion, may waive any of the requirements imposed on the Executive
by this Agreement.  The Company, however, reserves the right to deny any similar waiver in the future.  Each such waiver must be
express and in writing and there will be no waiver by conduct.  Pursuit by the Company of any available remedy, either in law or
equity, or any action of any kind, does not constitute waiver of any other remedy or action.  Such remedies and actions are
cumulative and not exclusive. The Executive’s or the Company’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this
Agreement or the failure to assert any right the Executive or the Company may have hereunder, including, without limitation, the
right of the Executive to terminate employment for Good Reason or the Company’s right to terminate th e Executive’s employment
for Cause, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such provision or right or any other provision or right of this Agreement.

(h) Indemnification.  The Executive shall be entitled to indemnification (and the advancement of expenses) in
connection with a litigation or proceeding arising out of the Executive’s acting as President and Chief Operating Officer of CKI or
an employee, officer or director of the Company (or, to the extent such service is requested by the Company, any of its affiliates), to
the maximum extent permitted by applicable law; provided, however, that in the event that it is finally determined that the
Executive is not entitled to indemnification, the Executive shall promptly return any advanced amounts to the Company.  In
addition, the Executive shall be entitled to liability insurance coverage pursuant to a Company-purchased directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy on the same basis as other directors and officers of the Company.  

(i) Section Headings.  The section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and
shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

(j) Withholding.  Any payments provided for herein shall be reduced by any amounts required to be withheld by
the Company from time to time under applicable Federal, State or local employment or income tax laws or similar statutes or other
provisions of law then in effect.  

(k) Section 409A of the Code.  The provisions of this Agreement and any payments made herein are intended to
comply with, and should be interpreted consistent with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related regulations
or other effective guidance promulgated thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”). The time or schedule of a payment to which the
Executive is entitled under this Agreement may be accelerated at any time
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that this Agreement fails to meet the requirements of Section 409A and any such payment will be limited to the amount required to
be included in the Executive’s income as a result of the failure to comply with Section 409A.

(l) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding, and cancels and supersedes all prior
agreements, including, without limitation, the Existing Agreement, and any agreement in principle or oral statement, letter of intent,
statement of understanding or guidelines of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, excluding the Plans or the
plans referred to in Section 2(c), the terms and conditions of which shall not be affected hereby.  This Agreement may be amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified only by a written document executed by each of the parties hereto or their respective
successors or assigns.  The Executive acknowledges that he is entering into this Agreement of his own free will and accord with no
duress, and that he has read this Agreement and understands it and its legal consequences.

(m) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement on the day and year first above
written.

CALVIN KLEIN, INC.

By:       /s/ Mark D. Fischer
Name:  Mark D. Fischer
Title:  Vice President

  /s/  Paul Thomas Murry
Paul Thomas Murry
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EXHIBIT A

RELEASE

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME OR MAY CONCERN, KNOW THAT PAUL THOMAS
MURRY (the “Releasor”), on behalf of himself and his heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives, in consideration
of the amounts paid pursuant to Section [3(b)][3(f)] of the Employment Agreement between the Releasor and CALVIN KLEIN,
INC., dated as of June 14, 2007 (as the same may have been heretofore amended, the “Agreement”), hereby irrevocably,
unconditionally, generally and forever releases and discharges Calvin Klein, Inc., its parent corporation, Phillips-Van Heusen
Corporation, and their respective current and former affiliates (collectively, the “Company”), each of their respective current and
former officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives and advisors and their respective heirs, executors, administrators,
legal representatives, receivers, affiliates, beneficial owners, successors and assigns (collectively, the “Releasees”), from, and
hereby waives and settles, any and all, actions, causes of action, suits, debts, promises, damages, or any liability, claims or
demands, known or unknown and of any nature whatsoever and which the Releasor ever had, now has or hereafter can, shall or
may have, for, upon, or by reason of any matter, cause or thing whatsoever from the beginning of the world to the date of this
Release arising directly or indirectly pursuant to or out of his employment with the Company or the termination of such
employment (collectively, “Claims”), including, without limitation, any Claims (i) arising under any federal, state, local or other
statutes, orders, laws, ordinances, regulations or the like that relate to the employment relationship and/or specifically that prohibit
discrimination based upon age, race, religion, gender, national origin, disability, sexual orientation or any other unlawful bas es,
including, without limitation, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, as amended, the Civil Rights Acts of 1866 and 1871, as amended, the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, the Family and
Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended, the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, as amended, the New York State and New
York City Human Rights Laws, as amended, the laws of the States of New York and New Jersey, the City of New York and
Somerset County, New Jersey relating to discrimination, as amended, and any and all applicable rules and regulations promulgated
pursuant to or concerning any of the foregoing statutes; (ii) arising under or pursuant to any contract, express or implied, written or
oral, including, without limitation, the Agreement; (iii) for wrongful dismissal or termination of employment; (iv) for tort, tortious
or harassing conduct, infliction of mental or emotional distress, fraud, libel or slander; and (v) for damages, including, without
limitation, punitive or compensatory damages or for attorneys’ fees, expenses, costs, wages, injunctive or equitable relief.  This
Release shall not apply to any claim that the Releasor may have for a breach of Section [3(b)] [3(f)], 5(e) or 7(h) of the Agreement
or any plan or program referred to in Section 2(b) or 2(c) of the Agreement.

The Releasor agrees not to file, assert or commence any Claims against any Releasee with any federal, state or local court or
any administrative or regulatory agency or body.

The Releasor represents and warrants that there has been no assignment or other transfer of any interest in any Claim which
the Releasor may have against the Releasees, or any of them, and the

A-1



Releasor agrees to indemnify and hold the Releasees, and each of them, harmless from any Claims, or other liability, demands,
damages, costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred by the Releasees, or any of them, as a result of any person asserting any such
assignment or transfer. It is the intention of the parties that this indemnity does not require payment as a condition precedent to
recovery by the Releasees against the Releasor under this indemnity.

The Releasor agrees that if he hereafter commences, joins in, or in any manner seeks relief through any suit arising out of,
based upon, or relating to any Claim released hereunder, or in any manner asserts against the Releasees, or any of them, any Claim
released hereunder, then the Releasor shall pay to the Releasees, and each of them, in addition to any other damages caused to the
Releasees thereby, all attorneys’ fees incurred by the Releasees in defending or otherwise responding to said suit or Claim.

The Releasor hereby waives any right to, and agrees not to, seek reinstatement of his employment with the Company or any
Releasee.  The Releasor acknowledges that the amounts to be paid to him under Section [3(b)][3(f)] of the Agreement do not
include any benefit, monetary or otherwise, which the Releasor has earned or accrued, or to which he is already entitled.

The Releasor acknowledges that he was advised by the Company to consult with his attorney concerning the waivers
contained in this Release, that he has consulted with counsel, and that the waivers the Releasor has made herein are knowing,
conscious and with full appreciation that he is forever foreclosed from pursuing any of the rights so waived.  The Releasor has a
period of 21 days from the date on which a copy of this Release has been delivered to him to consider whether to sign it.  In
addition, in the event that the Releasor elects to sign and return to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation a copy of this Release, the
Releasor has a period of seven days (the “Revocation Period”) following the date of such return to revoke this Release, which
revocation must be in writing and delivered to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, 200 Madison Avenue, New York, New York
10016, Attention: General Coun sel, within the Revocation Period.  This Release, and the Releasor’s right to receive the amounts to
be paid to him under Section [3(b)] [3(f)(ii)], shall not be effective or enforceable until the expiration of the Revocation Period
without the Releasor’s exercise of his right of revocation.

This Release shall not be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified in any way except in a writing signed by the
Releasor and Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.

This Release shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York,
without reference to its principles of conflicts of law.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Releasor has caused this Release to be executed as of ___________________, 20__.

Paul Thomas Murry

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED
BEFORE ME THIS ____ DAY OF
____________________, 20__.

Notary Public
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Exhibit 10.8

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of June 14, 2007, between
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (“PVH” and, together with its affiliates and subsidiaries, the
“Company”), and MICHAEL SHAFFER (the “Executive”).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Company has previously entered into an Employment Agreement with the Executive dated as of March 4,
2003 (the “Existing Agreement”), and, in connection with the Executive’s promotion to Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer, desires to amend and restate the Existing Agreement so as to ensure that the Executive is retained on a full-time
basis in accordance with the terms set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company on the terms and conditions set forth herein, and agrees
that this Agreement shall amend and supercede the terms and conditions of the Existing Agreement effective as of the Effective
Date (as defined below).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto
hereby agree as follows:

1. Employment.

(a) Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective as of March 9, 2006, the date on which the Executive’s promotion
was made (the “Effective Date”).

(b) Employment.  The Company agrees to continue to employ the Executive, and the Executive agrees to continue to be
employed by the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof.  The Executive shall continue to be
an employee at will and this Agreement shall not constitute a guarantee of employment.  Each of the parties
acknowledges and agrees that either party may terminate the Executive’s employment at any time, for any reason,
with or without Cause (as defined in Section 3(a)).  The period commencing on the Effective Date and ending on the
effective date of the termination of the Executive’s employment is hereinafter referred to as the “Employment
Period.”

(c) Position and Duties.  During the Employment Period, the Executive shall serve as Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer or in such other position or positions as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer or Board of
Directors (which, for purposes of this Agreement, includes any committee thereof, unless the context requires
otherwise (the “Board”)) may designate from time to time.  The Executive shall (i) perform such duties and services
as shall from time to time be assigned to him, (ii) devote all of his business time to the services required of him
hereunder, excluding any periods of vacation and sick leave to which the



Executive is entitled, and (iii) use his best efforts, judgment, skill and energy to perform such duties and services.
 As used in this Section 1, “business time” shall be determined in accordance with the usual and customary standards
of the Company.

2. Compensation.

(a) Base Salary.  The Company shall pay the Executive a salary at the annual rate of $425,000, increasing to
$475,000 effective June 1, 2007 (“Base Salary”), payable in accordance with the normal payroll procedures of the Company in
effect from time to time.  The Company or the Board may from time to time, in its sole and absolute discretion, increase the Base
Salary by any amount it determines to be appropriate.  Base Salary shall not be reduced after any increase.  The term “Base Salary”
as utilized in this Agreement shall refer to the Executive’s annual base salary as then in effect.

(b) Incentive and Bonus Compensation.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in the Company’s existing and
future bonus and stock option plans and other incentive compensation programs for similarly situated executives (collectively,
“Plans”), to the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such Plan under the generally applicable provisions
thereof in effect from time to time.  Such eligibility is not a guarantee of participation in or of the receipt of any award, payment or
other compensation under any Plan.  To the extent the Executive does participate in a Plan and the Plan does not expressly provide
otherwise, the Chief Executive Officer and/or the Board, as appropriate, may determine all terms of participation (including,
without limitation, the type and size of any award, payment or other compensation and the timing and conditions of recei pt thereof
by the Executive) in the Chief Executive Officer’s or Board’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to
prohibit the Company or the Board from amending or terminating any and all Plans in its sole and absolute discretion.  The terms of
each Plan shall govern the Executive’s rights and obligations thereunder during the Executive’s employment and upon the
termination thereof.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the definition of “Cause” hereunder shall not supersede the
definition of “cause” in any Plan (unless the Plan expressly defers to the definition of “cause” under an executive’s employment
agreement) and any rights of the Executive hereunder upon and subsequent to the termination of the Executive’s employment shall
be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any right of the Executive under any Plan then in effect upon or subsequent to a termination of
employment.

(c) Benefits.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in all employee benefit and insurance plans sponsored or
maintained by the Company for similarly situated executives (including any savings, retirement, life, health and disability plans), to
the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such plan under the generally applicable provisions thereof in effect
from time to time.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to prohibit the Company or the Board from amending or terminating any such
plan in its sole and absolute discretion.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the terms of each such plan shall govern the
Executive’s rights and obligations thereunder during the Executive’s employment and upon the termination thereof.

(d) Expenses.  The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for reasonable expenses incurred or paid by the
Executive in the performance of the Executive’s duties
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hereunder in accordance with the generally applicable policies and procedures of the Company, as in effect from time to time and
subject to the terms and conditions thereof.

3. Termination of Employment.  The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate, or shall be subject to
termination at any time, as described in this Section 3.  A termination of employment shall mean that the Executive has ceased to
provide any services as an employee of the Company.

(a) Termination for Cause by the Company.  The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment with the
Company at any time for Cause.  Upon such termination, the Company shall have no further obligation to the
Executive hereunder except for the payment or provision, as applicable, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for
periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any),
subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) other payments, entitlements or benefits, if any, in accordance with terms of the
applicable plans, programs, arrangements or other agreements of the Company or any affiliate thereof (other than
any severance plan or policy) as to which the Executive held rights to such payments, entitlements or benefits,
whether as a participant, beneficiary or otherwise on the date of termination (“Other Benefits”).  For the avoidance
of doubt, the Executive shall have no right to receive any amounts under the Company’s severance policy upon his
termination for Cause.  

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall be defined as (1) gross negligence in the performance of
the material responsibilities of the Executive’s office or position; (2) gross misconduct in the
performance of the material responsibilities of the Executive’s office or position, including, without
limitation, malfeasance relating to the Company and/or vendor and customer accounts and
insubordination; (3) material failure or refusal by the Executive to perform his core job duties, as such
may be reasonably assigned to him from time to time, other than by reason of his death or disability, or
other acts or omissions constituting material neglect or dereliction of his such duties; (4) the conviction
of the Executive by a court of competent jurisdiction (and after all appeal procedures have been
exhausted or have expired) of, or the entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere b y the Executive to a
charge of, the commission of a crime that constitutes a felony under federal or state law or the equivalent
under foreign law; (5) the Executive’s embezzlement or intentional misappropriation of any property of
the Company; (6) the Executive having divulged, furnished or made accessible to anyone other than the
Company, its directors, officers, employees, auditors and legal advisors, otherwise than in the ordinary
course of business, any Confidential Information (as hereinafter defined); (7) fraud, dishonesty or other
acts or omissions by the Executive that constitute a willful breach of his fiduciary duty to the Company;
or (8) the happening of any other event which, under the provisions of applicable law, disqualifies the
Executive from acting in any or all capacities in which he is then acting.  The Executive shall be given
notice of the termination of his employment for Cause under this Section 3(a).  If the Executive shall be
terminated pursuant to clause (1), (2 ) or (3) of this Section 3(a), the Executive shall be given a
reasonable period of time, not to exceed 30 days, to correct the underlying act or omission.  In all other
cases, termination shall be effective as of the date notice is given.

(b)  Termination without Cause by the Company or for Good Reason by the Executive Prior to a Change in Control.
 The Company may also terminate the Executive’s
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employment with the Company at any time without Cause, and the Executive may terminate his employment with
the Company at any time for Good Reason (as defined in Section 3(f)(i)(B)).

(i) If the Company terminates the Executive’s services without Cause or the Executive terminates his employment with
the Company for Good Reason, other than during the two-year period following a Change in Control (as defined in
Section 3(f)(i)(A)), the Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (w) the portion of his Base Salary
for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (x) all unreimbursed expenses (if
any), subject to Section 2(d), (y) an aggregate amount (the “Severance Amount”) equal to one and a half (1.5) times
the average annual Cash Compensation (as hereinafter defined) paid to and/or accrued with respect to the Executive
during the two completed fiscal years of the Company immediately preceding the date of such termination, and (z)
the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.  For purposes of this Agreement, “Cash Compensation” shall mean
only annual base salary and annual cash bonus (if any) and, for the avoidance of doubt, shall not include any payouts
under any long-term incentive Plan.  The Severance Amount shall be paid in 36 substantially equal payments and on
the same schedule that Base Salary was paid immediately prior to the Executive’s date of termination, commencing
on the first such scheduled payroll date that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the Executive’s
termination of employment, subject to the Executive’s compliance with the requirement to deliver the release
contemplated pursuant to Section 4(a).  Each such installment payment shall be treated as a separate payment as
defined under Treasury Regulation §1.409A-2(b)(2).  If the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined
under the Company’s policy for determining specified employees  on the date on which he separates from service,
all payments of the Severance Amo unt (other than payments that satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined in
Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4), or that are treated as separation pay under Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(b)
(9)(iii) or §1.409A-1(b)(9)(v)) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day
after the date that is six months following the Executive’s separation from service.  The first payment that can be
made shall include the cumulative amount of any amounts that could not be paid during such six-month period.  In
addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first business day of the calendar year in
which the separation from service occurs) on all payments not paid to the Executive prior to the first business day
after the sixth month anniversary of his separation from service that otherwise would have been paid during such
six-month period had this delay provision not appl ied to the Executive and shall be paid with the first payment after
such six-month period.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, payments delayed pursuant to this six-month delay
requirement shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-month period.
 For purposes hereof, the Executive shall have a “separation from service” upon his death or other termination of
employment for any reason.

(ii) In addition, if the Company terminates the Executive’s employment with the Company without Cause or the
Executive terminates his employment with the Company for Good Reason, then the Company shall also provide to
the Executive, during the 18-month period following the Executive’s date of termination, medical, dental, life and
disability insurance coverage for the Executive and the members of his family which is not less favorable to the
Executive than the group medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage carried by the Company for the
Executive and the members of his family immediately prior to such termination of employment; provided, however,
that the obligations set forth in this sentence shall terminate
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to the extent the Executive obtains comparable medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other
employer during such period, but the Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during
such period, whether or not any such employment would provide comparable medical and dental insurance
coverage; and provided further, however, that the Executive shall be obligated to pay an amount equal to the active
employee contribution, if any, for each such coverage.  For the avoidance of doubt, the payment of the Severance
Amount shall be in lieu of any amounts payable under the Company’s severance policy (as then in effect) and the
Executive hereby waives any and all rights thereunder.

(c) Termination by Voluntary Resignation (without Good Reason) by the Executive.  The Executive may terminate his
employment with the Company without Good Reason at any time by voluntary resignation.  Upon such termination,
the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder except for the payment of (i) the portion of
the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all
unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive shall provide no less than 90 days’ prior written notice of the
effective date of his resignation (other than for Good Reason).  The Company shall continue to pay the Executive his
Base Salary during such 90-day period.  The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the Company may elect to
place the Executive on paid leave for all or any part of such 90-day period.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Company, in its sole and absolute discretion, may waive the requirement for prior notice of the Executive’s
resignation or decrease the notice period, in which event the Company shall have no continuing obligation to pay the
Executive’s Base Salary or shall only have such obligation with respect to the shortened period, as the case may be.

(d) Disability.  The Executive’s employment shall be terminable by the Company, subject to applicable law and the
Company’s short-term and long-term disability policies then in effect, if the Executive becomes physically or
mentally disabled, whether totally or partially, such that he is prevented from performing his usual duties and
services hereunder for a period of 120 consecutive days or for shorter periods aggregating 120 days in any 12-month
period (a “Disability”).  If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company due to the Executive’s
Disability, the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder, except for the payment to the
Executive or his legal guardian or representative, as appropriate, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods
prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unr eimbursed expenses (if any), subject
to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.

(e) Death.  If the Executive shall die during the Employment Period, this Agreement shall terminate on the date of the
Executive’s death and the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder except for the
payment to the Executive’s estate of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the
payment or provision of any Other Benefits.
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(f) Termination by the Company without Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason Subsequent to a Change in
Control.  

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

A. “Change in Control” shall be deemed to occur upon the first to occur of the following events:

(1) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)), other
than a person who as of the Effective Date was the owner of at least
8% of the combined voting power of the outstanding voting securities
of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors
(the “Outstanding Company Voting Securities”), becomes (A) a
“beneficial owner,” as such term is used in Rule 13d-3 of the
Exchange Act, of at least one-quarter but less than one-half of the
Outstanding Company Voting Securities, unless such acquisition has
been approved within thirty (30) days thereafter by at least a majority
of the Incumbent Board (as defined in clause (2) below taking into
account the provisos), or (B) a “beneficial owner,” as such term is
used in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at least one-half of the
Outstanding Company Voting Securities; provided, however, that, for
purposes of this Section 3(f)(i)(A)(1), the following acquisitions shall
not constitute a Change in Control:  (I) any acquisition directly from
the Company, other than an acquisition by virtue of the exercise of a
conversion privilege unless the security being so converted was itself
acquired directly from the Company, (II) any acquisition by the
Company, (III) any acquisition by any employee benefit plan (or
related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any of its
affiliates, or (IV) any acquisition pursuant to a transaction which
complies with clauses (A), (B) and (C) of Section 3(f)(i)(A)(3)
below;

(2) Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (the
“Incumbent Board”) cease for any reason to constitute at least a
majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual
becoming a director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or
nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was
approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then
comprising the Incumbent Board shall be considered as though such
individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for
this purpose, any such individual whose initial assumption of office
occurs as a result of an actual or threatened election contest (as such
terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under
the Exchange Act) with respect to the election or removal of directors
or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or
on behalf of a person other than the Board;

(3) Consummation of a reorganization, merger, consolidation or a sale or
other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company (each, a “Business Combination”), in each case unless,
following such Business Combination, (A) all or substantially all of
the individuals and entities that were
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the beneficial owners of the outstanding shares of common stock of
the Company (the “Outstanding Company Common Stock”) and the
Outstanding Company Voting Securities, immediately prior to such
 Business Combination, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more
than 50% of the then-outstanding shares of common stock and more
than 50% of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding
voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors,
as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business
Combination (including, without limitation, a corporation that, as a
result of such transaction, owns the Company or all or substantially
all of the Company’s assets either directly or through one or more
subsidiaries) in substantially the same proportions as their ownership
immediately prior to such Business Combination of the Outstandi ng
Company Common Stock and the Outstanding Company Voting
Securities, as the case may be, (B) no person (other than the
Company, any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the
Company or such corporation resulting from such Business
Combination) beneficially owns directly or indirectly, 20% or more
of, respectively, the outstanding shares of common stock of the
corporation resulting from such Business Combination or the
outstanding voting securities of such corporation entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors, except to the extent that such
ownership existed prior to the Business Combination, and (C) at least
a majority of the members of the board of directors of the corporation
resulting from such Business Combination were members of the
Incumbent Board at the time of the execution of the initial agreement
or of the action of the Board providing for such Business
Combination, whichever occurs first; or

(4) The approval by the stockholders of the Company of a complete
liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

B. “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events or circumstances without the
Executive’s prior written consent:

(1) the assignment to the Executive without his consent of any duties inconsistent in any material
respect with the Executive’s position (including status, offices, titles and reporting
requirements), authority, duties or responsibilities as contemplated by Section 1(c) (or
following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to such Change in Control), or
any other action by the Company that results in a material diminution in such position,
authority, duties or responsibilities, excluding for this purpose an isolated, insubstantial and
inadvertent action not taken in bad faith and that is remedied by the Company promptly after
receipt of notice thereof given by the Executive and the assignment of additional or alternate
duties or responsibilities to the Executive in connection with his professional development or
the reallocation of some of the Executive’s duties or responsibilities to ot her executives of the
Company in connection with the evolution of the Executive’s position;

(2) a reduction of the Executive’s Base Salary;

7



(3) the taking of any action by the Company that substantially diminishes (A) the aggregate value
of the Executive’s total compensation opportunity, and/or (B) the aggregate value of the
employee benefits provided to the Executive relative to all other similarly situated senior
executives pursuant to the Company’s employee benefit and insurance plans as in effect on
the Effective Date (or, following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to such
Change in Control); or

(4) the Company requiring that the Executive’s services be rendered primarily at a location or
locations more than 75 miles from the location of the Executive’s principal office at which he
performs his duties hereunder, except for travel, and visits to Company offices and facilities
worldwide, reasonably required to attend to the Company’s business.  

(ii) If within two years after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Executive terminates his employment with the
Company for Good Reason or the Company terminates the Executive’s employment for any reason other than death,
Disability or Cause, the Company (or the then former Company subsidiary employing the Executive), or the
consolidated, surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation, merger
or sale of assets, the Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (A) the portion of the Base Salary for
periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (B) all unreimbursed expenses (if any),
subject to Section 2(d), (C) an aggregate amount equal to two times the average annual Cash Compensation paid to
and/or accrued with respect to the Executive during the two completed fiscal years of the Company immediately pr
eceding the date of such termination, and (D) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.  The severance
amount described in clause (C) of the immediately preceding sentence shall be paid in a lump sum on the first
scheduled payroll date (in accordance with the Company’s payroll schedule in effect for the Executive immediately
prior to such termination) that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the Executive’s termination of
employment; provided, however, that the payment of such severance amount is subject to the Executive’s
compliance with the requirement to deliver the release contemplated pursuant to Section 4(a).  If the Executive is a
“specified employee,” as determined under the Company’s policy for determining specified employees on the date
on which he separates from service, the lump sum amount described in clause (C) shall not be paid or commence to
be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six mon ths following the Executive’s
separation from service (unless such amount shall satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined in Treasury
Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first
business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on such amount during the six-month
period and shall be paid at the same time at which the lump sum payment is made.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a
payment delayed pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s
death prior to the end of the six-month period.  Upon the termination of employment with the Company for Good
Reason by the Executive or upon the involuntary termination of employment with the Company of the Executive for
any reason other than death, Disability or Cause, in either case within two years after the occurrence of a Change in
Control, the Company (or the then former Company s ubsidiary employing the Executive), or the consolidated,
surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation, merger or sale of
assets, shall also
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provide, for the period of two consecutive years commencing on the date of such termination of employment,
medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage for the Executive and the members of his family which is not
less favorable to the Executive than the group medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage carried by the
Company for the Executive and the members of his family either immediately prior to such termination of
employment or immediately prior to the occurrence of such Change in Control, whichever is greater; provided,
however, that the obligations set forth in this sentence shall terminate to the extent the Executive obtains comparable
medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other employer during such two-year period, but the
Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during such two-yea r period, whether or not
any such employment would provide comparable medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage.  For the
avoidance of doubt, the amounts payable under clause (C) of this Section 3(f)(ii) as severance shall be in lieu of any
amounts payable under the Company’s severance policy and the Executive hereby waives any and all rights
thereunder.  

(iii) Certain Additional Payments by the Company.

(A)In the event it shall be determined that any payment or distribution by the Company or its affiliated
companies to or for the benefit of the Executive (whether paid or payable or distributed or distributable
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise, but determined without regard to any additional
payments required under this Section 3(f)(iii)) (a “Payment”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed
by Section 4999 of the Code or any interest or penalties are incurred by the Executive with respect to such
excise tax (such excise tax, together with any such interest and penalties, collectively the “Excise Tax”),
then the Executive shall be entitled to receive an additional payment (the “Gross-Up Payment”) in an
amount such that, after payment by the Executive of all taxes (including any interest or penalties imposed
with respect to such taxes), including, with out limitation, any income taxes (and any interest and penalties
imposed with respect thereto) and Excise Tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment, the Executive retains
an amount of the Gross-Up Payment equal to the Excise Tax imposed upon the Payments.

(B) Subject to the provisions of Section 3(f)(iii)(C), all determinations required to be made under this Section
3(f)(iii), including whether and when a Gross-Up Payment is required, the amount of such Gross-Up
Payment and the assumptions to be utilized in arriving at such determination, shall be made by the
Company’s auditors or such other nationally recognized certified public accounting firm reasonably
acceptable to the Executive as may be designated by the Company (the “Accounting Firm”).  The
Accounting Firm shall provide detailed supporting calculations both to the Company and the Executive
within 15 business days of the receipt of notice from the Executive that there has been a Payment or such
earlier time as is requested by the Company.  All fees and expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be borne
solely by the Company.  Any Gross-Up Payment, as determined pursuant to this Section 3(f)(iii), shall be
paid by the Company to the Executive in accordance with Section 3(f)(iii)(F).  Any determination by the
Accounting Firm shall be binding upon the Company and the Executive.  As a result of the uncertainty in
the application of Section 4999 of the Code at the time of the initial determination by the Accounting Firm
hereunder, it is possible that Gross-Up Payments
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that will not have been made by the Company should have been made (the “Underpayment”), consistent
with the calculations required to be made hereunder.  In the event the Company exhausts its remedies
pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C) and the Executive thereafter is required to make a payment of any Excise
Tax, the Accounting Firm shall determine the amount of the Underpayment that has occurred and any such
Underpayment shall be paid by the Company to or for the benefit of the Executive in accordance with
Section 3(f)(iii)(F).

(C) The Executive shall notify the Company in writing of any claim by the Internal Revenue Service that, if
successful, would require the payment by the Company of the Gross-Up Payment.  Such notification shall
be given as soon as practicable, but no later than ten business days after the Executive is informed in
writing of such claim.  The Executive shall apprise the Company of the nature of such claim and the date
on which such claim is requested to be paid.  The Executive shall not pay such claim prior to the expiration
of the 30-day period following the date on which the Executive gives such notice to the Company (or such
shorter period ending on the date that any payment of taxes with respect to such claim is due).  If the
Company notifies the Executive in writing prior to the expiration of such period that the Company desires
to contest such claim, the Executive shall:

(1) give the Company any information reasonably requested by the
Company relating to such claim,

(2) take such action in connection with contesting such claim as the
Company shall reasonably request in writing from time to time,
including, without limitation, accepting legal representation with
respect to such claim by an attorney reasonably selected by the
Company,

(3) cooperate with the Company in good faith in order effectively to
contest such claim, and

(4) permit the Company to participate in any proceedings relating to such
claim;

provided, however, that the Company shall bear and pay directly all costs and expenses (including additional interest and penalties)
incurred in connection with such contest, and shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax basis, for any Excise
Tax or income tax (including interest and penalties) imposed as a result of such representation and payment of costs and expenses.
 Without limitation on the foregoing provisions of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company shall control all proceedings taken in
connection with such contest, and, at its sole discretion, may pursue or forgo any and all administrative appeals, proceedings,
hearings and conferences with the applicable taxing authority in respect of such claim and may, at its sole discretion, either pay the
tax claimed to the appropriate taxing authority on behalf of the Executive and direct the Executive to sue for a refund or contest th e
claim in any permissible manner, and the Executive agrees to prosecute such contest to a determination before any administrative
tribunal, in a court of initial jurisdiction and in one or more appellate courts, as the Company shall determine; provided, however,
that, if the Company pays such claim and directs
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the Executive to sue for a refund, the Company shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax basis, from any
Excise Tax or income tax (including interest or penalties) imposed with respect to such payment or with respect to any imputed
income in connection with such payment; and, provided further, however, that any extension of the statute of limitations relating to
payment of taxes for the taxable year of the Executive with respect to which such contested amount is claimed to be due is limited
solely to such contested amount.  Furthermore, the Company’s control of the contest shall be limited to issues with respect to which
the Gross-Up Payment would be payable hereunder, and the Executive shall be entitled to settle or contest, as the case may be, any
other issue raised by the Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.

(D)If, after the receipt by the Executive of a Gross-Up Payment or payment by the Company of an amount on
the Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), the Executive becomes entitled to receive any
refund with respect to the Excise Tax to which such Gross-Up Payment relates or with respect to such
claim, the Executive shall (subject to the Company’s complying with the requirements of Section 3(f)(iii)
(C), if applicable) promptly pay to the Company the amount of such refund (together with any interest paid
or credited thereon after taxes applicable thereto).  If, after payment by the Company of an amount on the
Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), a determination is made that the Executive shall not be
entitled to any refund with respect to such claim and the Company does not notify the Executive in writing
of its intent to contest such denial of refund prior to the expiration of 30 days after such determination, then
the amount of such payment shall offset, to the extent thereof, the amount of Gross-Up Payment required to
be paid.

(E) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company may, in its sole discretion,
withhold and pay to the Internal Revenue Service or any other applicable taxing authority, for the benefit of
the Executive, all or any portion of any Gross-Up Payment, and the Executive hereby consents to such
withholding.

(F) Any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company of expenses incurred by the Executive in
connection with a tax audit or litigation relating to the Excise Tax, as provided for in this Section 3(f)(iii),
shall be paid no later than the last day of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the
Executive remitted the Excise Tax or, if no Excise Tax is paid, the end of the calendar year following the
calendar year in which the audit is completed or there is a final and nonappealable settlement or other
resolution of the litigation.  Furthermore, if the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined under
the Company’s policy for determining specified employees, on the date on which he separates from
service, any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company as required by this Section 3(f)(iii)
shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six
months following the Executive’s separation from service (unless such amount shall satisfy the short-term
deferral rule, as defined in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will accrue at the
10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first business day of the calendar year in which the separation from
service occurs) on such amount during the six-month period and shall be paid at the same time at which
such Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement is made.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a
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payment delayed pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the
Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-month period.

(g) Notice of Termination.  Any termination by the Company or by the Executive, other than a termination by reason of
the Executive’s death, shall be communicated by a Notice of Termination to the other party hereto given in
accordance with Section 7(c).  “Notice of Termination” means a written notice that (i) indicates the specific
termination provision in this Agreement relied upon, (ii) to the extent applicable, sets forth in reasonable detail the
facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the Executive’s employment under the
provision so indicated, and (iii) if the date of termination is other than the date of receipt of such notice, specifies the
date of termination.  

(h) Date of Termination.  For purposes of this Agreement the Executive’s date of termination of employment shall be (i)
if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company with or without Cause, by the Executive for Good
Reason, or due to the Executive’s Disability, the date of termination shall be the date on which the other party
receives the Notice of Termination, unless a later date is mutually agreed, (ii) if the Executive’s employment is
terminated by the Executive other than for Good Reason, the 90th day following the Company’s receipt of the Notice
of Termination, unless the Company waives or reduces such period as provided in Section 3(c), and (iii) if the
Executive’s employment is terminated by reason of death, the date of termination shall be the date of death.

(i) Resignation.  Upon termination of the Executive’s employment for any reason, the Executive agrees to resign,
effective as of the date of termination, from any positions that the Executive holds with the Company and its
affiliates, the Board (and any committees thereof), unless the Board requests otherwise and the Executive agrees,
and the board of directors (and any committees thereof) of any of the Company’s subsidiaries and affiliates.  

4. Effect of Termination.  

(a) Full Settlement.  The amounts paid to the Executive pursuant to Section 3(b) or 3(f)(ii), as applicable, following
termination of his employment shall be in full and complete satisfaction of the Executive’s rights under this
Agreement and any other claims he may have with respect to his employment by the Company and the termination
thereof, other than as expressly provided in Section 2(b).  Such amounts shall constitute liquidated damages with
respect to any and all such rights and claims.  In consideration of the Executive’s receipt thereof, the Executive shall
execute a release in favor of the Company, substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.  Pursuant to said release,
the Company shall be released and discharged from any and all liability to the Executive in connection with this
Agreement and otherwise in connection with the Execu tive’s employment with the Company and the termination
thereof, including, without limitation, any claims arising under federal, state or local labor, employment and
employment discrimination laws, but excluding claims with respect to this Agreement and any Plan.   The payments
and provision of benefits to the Executive required by Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii), other than amounts that are required
to be paid to the Executive under applicable law, shall be conditioned upon the Executive’s delivery (and non-
revocation prior to the expiration of the revocation period contained in the release) of such release in favor of the
Company, provided that such conditions are met on or before the date that is 30 days after the
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date of the Executive’s termination of employment.  If such conditions are not met by such date, the Executive shall
forfeit such payments and benefits.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall be construed to release the
Company from its obligations to indemnify the Executive (as set forth in Section 7(h)).

(b) No Duplication; No Mitigation; Limited Offset.  In no event shall the Executive be entitled to duplicate payments or
benefits under different provisions of this Agreement or pursuant to the terms of any other plan, program or
arrangement of the Company or its affiliates. In the event of any termination of the Executive’s employment, the
Executive shall be under no obligation to seek other employment, and, there shall be no offset against amounts due
the Executive under this Agreement or pursuant to any plan of the Company or any of its affiliates on account of any
remuneration attributable to any subsequent employment or any claim asserted by the Company or any of its
affiliates, except with respect to the continuation of benefits under Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii), which shall terminate
immediately upon obtaining comparable coverage from another employer.

5. Restrictive Covenants.

(a) Confidentiality.  The Executive recognizes that any knowledge and information of any type whatsoever of a
confidential nature relating to the business of the Company, including, without limitation, all types of trade secrets, vendor and
customer lists and information, employee lists and information, information regarding product development, marketing plans,
management organization information, operating policies and manuals, sourcing data, performance results, business plans, financial
records, and other financial, commercial, business and technical information (collectively, “Confidential Information”), must be
protected as confidential, not copied, disclosed or used, other than for the benefit of the Company, at any time.  The Executive
further agrees that at any time during the Employment Period or thereafter he will not divulge to anyone (other than the Company
or any person employed or designated by the Company), publish or make use of any Confidential Information without the prior
written consent of the Company, except as (and only to the extent) (i) required by an order of a court having competent jurisdiction
or under subpoena from an appropriate government agency and then only after providing the Company with the reasonable
opportunity to prevent such disclosure or to receive confidential treatment for the Confidential Information required to be
disclosed, (ii) with respect to any other litigation, arbitration or mediation involving this Agreement, including, but not limited to
the enforcement of this Agreement or (iii) as to Confidential Information that becomes generally known to the public or within the
relevant trade or industry other than due to the Executive’s violation of this Section 5(a).  The Executive further agrees that
following the termination of the Employment Period for whatever reason, (i) the Company shall keep all tangible property assigned
to t he Executive or prepared by the Executive and (ii) the Executive shall not misappropriate or infringe upon the Confidential
Information of the Company (including the recreation or reconstruction of Confidential Information from memory).

(b) Non-Interference.  The Executive acknowledges that information regarding the Company’s business and
financial relations with its vendors and customers is Confidential Information and proprietary to the Company and that any
interference with such relations based directly or indirectly on the use of such information would cause irreparable damage to the
Company.  The Executive acknowledges that by virtue of his employment with the Company, he
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has gained or may gain knowledge of such information concerning the Company’s vendors and customers (respectively “Vendor
Information” or “Customer Information”), and that he would inevitably have to draw on this Vendor Information and Customer
Information and on other Confidential Information if he were to solicit or service the Company’s vendors or customers on behalf of
a competing business enterprise.  Accordingly, and subject to the immediately following sentence, the Executive agrees that during
the Employment Period and for a period of 18 months following the termination thereof, other than by reason of a termination by
the Company without Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason, the Executive will not, on behalf of himself or any other person,
other than the Company, directly or indirectly do business with, solicit the business of, or perform any services for any actual
vendor or customer of the Company, any person that has been a vendor or customer of the Company within the 12-month period
preceding such termination or any actively solicited prospective vendor or customer as to whom or which the Executive provided
any services or as to whom or which the Executive has knowledge of Vendor Information, Customer Information or Confidential
Information.  The foregoing restrictive covenant shall only apply to business activities engaged in by the Executive on behalf of
himself or any other person that are directly competitive with those of the operating divisions of the Company in which the
Executive has worked or over which the Executive has had supervisory responsibility in terms of channel(s) of distribution, types
of products, gender for which the products have been designed and similarity of price range.  In addition, the Executive agrees that,
during the Employment Period and such 18-month period thereafter, he will not, directly or indirectly, se ek to encourage or induce
any such vendor or customer to cease doing business with, or lessen its business with, the Company, or otherwise interfere with or
damage (or attempt to interfere with or damage) any of the Company’s relationships with its vendors and customers, except in the
ordinary course of the Company’s business.

(c) Non-Solicitation.  The Executive agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of 18 months
following the termination thereof for any reason, he will not hire or solicit to hire, whether on his own behalf or on behalf of any
other person (other than the Company), any employee of the Company or any individual who had left the employ of the Company
within 12 months of the termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.  In addition, during the Employment Period
and such 18-month period thereafter, the Executive will not, directly or indirectly, encourage or induce any employee of the
Company to leave the Company’s employ, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

(d) Public Comment.  The Executive, during the Employment Period and at all times thereafter, shall not make any
derogatory comment concerning the Company or any of its current or former directors, officers, stockholders or employees.
 Similarly, the senior management of the Company shall not make any derogatory comment concerning the Executive.

(e) Blue Pencilling.  If any of the restrictions on competitive or other activities contained in this Section 5 shall for
any reason be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessively broad as to duration, geographical scope, activity or
subject, such restrictions shall be construed so as thereafter to be limited or reduced to be enforceable to the extent compatible with
the applicable law; it being understood that by the execution of this Agreement, (i) the parties hereto regard such restrictions as
reasonable and compatible with their respective rights and (ii) the Executive acknowledges and agrees that the restrictions will not
prevent him from obtaining gainful employment subsequent to the termination of his employment.  The existence
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of any claim or cause of action by the Executive against the Company shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by the
Company of the foregoing restrictive covenants, but such claim or cause of action shall be determined separately.

(f) Injunctive Relief.  The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the covenants and obligations of the Executive
set forth in this Section 5 relate to special, unique and extraordinary services rendered by the Executive to the Company and that a
violation of any of the terms of such covenants and obligations will cause the Company irreparable injury for which adequate
remedies are not available at law.  Therefore, the Executive agrees that the Company shall be entitled to seek an injunction,
restraining order or other temporary or permanent equitable relief (without the requirement to post bond) restraining the Executive
from committing any violation of the covenants and obligations contained herein.  These injunctive remedies are cumulative and
are in addition to any other rights and remedies the Company may have at law or in equity.

6. Work for Hire.  The Executive agrees that all marketing, operating and training ideas, sourcing data, processes and
materials, including all inventions, discoveries, improvements, enhancements, written materials and development related to the
business of the Company (“Proprietary Materials”) to which the Executive may have access or that the Executive may develop or
conceive while employed by the Company shall be considered works made for hire for the Company and prepared within the scope
of employment and shall belong exclusively to the Company.  Any Proprietary Materials developed by the Executive that, under
applicable law, may not be considered works made for hire, are hereby assigned to the Company without the need for any further
consideration, and the Executive agrees to take such further action, including executing such instruments and documents as the
Company may reasonab ly request, to evidence such assignment.

7. Miscellaneous.

(a) Assignment and Successors.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto
and their respective heirs, legatees, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  Notwithstanding
anything in the foregoing to the contrary, the Executive may not assign any of his rights or obligations under this Agreement
without first obtaining the written consent of the Company.  The Company may assign this Agreement in connection with a sale of
all or substantially all of its business and/or assets (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) and
will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of
the business and/or assets of the Company to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same
extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.  “Company” means the Company
as hereinbefore defined and any successor to its business and/or assets as aforesaid that assumes and agrees to perform this
Agreement by operation of law or otherwise.

(b) Survival.  The provisions of Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement pursuant to
Section 3.
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(c) Notices.  Any notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid as follows:

If to the Executive, addressed to the Executive at the address then shown in the Executive’s employment records

If to the Company at:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
New York, New York 10016
Attention: Chairman

With a copy to:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
New York, New York 10016
Attention:  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Any party may change the address to which notices are to be sent by giving notice of such change of address to the other party in
the manner provided above for giving notice.

(d) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws
of the State of New York, without regard to the principles thereof relating to the conflict of laws.

(e) Consent to Jurisdiction.  Any judicial proceeding brought against the Executive with respect to this Agreement
may be brought in any court of competent jurisdiction in the Borough of Manhattan in the City and State of New York and, by
execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Executive

(i) accepts, generally and unconditionally, the nonexclusive jurisdiction of such courts and any related appellate
courts, and irrevocably agrees to be bound by any final judgment (after exhausting all appeals therefrom or after all time periods for
such appeals have expired) rendered thereby in connection with this Agreement and

(ii) irrevocably waives any objection the Executive may now or hereafter have as to the venue of any such suit,
action or proceeding brought in such a court or that such court is an inconvenient forum.

(f) Severability.  The invalidity of any one or more provisions of this Agreement or any part thereof shall not affect
the validity of any other provision of this Agreement or part thereof; and in the event that one or more provisions contained herein
shall be held to be invalid, the Agreement shall be reformed to make such provisions enforceable.
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(g) Waiver.  The Company, in its sole discretion, may waive any of the requirements imposed on the Executive by
this Agreement.  The Company, however, reserves the right to deny any similar waiver in the future.  Each such waiver must be
express and in writing and there will be no waiver by conduct.  Pursuit by the Company of any available remedy, either in law or
equity, or any action of any kind, does not constitute waiver of any other remedy or action.  Such remedies and actions are
cumulative and not exclusive.  The Executive’s or the Company’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this
Agreement or the failure to assert any right the Executive or the Company may have hereunder, including, without limitation, the
right of the Executive to terminate employment for Good Reason or the Company’s right to terminate the Executive’s employment
for Cause, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such provision or right or any other provision or right of this Agreement.

(h) Indemnification.  The Company shall indemnify the Executive and hold the Executive harmless from and against
any claim, loss or cause of action arising from or out of the Executive’s performance as an officer, director or employee of the
Company or in any other capacity, including any fiduciary capacity, in which the Executive serves at the request of the Company to
the maximum extent permitted by applicable law; provided, however, that the Executive shall not be entitled to indemnification
hereunder with respect to any expense, loss, liability or damage which was caused by the Executive’s own gross negligence, willful
misconduct or reckless disregard of his duties hereunder.  The Company shall pay any and all reasonable legal fees incurred by the
Executive in the defense of any such claim on a current basis, provided, however, that the Executive shall be obligated t o reimburse
the Company for any fees that it is determined the Executive is not entitled to have paid by the Company under applicable law.  The
Company shall have the right to select counsel reasonably acceptable to the Executive to defend such claim and to have the same
counsel represent the Company and its officers and directors unless there is a material conflict of interest between the Company and
the Executive, in which case the Executive may select and retain his own counsel at the Company’s expense.  The Executive shall
not settle any action or claim against the Executive without the prior written consent of the Company, except at the Executive’s sole
cost and expense.

(i) Section Headings.  The section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall
not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

(j) Withholding.  Any payments provided for hereunder shall be reduced by any amounts required to be withheld by
the Company, and any benefits provided hereunder shall be subject to taxation if and to the extent provided, from time to time
under applicable Federal, State or local employment or income tax laws or similar statutes or other provisions of law then in effect.

(k)  Section 409A of the Code.  The provisions of this Agreement and any payments made herein are intended to
comply with, and should be interpreted consistent with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related regulations
or other effective guidance promulgated thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”). The time or schedule of a payment to which the
Executive is entitled under this Agreement may be accelerated at any time that this Agreement fails to meet the requirements of
Section 409A and any such payment will be
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limited to the amount required to be included in the Executive’s income as a result of the failure to comply with Section 409A.

(l) Waiver of Jury Trial.  The Company and the Executive hereby waive, as against the other, trial by jury in any
judicial proceeding to which they are both parties involving, directly or indirectly, any matter in any way arising out of, related to
or connected with this Agreement.

(l) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding, and cancels and supersedes all prior
agreements, including, without limitation, the Existing Agreement and any agreement in principle or oral statement, letter of intent,
statement of understanding or guidelines of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, this Agreement does not cancel or supersede the Plans or the plans referred to in Section 2(c).  This Agreement may be
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified only by a written document executed by each of the parties hereto or their
respective successors or assigns.  The Executive acknowledges that he is entering into this Agreement of his own free will and
accord with no duress, and that he has read this Agreement and understands it and its legal consequences.

(m) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement on the day and year first above written.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

By:   /s/  Mark D. Fischer
Name:  Mark D. Fischer
Title:  Senior Vice President

  /s/  Michael Shaffer
MICHAEL SHAFFER
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EXHIBIT A

RELEASE

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME OR MAY CONCERN, KNOW THAT MICHAEL
SHAFFER (the “Releasor”), on behalf of himself and his heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives, in consideration
of the amounts paid as severance pursuant to Section [3(b)][3(f)(ii)] of the Employment Agreement between the Releasor and
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION, dated as of June 14, 2007 (as the same may have been heretofore amended, the
“Agreement”) and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, hereby
irrevocably, unconditionally, generally and forever releases and discharges Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, together with its
current and former affiliates and subsidiaries (the “Company”), each of their respective current and former officers, directors,
employees, agents, representatives and ad visors and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives,
receivers, affiliates, beneficial owners, successors and assigns (collectively, the “Releasees”), from, and hereby waives and settles,
any and all, actions, causes of action, suits, debts, promises, damages, or any liability, claims or demands, known or unknown and
of any nature whatsoever and which the Releasor ever had, now has or hereafter can, shall or may have, for, upon, or by reason of
any matter, cause or thing whatsoever from the beginning of the world to the date of this Release arising directly or indirectly
pursuant to or out of his employment with the Company or the termination of such employment (collectively, “Claims”), including,
without limitation, any Claims (i) arising under any federal, state, local or other statutes, orders, laws, ordinances, regulations or the
like that relate to the employment relationship and/or specifically that prohibit discrimination based upon age, race, religi on,
gender, national origin, disability, sexual orientation or any other unlawful bases, including, without limitation, the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Civil Rights
Act of 1991, as amended, the Civil Rights Acts of 1866 and 1871, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as
amended, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as
amended, the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, as amended, the New York State and New York City Human Rights Laws,
as amended, the laws of the States of New York and New Jersey, the City of New York and Somerset County, New Jersey relating
to discrimination, as amended, and any and all applicable rules and regulations promulgated pursuant to or concerning any of the
foregoing statutes; (ii) arising under or pursuant to any contract, express or implied, written or oral, including, without limitation,
the Agreement; (iii) for wrongful dismissal or termination of employment; (iv) for tort, tortious or harassing conduct, infliction of
mental or emotional distress, fraud, libel or slander; and (v) for damages, including, without limitation, punitive or compensatory
damages or for attorneys’ fees, expenses, costs, wages, injunctive or equitable relief.  This Release shall not apply to any claim that
the Releasor may have for a breach of Section [3(b)][3(f)(ii)], 5(d) or 7(h) of the Agreement or any plan or program of the type
referred to in Sections 2(b) and 2(c) of the Agreement in which the Releasor was a participant.
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The Releasor agrees not to file, assert or commence any Claims against any Releasee with any federal, state or local court or
any administrative or regulatory agency or body.

The Releasor represents and warrants that there has been no assignment or other transfer of any interest in any Claim which
the Releasor may have against the Releasees, or any of them, and the Releasor agrees to indemnify and hold the Releasees, and
each of them, harmless from any Claims, or other liability, demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred by the
Releasees, or any of them, as a result of any person asserting any such assignment or transfer. It is the intention of the parties that
this indemnity does not require payment as a condition precedent to recovery by the Releasees against the Releasor under this
indemnity.

The Releasor agrees that if he hereafter commences, joins in, or in any manner seeks relief through any suit arising out of,
based upon, or relating to any Claim released hereunder, or in any manner asserts against the Releasees, or any of them, any Claim
released hereunder, then the Releasor shall pay to the Releasees, and each of them, in addition to any other damages caused to the
Releasees thereby, all attorneys’ fees incurred by the Releasees in defending or otherwise responding to said suit or Claim.

The Releasor hereby waives any right to, and agrees not to, seek reinstatement of his employment with the Company or any
Releasee. The Releasor acknowledges that the amounts to be paid to him under Section [3(b)][3(f)(ii)] of the Agreement include
benefits, monetary or otherwise, which the Releasor has not earned or accrued, or to which he is not already entitled.

The Releasor acknowledges that he was advised by the Company to consult with his attorney concerning the waivers
contained in this Release, that he has consulted with counsel, and that the waivers the Releasor has made herein are knowing,
conscious and with full appreciation that he is forever foreclosed from pursuing any of the rights so waived.

The Releasor has a period of 21 days from the date on which a copy of this Release has been delivered to him to consider
whether to sign it.  In addition, in the event that the Releasor elects to sign and return to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation a copy of
this Release, the Releasor has a period of seven days (the “Revocation Period”) following the date of such return to revoke this
Release, which revocation must be in writing and delivered to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, 200 Madison Avenue, New York,
New York 10016, Attention: General Counsel, within the Revocation Period.  This Release, and the Releasor’s right to receive the
amounts paid to him under Section [3(b)][3(f)(ii)], shall not be effective or enforceable until the expiration of the Revocation
Period without the Releasor’s exercise of his right of revocation.

This Release shall not be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified in any way except in a writing signed by the
Releasor and Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.

This Release shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York,
without reference to its principles of conflicts of law.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Releasor has caused this Release to be executed as of ___________________, 20__.

Michael Shaffer

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED
BEFORE ME THIS ____ DAY OF
____________________, 20__.

Notary Public
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Exhibit 10.9

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of June 14, 2007, between
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (“PVH” and, together with its affiliates and subsidiaries, the
“Company”), and ALLEN SIRKIN (the “Executive”).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Company has previously entered into an Employment Agreement with the Executive, dated as of March 4,
2003 (the “Existing Agreement”), and, in connection with the Executive’s promotion to President and Chief Operating Officer of
the Company, desires to amend and restate the Existing Agreement so as to ensure that the Executive is retained on a full-time basis
in accordance with the terms set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company on the terms and conditions set forth herein, and agrees
that this Agreement shall amend and supercede the terms and conditions of the Existing Agreement effective as of the Effective
Date (as defined below).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto
hereby agree as follows:

1. Employment.

(a) Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective as of March 9, 2006, the date on which the Executive’s
promotion was made (the “Effective Date”).  

(b) Employment Period.  The Company agrees to continue to employ the Executive, and the Executive agrees to
continue to be employed by the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof, for the period commencing on the
Effective Date and ending on the date on the date of the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held in
calendar year 2009, or such later date that the parties may hereafter agree to (the “Expiration Date”), and subject to earlier
termination in accordance with the provision of Section 4 hereof (the “Employment Period”).  The parties shall meet during the
first quarter of the Company’s 2008 fiscal year, and during the first quarter of the last year of any renewal period, to discuss the
renewal of this Agreement for additional periods and any revised terms that may apply to any such renewal .  The renewal of this
Agreement for any additional periods is at the sole discretion of each of the parties hereto.  Each of the parties acknowledges and
agrees that either party may terminate the Executive’s employment at any time, for any reason, with or without Cause (as defined in
Section 3(a)).



(c) Position and Duties.   (i)  During the Employment Period, (A) the Executive shall serve as the President and
Chief Operating Officer of the Company, with such duties and responsibilities as shall from time to time be assigned to him and as
are consistent and commensurate with his title and position, and (B) the Executive’s services shall be performed at the Company’s
headquarters in New York, New York as of the Effective Date or such other location as may be mutually agreed between the
Company and the Executive, except for travel, and visits to Company offices and facilities worldwide, reasonably required to
attend to the Company’s business.  

(ii) During the Employment Period, and excluding any periods of vacation and sick leave to which the
Executive is entitled, the Executive agrees to devote substantially all of his business attention and time (with business time
determined in accordance with the Company’s usual and customary standards for its senior executives) to the business and affairs
of the Company and, to the extent necessary to discharge the responsibilities assigned to the Executive hereunder, to use the
Executive’s reasonable best efforts to perform faithfully and conscientiously such responsibilities.  During the Employment Period,
the Executive shall be entitled to serve as a member of the board of directors of a reasonable number of other companies, to serve
on civic and charitable boards and to manage his personal and family investments, in each case, to the extent such activities do not
materi ally interfere, in the reasonable judgment of the Company’s Board of Directors (which, for purposes of this Agreement,
includes any committee thereof, unless the context requires otherwise (the “Board”)), with the performance of his duties for the
Company and are otherwise consistent with the Company’s governance policies.

2. Compensation.

(a) Base Salary.  During the Employment Period, the Company shall pay the Executive a salary at the annual
rate of $900,000, increasing to $910,000 effective June 1, 2007 (“Base Salary”), payable in accordance with the normal payroll
procedures of the Company in effect from time to time.  The Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed for increase at least
annually by the Board pursuant to its normal performance review policies for senior executives.  Base Salary shall not be reduced
after any increase, and the term Base Salary as utilized in this Agreement shall refer to the Executive’s annual base salary as then in
effect.  

(b) Incentive and Bonus Compensation.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in the Company’s existing
and future bonus and stock option plans and other incentive compensation programs for similarly situated executives (collectively,
“Plans”), to the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such Plan under the generally applicable provisions
thereof in effect from time to time.  Such eligibility is not a guarantee of participation in or of the receipt of any award, payment or
other compensation under any Plan.  To the extent the Executive does participate in a Plan and the Plan does not expressly provide
otherwise, the Chief Executive Officer and/or the Board, as appropriate, may determine all terms of participation (including,
without limitation, the type and size of any award, payment or other compensation and the timin g and conditions of receipt thereof
by the Executive) in the Chief Executive Officer’s or the Board’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to
prohibit the Company or the Board from amending or terminating any and all Plans in its sole
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and absolute discretion.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the terms of each Plan shall govern the Executive’s rights and
obligations thereunder during the Executive’s employment and upon the termination thereof.  Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the definition of “Cause” hereunder shall not supersede the definition of “cause” in any Plan (unless the Plan expressly
defers to the definition of “cause” under an executive’s employment agreement) and any rights of the Executive hereunder upon
and subsequent to the termination of the Executive’s employment shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any right of the
Executive under any Plan then in effect upon or subsequent to a termination of employment.

(c) Benefits.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in all employee benefit and insurance plans
sponsored or maintained by the Company for similarly situated executives (including any savings, retirement, life, health and
disability plans), to the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such plan under the generally applicable
provisions thereof in effect from time to time.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to prohibit the Company or the Board from
amending or terminating any such plan in its sole and absolute discretion.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the terms of each
such plan shall govern the Executive’s rights and obligations thereunder during the Executive’s employment and upon the
termination thereof.

(d) Expenses.  The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for reasonable expenses incurred or paid by
the Executive in the performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder in accordance with the generally applicable policies and
procedures of the Company, as in effect from time to time and subject to the terms and conditions thereof.  

3. Termination of Employment.  The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate, or shall be subject to
termination at any time, as described in this Section 3.  A termination of employment shall mean that the Executive has ceased to
provide any services as an employee of the Company.

(a) Termination for Cause by the Company.  The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment with the
Company at any time for Cause.  Upon such termination, the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder
except for the payment or provision, as applicable, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) other payments,
entitlements or benefits, if any, in accordance with terms of the applicable plans, programs, arrangements or other agreements of
the Company or any affiliate thereof (other than any severance plan or policy) as to which the Executive held rights to such
payments, entitlements or benefits, whether as a participant, beneficiary or otherwise on the date of termination (� 7;Other
Benefits”).  For the avoidance of doubt, the Executive shall have no right to receive any amounts under the Company’s severance
policy upon his termination for Cause,

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean:  (1) gross negligence or willful misconduct, as
the case may be, in the performance of the material responsibilities of the Executive’s office or position, which results in material
economic harm to the Company or its affiliates or in reputational harm causing demonstrable injury to the Company
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or its affiliates; (2) the willful and continued failure of the Executive to perform substantially the Executive’s duties with the
Company or any affiliate (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness), after a written
demand for substantial performance is delivered to the Executive by the Board or the Company that specifically identifies the
manner in which the Board or the Company believes that the Executive has not substantially performed the Executive’s duties; (3)
the Executive is convicted of, or pleads guilty or nolo contendere to, a felony within the meaning of U.S. Federal, state or local law
(other than a traffic violation); (4) the Executive having willfully divulged, furnished or made accessible to anyone other than the
Company, its directors, officers, employees, auditors and legal advisors, otherwise than in the ordinary course of business, any
Confidential Information (as hereinafter defined); or (5) any act or failure to act by the Executive, which, under the provisions of
applicable law, disqualifies the Executive from acting in any or all capacities in which he is then acting for the Company.  

(ii) For purposes of this provision, no act or failure to act, on the part of the Executive, shall be
considered “willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in bad faith or without reasonable belief that the
Executive’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company.  Any act, or failure to act, based upon authority given
pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or upon the instructions of the Board or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company or based upon the advice of counsel for the Company shall be conclusively presumed to be done, or omitted to be done,
by the Executive in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.  The Executive’s employment shall not be terminated for
“Cause” within the meaning of clause (1) or (2) above, unless the Executive has been given notice stating the basis for such
termination and he is given 20 days to cure the neglect or conduct that is the basis of any such determination.  The Board or the
Company shall determine whether the Executive has cured such neglect or conduct.

(b) Termination without Cause by the Company or for Good Reason by the Executive Prior to a Change in
Control. The Company may also terminate the Executive’s employment with the Company at any time without Cause, and the
Executive may terminate his employment with the Company at any time for Good Reason (as defined in Section 3(f)(i)(B)).   

(i) If the Company terminates the Executive’s services without Cause or the Executive terminates his
employment with the Company for Good Reason, other than during the two-year period following a Change in Control (as defined
in Section 3(f)(i)(A)), the Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (W) the portion of the Base Salary for periods
prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (X) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to
Section 2(d), (Y) an aggregate amount (the “Severance Amount”) equal to two times the average annual Cash Compensation (as
hereinafter defined) paid to and/or accrued with respect to the Executive during the two completed fiscal years of the Company
immediately preceding the date of such termination, and (Z) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.  For purposes of this
Agreement, � 47;Cash Compensation” shall mean only annual base salary and annual cash bonus (if any) and, for the avoidance of
doubt, shall not include any payouts under any long-term incentive Plan.  The Severance Amount shall be paid in 48 substantially
equal payments and on the same schedule that Base Salary was paid immediately prior to the Executive’s date of termination,
commencing on the first such scheduled payroll date that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the Executive’s
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termination of employment, subject to the Executive’s compliance with the requirement to deliver the release contemplated
pursuant to Section 4(a).  Each such installment payment shall be treated as a separate payment as defined under Treasury
Regulation §1.409A-2(b)(2).  If the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined under the Company’s policy for
determining specified employees  on the date on which he separates from service, all payments of the Severance Amount (other
than payments that satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4), or that are treated as
separation pay under Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii) or §1.409A-1(b)(9)(v)) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on
any date prior to the first business d ay after the date that is six months following the Executive’s separation from service.  The first
payment that can be made shall include the cumulative amount of any amounts that could not be paid during such six-month
period.  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first business day of the calendar year in
which the separation from service occurs) on all payments not paid to the Executive prior to the first business day after the sixth
month anniversary of his separation from service that otherwise would have been paid during such six-month period had this delay
provision not applied to the Executive and shall be paid with the first payment after such six-month period.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, payments delayed pursuant to this six-month delay requirement shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s
death prior to the end of the six-month period.  For purposes hereof, the Executive shall have a “separation fro m service” upon his
death or other termination of employment for any reason.

(ii) In addition, if the Company terminates the Executive’s employment with the Company without Cause
or the Executive terminates his employment with the Company for Good Reason, then the Company shall also provide to the
Executive, during the period the Severance Amount is paid, medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage for the
Executive and the members of his family which is not less favorable to the Executive than the group medical, dental, life and
disability insurance coverage carried by the Company for the Executive and the members of his family immediately prior to such
termination of employment; provided, however, that the obligations set forth in this sentence shall terminate to the extent the
Executive obtains comparable medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other employer during such period,
but the Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during such period, whether or not any such
employment would provide comparable medical and dental insurance coverage; and provided further, however, that the Executive
shall be obligated to pay an amount equal to the active employee contribution, if any, for each such coverage.  

(iii) For the avoidance of doubt, the payment of the Severance Amount shall be in lieu of any amounts
payable under the Company’s severance policy (as then in effect) and the Executive hereby waives any and all rights thereunder.

(c) Termination by Voluntary Resignation (without Good Reason) by the Executive; Non-Renewal; Retirement.
 Any voluntary resignation of employment by the Executive (other than for Good Reason and which shall not include a resignation
in connection with a termination by the Company for Cause), or the non-renewal of this Agreement for periods after the date of the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held in calendar year 2009, shall be deemed to be a retirement and shall be
treated as a retirement for purposes of (x)

5



any plan, policy, program or arrangement of the Company as to which the Executive held rights, whether as a participant,
beneficiary or otherwise, excluding any incentive compensation plan, including, without limitation the Company’s stock option
plans, Performance Incentive Bonus Plan and Long-Term Incentive Plan, or (y) any agreement between the Company and the
Executive.  In addition, the Executive shall be entitled to (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or
provision of any Other Benefits.  With respect to the Company’s incentive compensation plans, the termination of the Executive’s
employment by voluntary termination shall not be treated as a retirement under the applicable plan with respect to any award
granted or established on or after the Date hereof, including, without limitation, the grant of stock options on or after the Date
hereof, and the establishment of performance goals and potential payouts under the Company’s Performance Incentive Bonus Plan
and Long-Term Incentive Plan for performance cycles that commence on or after January 30, 2006, unless such retirement occurs
on or after the date of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held in calendar year 2009 and with the consent of
the Board (including as a result of the Board’s decision not to renew this Agreement).

(d) Disability.  The Executive’s employment shall be terminable by the Company, subject to applicable law and
the Company’s short-term and long-term disability policies then in effect, if the Executive becomes physically or mentally disabled,
whether totally or partially, such that he is prevented from performing his usual duties and services hereunder for a period of 180
consecutive days as determined by a medical doctor selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the Executive or his
legal representative  (“Disability”).  If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company due to his Disability, the
Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder, except for the payment to the Executive or his legal guardian
or representative, as appropriate, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to th e effective date of termination accrued
but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other
Benefits.

(e) Death.  If the Executive shall die during the Employment Period, this Agreement shall terminate on the date
of the Executive’s death and the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder except for the payment to the
Executive’s estate of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if
any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d) and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.

(f) Termination by the Company without Cause or by the Executive For Good Reason Subsequent to a Change
in Control.

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(A) “Change in Control” shall be deemed to occur upon the first to occur of the following
events:
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(1) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)), other than a “person” who as of the Effective Date was the owner of
at least 8% of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities of the Company entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors (the “Outstanding Company Voting Securities”), becomes (A) a “beneficial
owner,” as such term is used in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at least one-quarter but less than one-half of the
Outstanding Company Voting Securities, unless such acquisition has been approved within thirty (30) days
thereafter by at least a majority of the Incumbent Board (as defined in clause (2) below taking into account the
provisos), or (B) a “beneficial owner,” as such term is us ed in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at least one-half
of the Outstanding Company Voting Securities; provided, however, that, for purposes of this Section 3(f)(i)(A)(1),
the following acquisitions shall not constitute a Change in Control:  (I) any acquisition directly from the Company,
other than an acquisition by virtue of the exercise of a conversion privilege unless the security being so converted
was itself acquired directly from the Company, (II) any acquisition by the Company, (III) any acquisition by any
employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any of its affiliates, or (IV) any
acquisition pursuant to a transaction which complies with clauses (A), (B) and (C) of Section 3(f)(i)(A)(3) below;

(2) Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”)
cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual becoming a
director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders,
was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall be
considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any
such individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as a result of an actual or threatened election contest (as
such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act) with respect to the
election or removal of directors or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a
person other than the Board;

(3) Consummation of a reorganization, merger, consolidation or a sale or other disposition
of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company (each, a “Business Combination”), in each case unless,
following such Business Combination, (A) all or substantially all of the individuals and entities that were the
beneficial owners of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company (the “Outstanding Company Common
Stock”) and the Outstanding Company Voting Securities, immediately prior to such  Business Combination,
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the then-outstanding shares of common stock and more
than 50% of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such
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Business Combination (including, without limitation, a corporation that, as a result of such transaction, owns the
Company or all or substantially all of the Company’s assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries) in
substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of the
Outstanding Company Common Stock and the Outstanding Company Voting Securities, as the case may be, (B) no
person (other than the Company, any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or such corporation
resulting from such Business Combination) beneficially owns directly or indirectly, 20% or more of, respectively,
the outstanding shares of common stock of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination or the
outstanding voting securities of such corporation entitled to vote generally in the el ection of directors, except to the
extent that such ownership existed prior to the Business Combination, and (C) at least a majority of the members of
the board of directors of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination were members of the Incumbent
Board at the time of the execution of the initial agreement or of the action of the Board providing for such Business
Combination, whichever occurs first; or

(4) The approval by the stockholders of the Company of a complete liquidation or
dissolution of the Company.

(B) “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events or circumstances
without the Executive’s prior written consent:

(1) the assignment to the Executive of any duties inconsistent in any material respect with
the Executive’s position (including status, offices, titles and reporting requirements), authority, duties or
responsibilities as contemplated by Section 1(c) (or following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to
such Change in Control), or any other action by the Company that results in a material diminution in such position,
authority, duties or responsibilities, excluding for this purpose an isolated, insubstantial and inadvertent action not
taken in bad faith and that is remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of notice thereof given by the
Executive and the assignment of additional or alternate duties or responsibilities to the Executive in connection with
his professional development or the reallocation of some of the Executive’s duties or responsibilities to other
executives of the Company in connection with the evolution of the Executive’s position;

(2) a reduction of the Executive’s Base Salary;

(3) the taking of any action by the Company that substantially diminishes (A) the
aggregate value of the Executive’s total compensation opportunity, and/or (B) the aggregate value of the employee
benefits provided to the Executive pursuant to the Company’s employee benefit and insurance plans as in effect on
the Effective Date (or, following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to such Change in Control);
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(4) the Company requiring that the Executive’s services be rendered primarily at a
location or locations more than 35 miles from the location set forth in Section 1(c), except for travel, and visits to
Company offices and facilities worldwide, reasonably required to attend to the Company’s business; or

(5) the failure of the Company to require any successor to the Company (whether direct or
indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of
the Company to assume expressly and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent
that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.  

(ii) If within two years after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Executive terminates his
employment with the Company for Good Reason or the Company terminates the Executive’s employment for any reason other than
death, Disability or Cause, the Company (or the then former Company subsidiary employing the Executive), or the consolidated,
surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation, merger or sale of assets, the
Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (A) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (B) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), (C) an aggregate amount
equal to two times the average annual Cash Compensation paid to and/or accrued with respect to the Executive during the two
completed fiscal years of th e Company immediately preceding the date of such termination, and (D) the payment or provision of
any Other Benefits.  The severance amount described in clause (C) of the immediately preceding sentence shall be paid in a lump
sum on the first scheduled payroll date (in accordance with the Company’s payroll schedule in effect for the Executive immediately
prior to such termination) that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the Executive’s termination of employment;
provided, however, that  the payment of such severance amount is subject to the Executive’s compliance with the requirement to
deliver the release contemplated pursuant to Section 4(a). If the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined under the
Company’s policy for determining specified employees on the date on which he separates from service, the lump sum amount
described in clause (C) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six
months following the Executive’s separation from service (unless such amount shall satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined
in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first
business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on such amount during the six-month period and
shall be paid at the same time at which the lump sum payment is made.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a payment delayed
pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-
month period. Upon the termination of employment with the Company for Good Reason by the Executive or upon the involuntary
termination of employment with the Company of the Executive for any reason other than death, Disability or Cause, in either case
within two years after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Company (or the the n former Company subsidiary employing the
Executive), or the consolidated, surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation,
merger or sale of assets, shall also
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provide, for the period of two consecutive years commencing on the date of such termination of employment, medical, dental, life
and disability insurance coverage for the Executive and the members of his family which is not less favorable to the Executive than
the group medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage carried by the Company for the Executive and the members of his
family either immediately prior to such termination of employment or immediately prior to the occurrence of such Change in
Control, whichever is greater; provided, however, that the obligations set forth in this sentence shall terminate to the extent the
Executive obtains comparable medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other employer during such two-year
period, but the Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during such tw o-year period, whether or not
any such employment would provide comparable medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage.  For the avoidance of
doubt, the amounts payable under clause (C) of this Section 3(f)(ii) as severance shall be in lieu of any amounts payable under the
Company’s severance policy and the Executive hereby waives any and all rights thereunder.  

(iii) Certain Additional Payments by the Company.

(A)  In the event it shall be determined that any payment or distribution by the Company or its
affiliated companies to or for the benefit of the Executive (whether paid or payable or distributed or distributable pursuant
to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise, but determined without regard to any additional payments required under this
Section 3(f)(iii)) (a “Payment”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code or any interest or
penalties are incurred by the Executive with respect to such excise tax (such excise tax, together with any such interest and
penalties, collectively the “Excise Tax”), then the Executive shall be entitled to receive an additional payment (the “Gross-
Up Payment”) in an amount such that, after payment by the Executive of all taxes (including any interest or penal ties
imposed with respect to such taxes), including, without limitation, any income taxes (and any interest and penalties
imposed with respect thereto) and Excise Tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment, the Executive retains an amount of the
Gross-Up Payment equal to the Excise Tax imposed upon the Payments.  

(B) Subject to the provisions of Section 3(f)(iii)(C), all determinations required to be made under
this Section 3(f)(iii), including whether and when a Gross-Up Payment is required, the amount of such Gross-Up Payment
and the assumptions to be utilized in arriving at such determination, shall be made by the Company’s auditors or such other
nationally recognized certified public accounting firm reasonably acceptable to the Executive as may be designated by the
Company (the “Accounting Firm”).  The Accounting Firm shall provide detailed supporting calculations both to the
Company and the Executive within 15 business days of the receipt of notice from the Executive that there has been a
Payment or such earlier time as is requested by the Company.  All fees and expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be borne
solely by the Company.  Any G ross-Up Payment, as determined pursuant to this Section 3(f)(iii), shall be paid by the
Company to the Executive in accordance with Section 3(f)(iii)(F).  Any determination by the Accounting Firm shall be
binding upon the Company and the Executive.  As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 4999 of the Code
at
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the time of the initial determination by the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is possible that Gross-Up Payments that will not
have been made by the Company should have been made (the “Underpayment”), consistent with the calculations required to
be made hereunder.  In the event the Company exhausts its remedies pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C) and the Executive
thereafter is required to make a payment of any Excise Tax, the Accounting Firm shall determine the amount of the
Underpayment that has occurred and any such Underpayment shall be paid by the Company to or for the benefit of the
Executive in accordance with Section 3(f)(iii)(F).

(C) The Executive shall notify the Company in writing of any claim by the Internal Revenue
Service that, if successful, would require the payment by the Company of the Gross-Up Payment.  Such notification shall be
given as soon as practicable, but no later than ten business days after the Executive is informed in writing of such claim.
 The Executive shall apprise the Company of the nature of such claim and the date on which such claim is requested to be
paid.  The Executive shall not pay such claim prior to the expiration of the 30-day period following the date on which the
Executive gives such notice to the Company (or such shorter period ending on the date that any payment of taxes with
respect to such claim is due).  If the Company notifies the Executive in writing prior to the expiration of such period that the
Company desires to contest such claim, the Executive shall:

(1) give the Company any information reasonably requested by the Company relating to
such claim,

(2) take such action in connection with contesting such claim as the Company shall
reasonably request in writing from time to time, including, without limitation, accepting legal representation with
respect to such claim by an attorney reasonably selected by the Company,

(3) cooperate with the Company in good faith in order effectively to contest such claim,
and

(4) permit the Company to participate in any proceedings relating to such claim;

provided, however, that the Company shall bear and pay directly all costs and expenses (including additional interest and
penalties) incurred in connection with such contest, and shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax
basis, for any Excise Tax or income tax (including interest and penalties) imposed as a result of such representation and
payment of costs and expenses.  Without limitation on the foregoing provisions of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company shall
control all proceedings taken in connection with such contest, and, at its sole discretion, may pursue or forgo any and all
administrative appeals, proceedings, hearings and conferences with the applicable taxing authority in respect of such claim
and may, at its sole discretion, either pay the tax claimed to the appropriate taxing authority on behalf of the Executive and
direct th e Executive to sue for a refund or contest the claim in any permissible manner, and the
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Executive agrees to prosecute such contest to a determination before any administrative tribunal, in a court of initial
jurisdiction and in one or more appellate courts, as the Company shall determine; provided, however, that, if the Company
pays such claim and directs the Executive to sue for a refund, the Company shall indemnify and hold the Executive
harmless, on an after-tax basis, from any Excise Tax or income tax (including interest or penalties) imposed with respect to
such payment or with respect to any imputed income in connection with such payment; and, provided further, however, that
any extension of the statute of limitations relating to payment of taxes for the taxable year of the Executive with respect to
which such contested amount is claimed to be due is limited solely to such contested amount.  Furthermore , the Company’s
control of the contest shall be limited to issues with respect to which the Gross-Up Payment would be payable hereunder,
and the Executive shall be entitled to settle or contest, as the case may be, any other issue raised by the Internal Revenue
Service or any other taxing authority.

(D) If, after the receipt by the Executive of a Gross-Up Payment or payment by the Company of
an amount on the Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), the Executive becomes entitled to receive any refund
with respect to the Excise Tax to which such Gross-Up Payment relates or with respect to such claim, the Executive shall
(subject to the Company’s complying with the requirements of Section 3(f)(iii)(C), if applicable) promptly pay to the
Company the amount of such refund (together with any interest paid or credited thereon after taxes applicable thereto).  If,
after payment by the Company of an amount on the Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), a determination is
made that the Executive shall not be entitled to any refund with respect to such claim and the Company does not notify the
Executive in writing of i ts intent to contest such denial of refund prior to the expiration of 30 days after such determination,
then the amount of such payment shall offset, to the extent thereof, the amount of Gross-Up Payment required to be paid.

(E) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company may, in its sole
discretion, withhold and pay to the Internal Revenue Service or any other applicable taxing authority, for the benefit of the
Executive, all or any portion of any Gross-Up Payment, and the Executive hereby consents to such withholding.

(F) Any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company of expenses incurred by the
Executive in connection with a tax audit or litigation relating to the Excise Tax, as provided for in this Section 3(f)(iii), shall
be paid no later than the last day of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the Executive remitted the Excise
Tax or, if no Excise Tax is paid, the end of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the audit is completed or
there is a final and nonappealable settlement or other resolution of the litigation.  Furthermore, if the Executive is a
“specified employee,” as determined under the Company’s policy for determining specified employees, on the date on
which he separates from service, any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company as required by this Section 3(f)
(iii) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six months
following the Executive’s separation from service (unless such amount
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shall satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will
accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first business day of the calendar year in which the separation from
service occurs) on such amount during the six-month period and shall be paid at the same time at which such Gross-Up
Payment or reimbursement is made.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a payment delayed pursuant to the preceding two
sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-month period.

(g) Notice of Termination.  Any termination by the Company or by the Executive, other than a termination by
reason of the Executive’s death, shall be communicated by a Notice of Termination to the other party hereto given in accordance
with Section 7(c).  “Notice of Termination” means a written notice that (i) indicates the specific termination provision in this
Agreement relied upon, (ii) to the extent applicable, sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a
basis for termination of the Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated, and (iii) if the date of termination is other
than the date of receipt of such notice, specifies the date of termination.  

(h) Date of Termination.  For purposes of this Agreement the Executive’s date of termination of employment
shall be (i) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company with or without Cause, by the Executive for Good Reason,
or due to the Executive’s Disability, the date of termination shall be the date on which the other party receives the Notice of
Termination, unless a later date is mutually agreed, (ii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Executive other than for
Good Reason, the 90th day following the Company’s receipt of the Notice of Termination, unless the Company waives or reduces
such period as provided in Section 3(c), and (iii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by reason of death, the date of
termination shall be the date of death.

(i) Resignation.  Upon termination of the Executive’s employment for any reason, the Executive agrees to
resign, effective as of the date of termination, from any positions that the Executive holds with the Company and its affiliates, the
Board (and any committees thereof), unless the Board requests otherwise and the Executive agrees, and the board of directors (and
any committees thereof) of any of the Company’s subsidiaries and affiliates.

4. Effect of Termination.  (a)  Full Settlement.  The amounts paid to the Executive pursuant to Section 3(b) or 3(f)(ii),
as applicable, following termination of his employment shall be in full and complete satisfaction of the Executive’s rights under
this Agreement and any other claims he may have with respect to his employment by the Company and the termination thereof,
other than as expressly provided in Section 2(b).  Such amounts shall constitute liquidated damages with respect to any and all such
rights and claims.  In consideration of the Executive’s receipt thereof, the Executive shall execute a release in favor of the
Company, substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.  Pursuant to said release, the Company shall be released and discharged
from any and all liability to the Executive in connection with this Agreeme nt and otherwise in connection with the Executive’s
employment with the Company and the termination thereof, including, without limitation, any claims arising under federal, state or
local labor, employment and employment discrimination laws, but excluding claims with respect to this Agreement and any Plan. 
 The payments and provision of benefits to the Executive required by
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Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii), other than amounts that are required to be paid to the Executive under applicable law, shall be
conditioned upon the Executive’s delivery (and non-revocation prior to the expiration of the revocation period contained in the
release) of such release in favor of the Company, provided that such conditions are met on or before the date that is 30 days after
the date of the Executive’s termination of employment.  If such conditions are not met by such date, the Executive shall forfeit such
payments and benefits.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall be construed to release the Company from its
obligations to indemnify the Executive (as set forth in Section 7(h)).

(b) No Duplication; No Mitigation; Limited Offset.  In no event shall the Executive be entitled to duplicate
payments or benefits under different provisions of this Agreement or pursuant to the terms of any other plan, program or
arrangement of the Company or its affiliates.  In the event of any termination of the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall
be under no obligation to seek other employment, and, there shall be no offset against amounts due the Executive under this
Agreement or pursuant to any plan of the Company or any of its affiliates on account of any remuneration attributable to any
subsequent employment or any claim asserted by the Company or any of its affiliates, except with respect to the continuation of
benefits under Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii), which shall terminate immediately upon obtaining comparable coverage from another
employer.   ;

5. Restrictive Covenants.

(a) Confidentiality.  The Executive recognizes that any knowledge and information of any type whatsoever of a
confidential nature relating to the business of the Company, including, without limitation, all types of trade secrets, vendor and
customer lists and information, employee lists and information, information regarding product development, marketing plans,
management organization information, operating policies and manuals, sourcing data, performance results, business plans, financial
records, and other financial, commercial, business and technical information (collectively, “Confidential Information”), must be
protected as confidential, not copied, disclosed or used, other than for the benefit of the Company, at any time.  The Executive
further agrees that at any time during the Employment Period or thereafter he will not divulge to anyone (other than t he Company
or any person employed or designated by the Company), publish or make use of any Confidential Information without the prior
written consent of the Company, except as (and only to the extent) (i) required by an order of a court having competent jurisdiction
or under subpoena from an appropriate government agency and then only after providing the Company with the reasonable
opportunity to prevent such disclosure or to receive confidential treatment for the Confidential Information required to be
disclosed, (ii) with respect to any other litigation, arbitration or mediation involving this Agreement, including, but not limited to
the enforcement of this Agreement or (iii) as to Confidential Information that becomes generally known to the public or within the
relevant trade or industry other than due to the Executive’s violation of this Section 5(a).  The Executive further agrees that
following the termination of the Employment Period for whatever reason, (A) the Company shall keep all tangib le property
assigned to the Executive or prepared by the Executive and (B) the Executive shall not misappropriate or infringe upon the
Confidential Information of the Company (including the recreation or reconstruction of Confidential Information from memory).
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(b) Non-Interference.  The Executive acknowledges that information regarding the Company’s business and
financial relations with its vendors and customers is Confidential Information and proprietary to the Company and that any
interference with such relations based directly or indirectly on the use of such information would cause irreparable damage to the
Company.  The Executive acknowledges that by virtue of his employment with the Company, he has gained or may gain knowledge
of such information concerning the Company’s vendors and customers (respectively “Vendor Information” or “Customer
Information”), and that he would inevitably have to draw on this Vendor Information and Customer Information and on other
Confidential Information if he were to solicit or service the Company’s vendors or customers on behalf of a competing business e
nterprise.  Accordingly, and subject to the immediately following sentence, the Executive agrees that during the Employment
Period and for a period of 18 months following the termination thereof, other than by reason of (i) a termination by the Company
without Cause, (ii) a termination by the Executive for Good Reason or (iii) the non-renewal of this Agreement by the Company, the
Executive shall not, on behalf of himself or any other person, other than the Company, directly or indirectly do business with,
solicit the business of, or perform any services for any actual vendor or customer of the Company, any person that has been a
vendor or customer of the Company within the 12-month period preceding such termination or any actively solicited prospective
vendor or customer as to whom or which the Executive provided any services or as to whom or which the Executive has knowledge
of Vendor Information, Customer Information or Confidential Information. The foregoing restrictive covenant shall only apply to b
usiness activities engaged in by the Executive on behalf of himself or any other person that are directly competitive with those of
the operating divisions of the Company in which the Executive has worked or over which he has or has had supervisory
responsibility, in terms of channels of distribution, types of products, gender for which the products have been designed and
similarity of price range.  In addition, the Executive agrees that, during the Employment Period and such 18-month period
thereafter, he will not, directly or indirectly, seek to encourage or induce any such vendor or customer to cease doing business with,
or lessen its business with, the Company, or otherwise interfere with or damage (or attempt to interfere with or damage) any of the
Company’s relationships with its vendors and customers, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

(c) Non-Competition.  The Executive agrees that, during the Employment Period and for a period of 12 months
following his termination of employment, other than by reason of (i) a termination by the Company without Cause, (ii) a
termination by the Executive for Good Reason or (iii) the non-renewal of this Agreement by the Company, the Executive shall not,
without the prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly, on the Executive’s behalf or on behalf of any other person,
firm, corporation, association or other entity, as an employee, director, advisor, partner, consultant or otherwise, engage in any
business of, provide services to, enter the employ of, or have any interest in, any other person, firm, corporation or other entity that
is engaged in a business that is in competition with the primary businesses or products of the Company as of the Executive& #146;s
date of termination (following a Change in Control, such businesses or products shall be limited to those in which the Executive
has worked or over which he has or has had supervisory responsibility, in terms of channels of distribution, types of products,
gender for which the products have been designed and similarity of price range, as of his date of termination).  Nothing herein shall
restrict the Executive from owning, for
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personal investment purposes only, less than 5% of the voting stock of any publicly held corporation or 2% of the ownership
interest in any non-publicly held company, if the Executive has no other connection or relationship with the issuer of such
securities.     

(d) Non-Solicitation.  The Executive agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of 18 months
following the termination thereof for any reason, he will not hire or solicit to hire, whether on his own behalf or on behalf of any
other person (other than the Company), any employee of the Company or any individual who had left the employ of the Company
within 12 months of the termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.  In addition, during the Employment Period
and such 18-month period thereafter, the Executive will not, directly or indirectly, encourage or induce any employee of the
Company to leave the Company’s employ, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

(e) Public Comment.  The Executive, during the Employment Period and at all times thereafter, shall not make
any derogatory comment concerning the Company or any of its current or former directors, officers, stockholders or employees.
 Similarly, the then current (i) members of the Board and (ii) members of the Company’s senior management shall not make any
derogatory comment concerning the Executive, and the Company shall use reasonable efforts to ensure that the former (A)
members of the Board and (B) members of the Company’s senior management do not make any derogatory comment concerning
the Executive.      

(f) Blue Penciling.  If any of the restrictions on competitive or other activities contained in this Section 5 shall
for any reason be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessively broad as to duration, geographical scope, activity or
subject, such restrictions shall be construed so as thereafter to be limited or reduced to be enforceable to the extent compatible with
the applicable law; it being understood that by the execution of this Agreement, (i) the parties hereto regard such restrictions as
reasonable and compatible with their respective rights and (ii) the Executive acknowledges and agrees that the restrictions will not
prevent him from obtaining gainful employment subsequent to the termination of his employment.  The existence of any claim or
cause of action by the Executive against the Company shall not constitute a defense to the enforcemen t by the Company of the
foregoing restrictive covenants, but such claim or cause of action shall be determined separately.

(g) Injunctive Relief.  The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the covenants and obligations of the
Executive set forth in this Section 5 relate to special, unique and extraordinary services rendered by the Executive to the Company
and that a violation of any of the terms of such covenants and obligations will cause the Company irreparable injury for which
adequate remedies are not available at law.  Therefore, the Executive agrees that the Company shall be entitled to seek an
injunction, restraining order or other temporary or permanent equitable relief (without the requirement to post bond) restraining the
Executive from committing any violation of the covenants and obligations contained herein.  These injunctive remedies are
cumulative and are in addition to any other rights and remedies the Company may have at law or in equity.

6. Work for Hire.  The Executive agrees that all marketing, operating and training ideas, sourcing data, processes and
materials, including all inventions, discoveries,
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improvements, enhancements, written materials and development related to the business of the Company (“Proprietary Materials”)
to which the Executive may have access or that the Executive may develop or conceive while employed by the Company shall be
considered works made for hire for the Company and prepared within the scope of employment and shall belong exclusively to the
Company.  Any Proprietary Materials developed by the Executive that, under applicable law, may not be considered works made
for hire, are hereby assigned to the Company without the need for any further consideration, and the Executive agrees to take such
further action, including executing such instruments and documents as the Company may reasonably request, to evidence such
assignment.

7. Miscellaneous.

(a) Assignment and Successors.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective heirs, legatees, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  Notwithstanding
anything in the foregoing to the contrary, the Executive may not assign any of his rights or obligations under this Agreement
without first obtaining the written consent of the Company.  The Company may assign this Agreement in connection with a sale of
all or substantially all of its business and/or assets (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) and
will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of
the business and/or assets of the Company to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manne r and to the same
extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.  “Company” means the Company
as hereinbefore defined and any successor to its business and/or assets as aforesaid that assumes and agrees to perform this
Agreement by operation of law or otherwise.

(b) Survival.  The provisions of Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement
pursuant to Section 3.

(c) Notices.  Any notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered
or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid as follows:

If to the Executive, addressed to the Executive at the address then shown in the Executive’s employment
records

If to the Company at:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
New York, New York  10016 
Attention:  Chairman

With a copy to:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
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New York, New York  10016
Attention:  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Any party may change the address to which notices are to be sent by giving notice of such change of address to the other party in
the manner provided above for giving notice.

(d) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the
laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles thereof relating to the conflict of laws.

(e) Consent to Jurisdiction.  Any judicial proceeding brought against the Executive with respect to this
Agreement may be brought in any court of competent jurisdiction in the Borough of Manhattan in the City and State of New York
and, by execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Executive: (i) accepts, generally and unconditionally, the nonexclusive
jurisdiction of such courts and any related appellate courts, and irrevocably agrees to be bound by any final judgment (after
exhausting all appeals therefrom or after all time periods for such appeals have expired) rendered thereby in connection with this
Agreement, and (ii) irrevocably waives any objection the Executive may now or hereafter have as to the venue of any such suit,
action or proceeding brought in such a court or that such court is an inconvenient forum.

(f) Severability.  The invalidity of any one or more provisions of this Agreement or any part thereof shall not
affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement or part thereof; and in the event that one or more provisions contained
herein shall be held to be invalid, the Agreement shall be reformed to make such provisions enforceable.

(g) Waiver.  The Company, in its sole discretion, may waive any of the requirements imposed on the Executive
by this Agreement.  The Company, however, reserves the right to deny any similar waiver in the future.  Each such waiver must be
express and in writing and there will be no waiver by conduct.  Pursuit by the Company of any available remedy, either in law or
equity, or any action of any kind, does not constitute waiver of any other remedy or action.  Such remedies and actions are
cumulative and not exclusive. The Executive’s or the Company’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this
Agreement or the failure to assert any right the Executive or the Company may have hereunder, including, without limitation, the
right of the Executive to terminate employment for Good Reason or the Company’s right to terminate th e Executive’s employment
for Cause, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such provision or right or any other provision or right of this Agreement.

(h) Indemnification.  The Executive shall be entitled to indemnification (and the advancement of expenses) in
connection with a litigation or proceeding arising out of the Executive’s acting as President and Chief Operating Officer or an
employee, officer or director of the Company (or, to the extent such service is requested by the Company, any of its affiliates), to
the maximum extent permitted by applicable law; provided, however, that in the event that it is finally determined that the
Executive is not entitled to indemnification, the Executive shall promptly return any advanced amounts to the Company.  In
addition, the Executive shall be entitled to liability insurance coverage pursuant to a Company-purchased directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy on the same basis as other officers of the Company.  
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(i) Section Headings.  The section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and
shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

(j) Withholding.  Any payments provided for herein shall be reduced by any amounts required to be withheld by
the Company from time to time under applicable Federal, State or local employment or income tax laws or similar statutes or other
provisions of law then in effect.  

(k) Section 409A of the Code.  The provisions of this Agreement and any payments made herein are intended to
comply with, and should be interpreted consistent with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related regulations
or other effective guidance promulgated thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”). The time or schedule of a payment to which the
Executive is entitled under this Agreement may be accelerated at any time that this Agreement fails to meet the requirements of
Section 409A and any such payment will be limited to the amount required to be included in the Executive’s income as a result of
the failure to comply with Section 409A.

(l) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding, and cancels and supersedes all prior
agreements, including, without limitation, the Existing Agreement, and any agreement in principle or oral statement, letter of intent,
statement of understanding or guidelines of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, excluding the Agreement,
dated as of February 12, 1987, between the Company and the Executive relating to the Company’s Capital Accumulation Program,
as amended, the Plans or the plans referred to in Section 2(c), the terms and conditions of which shall not be affected hereby.  This
Agreement may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified only by a written document executed by each of the parties
hereto or their respective successors or assigns.  The Executive acknowledges that he is entering into this Agreement of his own
free will and accord with no duress, and that he has read this Agreement and understands it and its legal consequences.

(m) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement on the day and year first above
written.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

By:    /s/ Mark D. Fischer
Name:  Mark D. Fischer
Title:  Senior Vice President

  /s/  Allen Sirkin
Allen Sirkin
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EXHIBIT A

RELEASE

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME OR MAY CONCERN, KNOW THAT ALLEN SIRKIN
(the “Releasor”), on behalf of himself and his heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives, in consideration of the
amounts paid pursuant to Section [3(b)][3(f)] of the Employment Agreement between the Releasor and PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN
CORPORATION, dated as of June 14, 2007 (as the same may have been heretofore amended, the “Agreement”), hereby
irrevocably, unconditionally, generally and forever releases and discharges Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation and its current and
former affiliates (collectively, the “Company”), each of their respective current and former officers, directors, employees, agents,
representatives and advisors and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, receivers, affiliates,
beneficial owners, successo rs and assigns (collectively, the “Releasees”), from, and hereby waives and settles, any and all, actions,
causes of action, suits, debts, promises, damages, or any liability, claims or demands, known or unknown and of any nature
whatsoever and which the Releasor ever had, now has or hereafter can, shall or may have, for, upon, or by reason of any matter,
cause or thing whatsoever from the beginning of the world to the date of this Release arising directly or indirectly pursuant to or out
of his employment with the Company or the termination of such employment (collectively, “Claims”), including, without
limitation, any Claims (i) arising under any federal, state, local or other statutes, orders, laws, ordinances, regulations or the like
that relate to the employment relationship and/or specifically that prohibit discrimination based upon age, race, religion, gender,
national origin, disability, sexual orientation or any other unlawful bases, including, without limitation, the Age Discrim ination in
Employment Act of 1967, as amended, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, as
amended, the Civil Rights Acts of 1866 and 1871, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended, the New
Jersey Law Against Discrimination, as amended, the New York State and New York City Human Rights Laws, as amended, the
laws of the States of New York and New Jersey, the City of New York and Somerset County, New Jersey relating to discrimination,
as amended, and any and all applicable rules and regulations promulgated pursuant to or concerning any of the foregoing statutes;
(ii) arising under or pursuant to any contract, express or implied, written or oral, including, without limitation, the Agreement; (iii)
for wrongful dismissal or termination of employment; (iv) for tort, tortious or harassing conduct, infliction of mental or emotio nal
distress, fraud, libel or slander; and (v) for damages, including, without limitation, punitive or compensatory damages or for
attorneys’ fees, expenses, costs, wages, injunctive or equitable relief.  This Release shall not apply to any claim that the Releasor
may have for a breach of Section [3(b)] [3(f)], 5(e) or 7(h) of the Agreement, any plan or program referred to in Section 2(b) or 2(c)
of the Agreement or the Releasor’s agreement under the Company’s Capital Accumulation Program.

The Releasor agrees not to file, assert or commence any Claims against any Releasee with any federal, state or local court or
any administrative or regulatory agency or body.

The Releasor represents and warrants that there has been no assignment or other transfer of any interest in any Claim which
the Releasor may have against the Releasees, or any of them, and the
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Releasor agrees to indemnify and hold the Releasees, and each of them, harmless from any Claims, or other liability, demands,
damages, costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred by the Releasees, or any of them, as a result of any person asserting any such
assignment or transfer. It is the intention of the parties that this indemnity does not require payment as a condition precedent to
recovery by the Releasees against the Releasor under this indemnity.

The Releasor agrees that if he hereafter commences, joins in, or in any manner seeks relief through any suit arising out of,
based upon, or relating to any Claim released hereunder, or in any manner asserts against the Releasees, or any of them, any Claim
released hereunder, then the Releasor shall pay to the Releasees, and each of them, in addition to any other damages caused to the
Releasees thereby, all attorneys’ fees incurred by the Releasees in defending or otherwise responding to said suit or Claim.

The Releasor hereby waives any right to, and agrees not to, seek reinstatement of his employment with the Company or any
Releasee.  The Releasor acknowledges that the amounts to be paid to him under Section [3(b)][3(f)] of the Agreement do not
include any benefit, monetary or otherwise, which the Releasor has earned or accrued, or to which he is already entitled.

The Releasor acknowledges that he was advised by the Company to consult with his attorney concerning the waivers
contained in this Release, that he has consulted with counsel, and that the waivers the Releasor has made herein are knowing,
conscious and with full appreciation that he is forever foreclosed from pursuing any of the rights so waived.  The Releasor has a
period of 21 days from the date on which a copy of this Release has been delivered to him to consider whether to sign it.  In
addition, in the event that the Releasor elects to sign and return to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation a copy of this Release, the
Releasor has a period of seven days (the “Revocation Period”) following the date of such return to revoke this Release, which
revocation must be in writing and delivered to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, 200 Madison Avenue, New York, New York
10016, Attention: General Coun sel, within the Revocation Period.  This Release, and the Releasor’s right to receive the amounts to
be paid to him under Section [3(b)] [3(f)(ii)], shall not be effective or enforceable until the expiration of the Revocation Period
without the Releasor’s exercise of his right of revocation.

This Release shall not be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified in any way except in a writing signed by the
Releasor and Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.

This Release shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York,
without reference to its principles of conflicts of law.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Releasor has caused this Release to be executed as of ___________________, 20__.

Allen Sirkin

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED
BEFORE ME THIS ____ DAY OF
____________________, 20__.

Notary Public
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Exhibit 10.10

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of June 14, 2007, between
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (“PVH” and, together with its affiliates and subsidiaries, the
“Company”), and MICHAEL ZACCARO (the “Executive”).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Company has previously entered into an Employment Agreement with the Executive dated as of March 4,
2003 (the “Existing Agreement”), and, in connection with the Executive’s promotion to the Company’s operating committee,
desires to amend and restate the Existing Agreement so as to ensure that the Executive is retained on a full-time basis in accordance
with the terms set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company on the terms and conditions set forth herein, and agrees
that this Agreement shall amend and supercede the terms and conditions of the Existing Agreement effective as of the Effective
Date (as defined below).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto
hereby agree as follows:

1. Employment.

(a) Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective as of March 9, 2006, the date on which the Executive’s
promotion was made (the “Effective Date”).  

(b) Employment Period.  The Company agrees to continue to employ the Executive, and the Executive agrees to
continue to be employed by the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof.  The Executive shall be an employee
at will and this Agreement shall not constitute a guarantee of employment.  Each of the parties acknowledges and agrees that either
party may terminate the Executive’s employment at any time, for any reason, with or without Cause (as defined in Section 3(a)).
 The period commencing on the Effective Date and ending on the effective date of the termination of the Executive’s employment
is hereinafter referred to as the “Employment Period.”  

(c) Position and Duties.   (i)  During the Employment Period, (A) the Executive shall serve as the Vice
Chairman, Retail of the Company, with such duties and responsibilities as shall from time to time be assigned to him and as are
consistent and commensurate with his title and position, and (B) the Executive’s services shall be performed at the Company’s
headquarters in New York, New York as of the Effective Date or such other location as may be mutually agreed between the
Company and the Executive, except for travel,



and visits to Company offices and facilities worldwide, reasonably required to attend to the Company’s business.  

(ii) During the Employment Period, and excluding any periods of vacation and sick leave to which the
Executive is entitled, the Executive agrees to devote substantially all of his business attention and time (with business time
determined in accordance with the Company’s usual and customary standards for its senior executives) to the business and affairs
of the Company and, to the extent necessary to discharge the responsibilities assigned to the Executive hereunder, to use the
Executive’s reasonable best efforts to perform faithfully and conscientiously such responsibilities.  During the Employment Period,
the Executive shall be entitled to serve as a member of the board of directors of a reasonable number of other companies, to serve
on civic and charitable boards and to manage his personal and family investments, in each case, to the extent such activities do not
materi ally interfere, in the reasonable judgment of the Company’s Board of Directors (which, for purposes of this Agreement,
includes any committee thereof, unless the context requires otherwise (the “Board”)), with the performance of his duties for the
Company and are otherwise consistent with the Company’s governance policies.

2. Compensation.

(a) Base Salary.  During the Employment Period, the Company shall pay the Executive a salary at the annual
rate of $700,000, increasing to $750,000 effective June 1, 2007 (“Base Salary”), payable in accordance with the normal payroll
procedures of the Company in effect from time to time.  The Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed for increase at least
annually by the Board pursuant to its normal performance review policies for senior executives.  Base Salary shall not be reduced
after any increase, and the term Base Salary as utilized in this Agreement shall refer to the Executive’s annual base salary as then in
effect.  

(b) Incentive and Bonus Compensation.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in the Company’s existing
and future bonus and stock option plans and other incentive compensation programs for similarly situated executives (collectively,
“Plans”), to the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such Plan under the generally applicable provisions
thereof in effect from time to time.  Such eligibility is not a guarantee of participation in or of the receipt of any award, payment or
other compensation under any Plan.  To the extent the Executive does participate in a Plan and the Plan does not expressly provide
otherwise, the Chief Executive Officer and/or the Board, as appropriate, may determine all terms of participation (including,
without limitation, the type and size of any award, payment or other compensation and the timin g and conditions of receipt thereof
by the Executive) in the Chief Executive Officer’s or the Board’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to
prohibit the Company or the Board from amending or terminating any and all Plans in its sole and absolute discretion.  Except as
otherwise provided herein, the terms of each Plan shall govern the Executive’s rights and obligations thereunder during the
Executive’s employment and upon the termination thereof.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the definition of
“Cause” hereunder shall not supersede the definition of “cause” in any Plan (unless the Plan expressly defers to the definition of
“cause” under an executive’s employment agreement) and any rights of the Executive hereunder upon and subsequent to the
termination of the Executive’s
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employment shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any right of the Executive under any Plan then in effect upon or subsequent
to a termination of employment.

(c) Benefits.  The Executive shall be eligible to participate in all employee benefit and insurance plans
sponsored or maintained by the Company for similarly situated executives (including any savings, retirement, life, health and
disability plans), to the extent that the Executive is qualified to participate in any such plan under the generally applicable
provisions thereof in effect from time to time.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to prohibit the Company or the Board from
amending or terminating any such plan in its sole and absolute discretion.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the terms of each
such plan shall govern the Executive’s rights and obligations thereunder during the Executive’s employment and upon the
termination thereof.

(d) Expenses.  The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for reasonable expenses incurred or paid by
the Executive in the performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder in accordance with the generally applicable policies and
procedures of the Company, as in effect from time to time and subject to the terms and conditions thereof.  

3. Termination of Employment.  The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate, or shall be subject to
termination at any time, as described in this Section 3.  A termination of employment shall mean that the Executive has ceased to
provide any services as an employee of the Company.

(a) Termination for Cause by the Company.  The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment with the
Company at any time for Cause.  Upon such termination, the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder
except for the payment or provision, as applicable, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) other payments,
entitlements or benefits, if any, in accordance with terms of the applicable plans, programs, arrangements or other agreements of
the Company or any affiliate thereof (other than any severance plan or policy) as to which the Executive held rights to such
payments, entitlements or benefits, whether as a participant, beneficiary or otherwise on the date of termination (� 7;Other
Benefits”).  For the avoidance of doubt, the Executive shall have no right to receive any amounts under the Company’s severance
policy upon his termination for Cause.

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean:  (1) gross negligence or willful misconduct, as
the case may be, in the performance of the material responsibilities of the Executive’s office or position, which results in material
economic harm to the Company or its affiliates or in reputational harm causing demonstrable injury to the Company or its affiliates;
(2) the willful and continued failure of the Executive to perform substantially the Executive’s duties with the Company or any
affiliate (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness), after a written demand for
substantial performance is delivered to the Executive by the Board or the Company that specifically identifies the manner in which
the Board or the Company believes that the Executive has not substantially performed the Executive’s duties ; (3) the Executive is
convicted of, or pleads guilty or nolo contendere to, a
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felony within the meaning of U.S. Federal, state or local law (other than a traffic violation); (4) the Executive having willfully
divulged, furnished or made accessible to anyone other than the Company, its directors, officers, employees, auditors and legal
advisors, otherwise than in the ordinary course of business, any Confidential Information (as hereinafter defined); or (5) any act or
failure to act by the Executive, which, under the provisions of applicable law, disqualifies the Executive from acting in any or all
capacities in which he is then acting for the Company.  

(ii) For purposes of this provision, no act or failure to act, on the part of the Executive, shall be
considered “willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in bad faith or without reasonable belief that the
Executive’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company.  Any act, or failure to act, based upon authority given
pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or upon the instructions of the Board or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company or based upon the advice of counsel for the Company shall be conclusively presumed to be done, or omitted to be done,
by the Executive in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.  The Executive’s employment shall not be terminated for
“Cause” within the meaning of clause (1) or (2) above, unless the Executive has been given notice stating the basis for such
termination and he is given 20 days to cure the neglect or conduct that is the basis of any such determination.  The Board or the
Company shall determine whether the Executive has cured such neglect or conduct.

(b) Termination without Cause by the Company or for Good Reason by the Executive Prior to a Change in
Control.  The Company may also terminate the Executive’s employment with the Company at any time without Cause, and the
Executive may terminate his employment with the Company at any time for Good Reason (as defined in Section 3(f)(i)(B)).  

(i) If the Company terminates the Executive’s services without Cause or the Executive terminates his
employment with the Company for Good Reason, other than during the two-year period following a Change in Control (as defined
in Section 3(f)(i)(A)), the Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (W) the portion of the Base Salary for periods
prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (X) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to
Section 2(d), (Y) an aggregate amount (the “Severance Amount”) equal to one and a half (1.5) times the average annual Cash
Compensation (as hereinafter defined) paid to and/or accrued with respect to the Executive during the two completed fiscal years of
the Company immediately preceding the date of such termination, and (Z) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.  For
purposes of th is Agreement, “Cash Compensation” shall mean only annual base salary and annual cash bonus (if any) and, for the
avoidance of doubt, shall not include any payouts under any long-term incentive Plan.  The Severance Amount shall be paid in 36
substantially equal payments and on the same schedule that Base Salary was paid immediately prior to the Executive’s date of
termination, commencing on the first such scheduled payroll date that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the
Executive’s termination of employment, subject to the Executive’s compliance with the requirement to deliver the release
contemplated pursuant to Section 4(a).  Each such installment payment shall be treated as a separate payment as defined under
Treasury Regulation §1.409A-2(b)(2).  If the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined under the Company’s policy for
determining specified employees  on the date on which he separates from service, all payme nts of the Severance Amount (other
than payments that satisfy the short-term deferral rule,
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as defined in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4), or that are treated as separation pay under Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(b)
(9)(iii) or §1.409A-1(b)(9)(v)) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that
is six months following the Executive’s separation from service.  The first payment that can be made shall include the cumulative
amount of any amounts that could not be paid during such six-month period.  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill
rate (as in effect as of the first business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on all payments not
paid to the Executive prior to the first business day after the sixth month anniversary of his separation from service that otherwise
would have been paid during such six-month period had this delay provision not applied to the Executive and shall be paid with the
first payment after such six-month period.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, payments delayed pursuant to this six-month delay
requirement shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-month period.  For purposes
hereof, the Executive shall have a “separation from service” upon his death or other termination of employment for any reason.

(ii) In addition, if the Company terminates the Executive’s employment with the Company without Cause
or the Executive terminates his employment with the Company for Good Reason, then the Company shall also provide to the
Executive, during the 18-month period following the Executive’s date of termination, medical, dental, life and disability insurance
coverage for the Executive and the members of his family which is not less favorable to the Executive than the group medical,
dental, life and disability insurance coverage carried by the Company for the Executive and the members of his family immediately
prior to such termination of employment; provided, however, that the obligations set forth in this sentence shall terminate to the
extent the Executive obtains comparable medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other employer during such
peri od, but the Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during such period, whether or not any such
employment would provide comparable medical and dental insurance coverage; and provided further, however, that the Executive
shall be obligated to pay an amount equal to the active employee contribution, if any, for each such coverage.  For the avoidance of
doubt, the payment of the Severance Amount shall be in lieu of any amounts payable under the Company’s severance policy (as
then in effect) and the Executive hereby waives any and all rights thereunder.

(c) Termination by Voluntary Resignation (without Good Reason) by the Executive.  The Executive may
terminate his employment with the Company without Good Reason at any time by voluntary resignation.  Upon such termination,
the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder except for the payment of (i) the portion of the Base
Salary for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any),
subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive
shall provide no less than 90 days’ prior written notice of the effective date of his resignation (other than for Good Reason).  The
Company shall continue to pay the Executive his Base Salary during such 90-day period.  The Executive acknowledges and agrees
that the Company may elect to place the Executive on paid leave for all or any part of such 90-day period.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Company, in its sole and absolute discretion, may waive the requirement for prior notice of the Executive’s
resignation or decrease the notice period, in which event the Company shall have no continuing
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obligation to pay the Executive’s Base Salary or shall only have such obligation with respect to the shortened period, as the case
may be.

(d) Disability.  The Executive’s employment shall be terminable by the Company, subject to applicable law and
the Company’s short-term and long-term disability policies then in effect, if the Executive becomes physically or mentally disabled,
whether totally or partially, such that he is prevented from performing his usual duties and services hereunder for a period of 180
consecutive days as determined by a medical doctor selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the Executive or his
legal representative  (“Disability”).  If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company due to his Disability, the
Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder, except for the payment to the Executive or his legal guardian
or representative, as appropriate, of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to th e effective date of termination accrued
but unpaid (if any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other
Benefits.

(e) Death.  If the Executive shall die during the Employment Period, this Agreement shall terminate on the date
of the Executive’s death and the Company shall have no further obligation to the Executive hereunder except for the payment to the
Executive’s estate of (i) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of termination accrued but unpaid (if
any), (ii) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d) and (iii) the payment or provision of any Other Benefits.

(f) Termination by the Company without Cause or by the Executive For Good Reason Subsequent to a Change
in Control.

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(A) “Change in Control” shall be deemed to occur upon the first to occur of the following
events:

(1) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)), other than a “person” who as of the Effective Date was the owner of
at least 8% of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities of the Company entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors (the “Outstanding Company Voting Securities”), becomes (A) a “beneficial
owner,” as such term is used in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at least one-quarter but less than one-half of the
Outstanding Company Voting Securities, unless such acquisition has been approved within thirty (30) days
thereafter by at least a majority of the Incumbent Board (as defined in clause (2) below taking into account the
provisos), or (B) a “beneficial owner,” as such term is us ed in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, of at least one-half
of the Outstanding Company Voting Securities; provided, however, that, for purposes of this Section 3(f)(i)(A)(1),
the following acquisitions shall not constitute a Change in Control:  (I) any acquisition directly
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from the Company, other than an acquisition by virtue of the exercise of a conversion privilege unless the security
being so converted was itself acquired directly from the Company, (II) any acquisition by the Company, (III) any
acquisition by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any of its
affiliates, or (IV) any acquisition pursuant to a transaction which complies with clauses (A), (B) and (C) of Section
3(f)(i)(A)(3) below;

(2) Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”)
cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual becoming a
director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders,
was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall be
considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any
such individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as a result of an actual or threatened election contest (as
such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act) with respect to the
election or removal of directors or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a
person other than the Board;

(3) Consummation of a reorganization, merger, consolidation or a sale or other disposition
of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company (each, a “Business Combination”), in each case unless,
following such Business Combination, (A) all or substantially all of the individuals and entities that were the
beneficial owners of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company (the “Outstanding Company Common
Stock”) and the Outstanding Company Voting Securities, immediately prior to such  Business Combination,
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the then-outstanding shares of common stock and more
than 50% of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination (including,
without limitation, a corporation that, as a result of such transaction, owns the Company or all or substantially all of
the Company’s assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries) in substantially the same proportions as
their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of the Outstanding Company Common Stock and
the Outstanding Company Voting Securities, as the case may be, (B) no person (other than the Company, any
employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or such corporation resulting from such Business
Combination) beneficially owns directly or indirectly, 20% or more of, respectively, the outstanding shares of
common stock of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination or the outstanding voting securities of
such corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, except to the extent that such ownership
existed prior to the Business Combination, and (C) at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the
corporation resulting from such Business Combination were
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members of the Incumbent Board at the time of the execution of the initial agreement or of the action of the Board
providing for such Business Combination, whichever occurs first; or

(4) The approval by the stockholders of the Company of a complete liquidation or
dissolution of the Company.

(B) “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events or circumstances
without the Executive’s prior written consent:

(1) the assignment to the Executive of any duties inconsistent in any material respect with
the Executive’s position (including status, offices, titles and reporting requirements), authority, duties or
responsibilities as contemplated by Section 1(c) (or following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to
such Change in Control), or any other action by the Company that results in a material diminution in such position,
authority, duties or responsibilities, excluding for this purpose an isolated, insubstantial and inadvertent action not
taken in bad faith and that is remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of notice thereof given by the
Executive and the assignment of additional or alternate duties or responsibilities to the Executive in connection with
his professional development or the reallocation of some of the Executive’s duties or responsibilities to other
executives of the Company in connection with the evolution of the Executive’s position;

(2) a reduction of the Executive’s Base Salary;

(3) the taking of any action by the Company that substantially diminishes (A) the
aggregate value of the Executive’s total compensation opportunity, and/or (B) the aggregate value of the employee
benefits provided to the Executive pursuant to the Company’s employee benefit and insurance plans as in effect on
the Effective Date (or, following a Change in Control, as in effect immediately prior to such Change in Control);

(4) the Company requiring that the Executive’s services be rendered primarily at a
location or locations more than 35 miles from the location set forth in Section 1(c), except for travel, and visits to
Company offices and facilities worldwide, reasonably required to attend to the Company’s business; or

(5) the failure of the Company to require any successor to the Company (whether direct or
indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of
the Company to assume expressly and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent
that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.  
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(ii) If within two years after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Executive terminates his
employment with the Company for Good Reason or the Company terminates the Executive’s employment for any reason other than
death, Disability or Cause, the Company (or the then former Company subsidiary employing the Executive), or the consolidated,
surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation, merger or sale of assets, the
Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company (A) the portion of the Base Salary for periods prior to the effective date of
termination accrued but unpaid (if any), (B) all unreimbursed expenses (if any), subject to Section 2(d), (C) an aggregate amount
equal to two times the average annual Cash Compensation paid to and/or accrued with respect to the Executive during the two
completed fiscal years of th e Company immediately preceding the date of such termination, and (D) the payment or provision of
any Other Benefits.  The severance amount described in clause (C) of the immediately preceding sentence shall be paid in a lump
sum on the first scheduled payroll date (in accordance with the Company’s payroll schedule in effect for the Executive immediately
prior to such termination) that occurs on or following the date that is 30 days after the Executive’s termination of employment;
provided, however, that  the payment of such severance amount is subject to the Executive’s compliance with the requirement to
deliver the release contemplated pursuant to Section 4(a). If the Executive is a “specified employee,” as determined under the
Company’s policy for determining specified employees on the date on which he separates from service, the lump sum amount
described in clause (C) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six
months following the Executive’s separation from service (unless such amount shall satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined
in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the first
business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on such amount during the six-month period and
shall be paid at the same time at which the lump sum payment is made.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a payment delayed
pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-
month period. Upon the termination of employment with the Company for Good Reason by the Executive or upon the involuntary
termination of employment with the Company of the Executive for any reason other than death, Disability or Cause, in either case
within two years after the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Company (or the the n former Company subsidiary employing the
Executive), or the consolidated, surviving or transferee person in the event of a Change in Control pursuant to a consolidation,
merger or sale of assets, shall also provide, for the period of two consecutive years commencing on the date of such termination of
employment, medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage for the Executive and the members of his family which is not
less favorable to the Executive than the group medical, dental, life and disability insurance coverage carried by the Company for
the Executive and the members of his family either immediately prior to such termination of employment or immediately prior to
the occurrence of such Change in Control, whichever is greater; provided, however, that the obligations set forth in this sentence
shall terminate to the extent the Executive obtains comparable medical, dental, life or disability insurance coverage from any other
employer during such two-year period, but the Executive shall not have any obligation to seek or accept employment during such
two-year period, whether or not any such employment would provide comparable medical, dental, life and disability insurance
coverage.  For the avoidance of doubt, the amounts payable under clause (C) of this Section 3(f)(ii) as severance shall be in lieu
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of any amounts payable under the Company’s severance policy and the Executive hereby waives any and all rights thereunder.

(iii) Certain Additional Payments by the Company.

(A)  In the event it shall be determined that any payment or distribution by the Company or its
affiliated companies to or for the benefit of the Executive (whether paid or payable or distributed or distributable pursuant
to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise, but determined without regard to any additional payments required under this
Section 3(f)(iii)) (a “Payment”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code or any interest or
penalties are incurred by the Executive with respect to such excise tax (such excise tax, together with any such interest and
penalties, collectively the “Excise Tax”), then the Executive shall be entitled to receive an additional payment (the “Gross-
Up Payment”) in an amount such that, after payment by the Executive of all taxes (including any interest or penal ties
imposed with respect to such taxes), including, without limitation, any income taxes (and any interest and penalties
imposed with respect thereto) and Excise Tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment, the Executive retains an amount of the
Gross-Up Payment equal to the Excise Tax imposed upon the Payments.  

(B) Subject to the provisions of Section 3(f)(iii)(C), all determinations required to be made under
this Section 3(f)(iii), including whether and when a Gross-Up Payment is required, the amount of such Gross-Up Payment
and the assumptions to be utilized in arriving at such determination, shall be made by the Company’s auditors or such other
nationally recognized certified public accounting firm reasonably acceptable to the Executive as may be designated by the
Company (the “Accounting Firm”).  The Accounting Firm shall provide detailed supporting calculations both to the
Company and the Executive within 15 business days of the receipt of notice from the Executive that there has been a
Payment or such earlier time as is requested by the Company.  All fees and expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be borne
solely by the Company.  Any G ross-Up Payment, as determined pursuant to this Section 3(f)(iii), shall be paid by the
Company to the Executive in accordance with Section 3(f)(iii)(F).  Any determination by the Accounting Firm shall be
binding upon the Company and the Executive.  As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 4999 of the Code
at the time of the initial determination by the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is possible that Gross-Up Payments that will not
have been made by the Company should have been made (the “Underpayment”), consistent with the calculations required to
be made hereunder.  In the event the Company exhausts its remedies pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C) and the Executive
thereafter is required to make a payment of any Excise Tax, the Accounting Firm shall determine the amount of the
Underpayment that has occurred and any such Underpayment shall be paid by the Company to or for the benefit of the
Executive in accordance with Section 3(f)(iii)(F).

(C) The Executive shall notify the Company in writing of any claim by the Internal Revenue
Service that, if successful, would require the payment by the Company of the Gross-Up Payment.  Such notification shall be
given as soon as

10



practicable, but no later than ten business days after the Executive is informed in writing of such claim.  The Executive shall
apprise the Company of the nature of such claim and the date on which such claim is requested to be paid.  The Executive
shall not pay such claim prior to the expiration of the 30-day period following the date on which the Executive gives such
notice to the Company (or such shorter period ending on the date that any payment of taxes with respect to such claim is
due).  If the Company notifies the Executive in writing prior to the expiration of such period that the Company desires to
contest such claim, the Executive shall:

(1) give the Company any information reasonably requested by the Company relating to
such claim,

(2) take such action in connection with contesting such claim as the Company shall
reasonably request in writing from time to time, including, without limitation, accepting legal representation with
respect to such claim by an attorney reasonably selected by the Company,

(3) cooperate with the Company in good faith in order effectively to contest such claim,
and

(4) permit the Company to participate in any proceedings relating to such claim;

provided, however, that the Company shall bear and pay directly all costs and expenses (including additional interest and
penalties) incurred in connection with such contest, and shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax
basis, for any Excise Tax or income tax (including interest and penalties) imposed as a result of such representation and
payment of costs and expenses.  Without limitation on the foregoing provisions of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company shall
control all proceedings taken in connection with such contest, and, at its sole discretion, may pursue or forgo any and all
administrative appeals, proceedings, hearings and conferences with the applicable taxing authority in respect of such claim
and may, at its sole discretion, either pay the tax claimed to the appropriate taxing authority on behalf of the Executive and
direct th e Executive to sue for a refund or contest the claim in any permissible manner, and the Executive agrees to
prosecute such contest to a determination before any administrative tribunal, in a court of initial jurisdiction and in one or
more appellate courts, as the Company shall determine; provided, however, that, if the Company pays such claim and
directs the Executive to sue for a refund, the Company shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax
basis, from any Excise Tax or income tax (including interest or penalties) imposed with respect to such payment or with
respect to any imputed income in connection with such payment; and, provided further, however, that any extension of the
statute of limitations relating to payment of taxes for the taxable year of the Executive with respect to which such contested
amount is claimed to be due is limited solely to such contested amount.  Furthermore, the Company’s control of the contest
shall be limited to issu es with respect to which the Gross-Up Payment would be payable hereunder, and the Executive shall
be entitled to settle or contest, as the case may
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be, any other issue raised by the Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.

(D) If, after the receipt by the Executive of a Gross-Up Payment or payment by the Company of
an amount on the Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), the Executive becomes entitled to receive any refund
with respect to the Excise Tax to which such Gross-Up Payment relates or with respect to such claim, the Executive shall
(subject to the Company’s complying with the requirements of Section 3(f)(iii)(C), if applicable) promptly pay to the
Company the amount of such refund (together with any interest paid or credited thereon after taxes applicable thereto).  If,
after payment by the Company of an amount on the Executive’s behalf pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(C), a determination is
made that the Executive shall not be entitled to any refund with respect to such claim and the Company does not notify the
Executive in writing of i ts intent to contest such denial of refund prior to the expiration of 30 days after such determination,
then the amount of such payment shall offset, to the extent thereof, the amount of Gross-Up Payment required to be paid.

(E) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 3(f)(iii), the Company may, in its sole
discretion, withhold and pay to the Internal Revenue Service or any other applicable taxing authority, for the benefit of the
Executive, all or any portion of any Gross-Up Payment, and the Executive hereby consents to such withholding.

(F) Any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company of expenses incurred by the
Executive in connection with a tax audit or litigation relating to the Excise Tax, as provided for in this Section 3(f)(iii), shall
be paid no later than the last day of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the Executive remitted the Excise
Tax or, if no Excise Tax is paid, the end of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the audit is completed or
there is a final and nonappealable settlement or other resolution of the litigation.  Furthermore, if the Executive is a
“specified employee,” as determined under the Company’s policy for determining specified employees, on the date on
which he separates from service, any Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement by the Company as required by this Section 3(f)
(iii) shall not be paid or commence to be paid on any date prior to the first business day after the date that is six months
following the Executive’s separation from service (unless such amount shall satisfy the short-term deferral rule, as defined
in Treasury Regulation §1.409A-1(a)(4)).  In addition, interest will accrue at the 10-year T-bill rate (as in effect as of the
first business day of the calendar year in which the separation from service occurs) on such amount during the six-month
period and shall be paid at the same time at which such Gross-Up Payment or reimbursement is made.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, a payment delayed pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall commence earlier in the event of the
Executive’s death prior to the end of the six-month period.

(g) Notice of Termination.  Any termination by the Company or by the Executive, other than a termination by
reason of the Executive’s death, shall be communicated by a Notice of Termination to the other party hereto given in accordance
with Section 7(c).  “Notice of Termination” means a written notice that (i) indicates the specific termination provision in this
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Agreement relied upon, (ii) to the extent applicable, sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a
basis for termination of the Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated, and (iii) if the date of termination is other
than the date of receipt of such notice, specifies the date of termination.  

(h) Date of Termination.  For purposes of this Agreement the Executive’s date of termination of employment
shall be (i) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company with or without Cause, by the Executive for Good Reason,
or due to the Executive’s Disability, the date of termination shall be the date on which the other party receives the Notice of
Termination, unless a later date is mutually agreed, (ii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Executive other than for
Good Reason, the 90th day following the Company’s receipt of the Notice of Termination, unless the Company waives or reduces
such period as provided in Section 3(c), and (iii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by reason of death, the date of
termination shall be the date of death.

(i) Resignation.  Upon termination of the Executive’s employment for any reason, the Executive agrees to
resign, effective as of the date of termination, from any positions that the Executive holds with the Company and its affiliates, the
Board (and any committees thereof), unless the Board requests otherwise and the Executive agrees, and the board of directors (and
any committees thereof) of any of the Company’s subsidiaries and affiliates.

4. Effect of Termination.  (a)  Full Settlement.  The amounts paid to the Executive pursuant to Section 3(b) or 3(f)(ii),
as applicable, following termination of his employment shall be in full and complete satisfaction of the Executive’s rights under
this Agreement and any other claims he may have with respect to his employment by the Company and the termination thereof,
other than as expressly provided in Section 2(b).  Such amounts shall constitute liquidated damages with respect to any and all such
rights and claims.  In consideration of the Executive’s receipt thereof, the Executive shall execute a release in favor of the
Company, substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.  Pursuant to said release, the Company shall be released and discharged
from any and all liability to the Executive in connection with this Agreeme nt and otherwise in connection with the Executive’s
employment with the Company and the termination thereof, including, without limitation, any claims arising under federal, state or
local labor, employment and employment discrimination laws, but excluding claims with respect to this Agreement and any Plan. 
 The payments and provision of benefits to the Executive required by Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii), other than amounts that are
required to be paid to the Executive under applicable law, shall be conditioned upon the Executive’s delivery (and non-revocation
prior to the expiration of the revocation period contained in the release) of such release in favor of the Company, provided that such
conditions are met on or before the date that is 30 days after the date of the Executive’s termination of employment.  If such
conditions are not met by such date, the Executive shall forfeit such payments and benefits.  Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein shall be const rued to release the Company from its obligations to indemnify the Executive (as set forth in Section
7(h)).

(b) No Duplication; No Mitigation; Limited Offset.  In no event shall the Executive be entitled to duplicate
payments or benefits under different provisions of this Agreement or pursuant to the terms of any other plan, program or
arrangement of the Company
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or its affiliates.  In the event of any termination of the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall be under no obligation to seek
other employment, and, there shall be no offset against amounts due the Executive under this Agreement or pursuant to any plan of
the Company or any of its affiliates on account of any remuneration attributable to any subsequent employment or any claim
asserted by the Company or any of its affiliates, except with respect to the continuation of benefits under Sections 3(b) and 3(f)(ii),
which shall terminate immediately upon obtaining comparable coverage from another employer.  

5. Restrictive Covenants.

(a) Confidentiality.  The Executive recognizes that any knowledge and information of any type whatsoever of a
confidential nature relating to the business of the Company, including, without limitation, all types of trade secrets, vendor and
customer lists and information, employee lists and information, information regarding product development, marketing plans,
management organization information, operating policies and manuals, sourcing data, performance results, business plans, financial
records, and other financial, commercial, business and technical information (collectively, “Confidential Information”), must be
protected as confidential, not copied, disclosed or used, other than for the benefit of the Company, at any time.  The Executive
further agrees that at any time during the Employment Period or thereafter he will not divulge to anyone (other than t he Company
or any person employed or designated by the Company), publish or make use of any Confidential Information without the prior
written consent of the Company, except as (and only to the extent) (i) required by an order of a court having competent jurisdiction
or under subpoena from an appropriate government agency and then only after providing the Company with the reasonable
opportunity to prevent such disclosure or to receive confidential treatment for the Confidential Information required to be
disclosed, (ii) with respect to any other litigation, arbitration or mediation involving this Agreement, including, but not limited to
the enforcement of this Agreement or (iii) as to Confidential Information that becomes generally known to the public or within the
relevant trade or industry other than due to the Executive’s violation of this Section 5(a).  The Executive further agrees that
following the termination of the Employment Period for whatever reason, (A) the Company shall keep all tangib le property
assigned to the Executive or prepared by the Executive and (B) the Executive shall not misappropriate or infringe upon the
Confidential Information of the Company (including the recreation or reconstruction of Confidential Information from memory).

(b) Non-Interference.  The Executive acknowledges that information regarding the Company’s business and
financial relations with its vendors and customers is Confidential Information and proprietary to the Company and that any
interference with such relations based directly or indirectly on the use of such information would cause irreparable damage to the
Company.  The Executive acknowledges that by virtue of his employment with the Company, he has gained or may gain knowledge
of such information concerning the Company’s vendors and customers (respectively “Vendor Information” or “Customer
Information”), and that he would inevitably have to draw on this Vendor Information and Customer Information and on other
Confidential Information if he were to solicit or service the Company’s vendors or customers on behalf of a competing business e
nterprise.  Accordingly, and subject to the immediately following sentence, the Executive agrees that during the Employment
Period and for
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a period of 18 months following the termination thereof, other than by reason of a termination by the Company without Cause or by
the Executive for Good Reason, the Executive will not, on behalf of himself or any other person, other than the Company, directly
or indirectly do business with, solicit the business of, or perform any services for any actual vendor or customer of the Company,
any person that has been a vendor or customer of the Company within the 12-month period preceding such termination or any
actively solicited prospective vendor or customer as to whom or which the Executive provided any services or as to whom or which
the Executive has knowledge of Vendor Information, Customer Information or Confidential Information. The foregoing restrictive
covenant shall only apply to business activities engaged in by the Executive on behalf of himself or any other person t hat are
directly competitive with those of the operating divisions of the Company in which the Executive has worked or over which he has
or has had supervisory responsibility, in terms of channels of distribution, types of products, gender for which the products have
been designed and similarity of price range.  In addition, the Executive agrees that, during the Employment Period and such 18-
month period thereafter, he will not, directly or indirectly, seek to encourage or induce any such vendor or customer to cease doing
business with, or lessen its business with, the Company, or otherwise interfere with or damage (or attempt to interfere with or
damage) any of the Company’s relationships with its vendors and customers, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s
business.

(c) Non-Competition.  The Executive agrees that, during the Employment Period and for a period of 12 months
following his termination of employment, other than upon a termination by the Company without Cause or by the Executive for
Good Reason, the Executive shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly, on the Executive’s
behalf or on behalf of any other person, firm, corporation, association or other entity, as an employee, director, advisor, partner,
consultant or otherwise, engage in any business of, provide services to, enter the employ of, or have any interest in, any other
person, firm, corporation or other entity that is engaged in a business that is in competition with the primary businesses or products
of the Company as of the Executive’s date of termination (following a Change in Control, such businesses or products shall be
limited to those in which the Executive has worked or over which he has or has had supervisory responsibility, in terms of channels
of distribution, types of products, gender for which the products have been designed and similarity of price range, as of his date of
termination).  Nothing herein shall restrict the Executive from owning, for personal investment purposes only, less than 5% of the
voting stock of any publicly held corporation or 2% of the ownership interest in any non-publicly held company, if the Executive
has no other connection or relationship with the issuer of such securities.     

(d) Non-Solicitation.  The Executive agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of 18 months
following the termination thereof for any reason, he will not hire or solicit to hire, whether on his own behalf or on behalf of any
other person (other than the Company), any employee of the Company or any individual who had left the employ of the Company
within 12 months of the termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.  In addition, during the Employment Period
and such 18-month period thereafter, the Executive will not, directly or indirectly, encourage or induce any employee of the
Company to leave the Company’s employ, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.
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(e) Public Comment.  The Executive, during the Employment Period and at all times thereafter, shall not make
any derogatory comment concerning the Company or any of its current or former directors, officers, stockholders or employees.
 Similarly, the then current (i) members of the Board and (ii) members of the Company’s senior management shall not make any
derogatory comment concerning the Executive, and the Company shall use reasonable efforts to ensure that the former (A)
members of the Board and (B) members of the Company’s senior management do not make any derogatory comment concerning
the Executive.      

(f) Blue Penciling.  If any of the restrictions on competitive or other activities contained in this Section 5 shall
for any reason be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessively broad as to duration, geographical scope, activity or
subject, such restrictions shall be construed so as thereafter to be limited or reduced to be enforceable to the extent compatible with
the applicable law; it being understood that by the execution of this Agreement, (i) the parties hereto regard such restrictions as
reasonable and compatible with their respective rights and (ii) the Executive acknowledges and agrees that the restrictions will not
prevent him from obtaining gainful employment subsequent to the termination of his employment.  The existence of any claim or
cause of action by the Executive against the Company shall not constitute a defense to the enforcemen t by the Company of the
foregoing restrictive covenants, but such claim or cause of action shall be determined separately.

(g) Injunctive Relief.  The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the covenants and obligations of the
Executive set forth in this Section 5 relate to special, unique and extraordinary services rendered by the Executive to the Company
and that a violation of any of the terms of such covenants and obligations will cause the Company irreparable injury for which
adequate remedies are not available at law.  Therefore, the Executive agrees that the Company shall be entitled to seek an
injunction, restraining order or other temporary or permanent equitable relief (without the requirement to post bond) restraining the
Executive from committing any violation of the covenants and obligations contained herein.  These injunctive remedies are
cumulative and are in addition to any other rights and remedies the Company may have at law or in equity.

6. Work for Hire.  The Executive agrees that all marketing, operating and training ideas, sourcing data, processes and
materials, including all inventions, discoveries, improvements, enhancements, written materials and development related to the
business of the Company (“Proprietary Materials”) to which the Executive may have access or that the Executive may develop or
conceive while employed by the Company shall be considered works made for hire for the Company and prepared within the scope
of employment and shall belong exclusively to the Company.  Any Proprietary Materials developed by the Executive that, under
applicable law, may not be considered works made for hire, are hereby assigned to the Company without the need for any further
consideration, and the Executive agrees to take such further action, including executing such instruments and documents as the
Company may reasonably request, to evidence such assignment.
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7. Miscellaneous.

(a) Assignment and Successors.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective heirs, legatees, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  Notwithstanding
anything in the foregoing to the contrary, the Executive may not assign any of his rights or obligations under this Agreement
without first obtaining the written consent of the Company.  The Company may assign this Agreement in connection with a sale of
all or substantially all of its business and/or assets (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) and
will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of
the business and/or assets of the Company to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manne r and to the same
extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.  “Company” means the Company
as hereinbefore defined and any successor to its business and/or assets as aforesaid that assumes and agrees to perform this
Agreement by operation of law or otherwise.

(b) Survival.  The provisions of Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement
pursuant to Section 3.

(c) Notices.  Any notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered
or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid as follows:

If to the Executive, addressed to the Executive at the address then shown in the Executive’s employment
records

If to the Company at:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
New York, New York  10016 
Attention:  Chairman

With a copy to:

Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
200 Madison Avenue
New York, New York  10016
Attention:  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Any party may change the address to which notices are to be sent by giving notice of such change of address to the other party in
the manner provided above for giving notice.

(d) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the
laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles thereof relating to the conflict of laws.
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(e) Consent to Jurisdiction.  Any judicial proceeding brought against the Executive with respect to this
Agreement may be brought in any court of competent jurisdiction in the Borough of Manhattan in the City and State of New York
and, by execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Executive: (i) accepts, generally and unconditionally, the nonexclusive
jurisdiction of such courts and any related appellate courts, and irrevocably agrees to be bound by any final judgment (after
exhausting all appeals therefrom or after all time periods for such appeals have expired) rendered thereby in connection with this
Agreement, and (ii) irrevocably waives any objection the Executive may now or hereafter have as to the venue of any such suit,
action or proceeding brought in such a court or that such court is an inconvenient forum.

(f) Severability.  The invalidity of any one or more provisions of this Agreement or any part thereof shall not
affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement or part thereof; and in the event that one or more provisions contained
herein shall be held to be invalid, the Agreement shall be reformed to make such provisions enforceable.

(g) Waiver.  The Company, in its sole discretion, may waive any of the requirements imposed on the Executive
by this Agreement.  The Company, however, reserves the right to deny any similar waiver in the future.  Each such waiver must be
express and in writing and there will be no waiver by conduct.  Pursuit by the Company of any available remedy, either in law or
equity, or any action of any kind, does not constitute waiver of any other remedy or action.  Such remedies and actions are
cumulative and not exclusive. The Executive’s or the Company’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this
Agreement or the failure to assert any right the Executive or the Company may have hereunder, including, without limitation, the
right of the Executive to terminate employment for Good Reason or the Company’s right to terminate th e Executive’s employment
for Cause, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such provision or right or any other provision or right of this Agreement.

(h) Indemnification.  The Executive shall be entitled to indemnification (and the advancement of expenses) in
connection with a litigation or proceeding arising out of the Executive’s acting as Vice Chairman, Retail or an employee, officer or
director of the Company (or, to the extent such service is requested by the Company, any of its affiliates), to the maximum extent
permitted by applicable law; provided, however, that in the event that it is finally determined that the Executive is not entitled to
indemnification, the Executive shall promptly return any advanced amounts to the Company.  In addition, the Executive shall be
entitled to liability insurance coverage pursuant to a Company-purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy on the
same basis as other officers of the Company.  

(i) Section Headings.  The section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and
shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

(j) Withholding.  Any payments provided for herein shall be reduced by any amounts required to be withheld by
the Company from time to time under applicable Federal, State or local employment or income tax laws or similar statutes or other
provisions of law then in effect.  
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(k) Section 409A of the Code.  The provisions of this Agreement and any payments made herein are intended to
comply with, and should be interpreted consistent with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related regulations
or other effective guidance promulgated thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”). The time or schedule of a payment to which the
Executive is entitled under this Agreement may be accelerated at any time that this Agreement fails to meet the requirements of
Section 409A and any such payment will be limited to the amount required to be included in the Executive’s income as a result of
the failure to comply with Section 409A.

(l) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding, and cancels and supersedes all prior
agreements, including, without limitation, the Existing Agreement, and any agreement in principle or oral statement, letter of intent,
statement of understanding or guidelines of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, excluding the Plans or the
plans referred to in Section 2(c), the terms and conditions of which shall not be affected hereby.  This Agreement may be amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified only by a written document executed by each of the parties hereto or their respective
successors or assigns.  The Executive acknowledges that he is entering into this Agreement of his own free will and accord with no
duress, and that he has read this Agreement and understands it and its legal consequences.

(m) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement on the day and year first above
written.

PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION

By:    /s/  Mark D. Fischer
Name:  Mark D. Fischer
Title:  Senior Vice President

  /s/  Michael Zaccaro
Michael Zaccaro
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EXHIBIT A

RELEASE

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME OR MAY CONCERN, KNOW THAT MICHAEL
ZACCARO (the “Releasor”), on behalf of himself and his heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives, in
consideration of the amounts paid pursuant to Section [3(b)][3(f)] of the Employment Agreement between the Releasor and
PHILLIPS-VAN HEUSEN CORPORATION, dated as of June 14, 2007 (as the same may have been heretofore amended, the
“Agreement”), hereby irrevocably, unconditionally, generally and forever releases and discharges Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
and its current and former affiliates (collectively, the “Company”), each of their respective current and former officers, directors,
employees, agents, representatives and advisors and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives,
receivers, affiliates, beneficial owners, succe ssors and assigns (collectively, the “Releasees”), from, and hereby waives and settles,
any and all, actions, causes of action, suits, debts, promises, damages, or any liability, claims or demands, known or unknown and
of any nature whatsoever and which the Releasor ever had, now has or hereafter can, shall or may have, for, upon, or by reason of
any matter, cause or thing whatsoever from the beginning of the world to the date of this Release arising directly or indirectly
pursuant to or out of his employment with the Company or the termination of such employment (collectively, “Claims”), including,
without limitation, any Claims (i) arising under any federal, state, local or other statutes, orders, laws, ordinances, regulations or the
like that relate to the employment relationship and/or specifically that prohibit discrimination based upon age, race, religion,
gender, national origin, disability, sexual orientation or any other unlawful bases, including, without limitation, the Age Disc
rimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Civil Rights Act of
1991, as amended, the Civil Rights Acts of 1866 and 1871, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended,
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended, the
New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, as amended, the New York State and New York City Human Rights Laws, as amended,
the laws of the States of New York and New Jersey, the City of New York and Somerset County, New Jersey relating to
discrimination, as amended, and any and all applicable rules and regulations promulgated pursuant to or concerning any of the
foregoing statutes; (ii) arising under or pursuant to any contract, express or implied, written or oral, including, without limitation,
the Agreement; (iii) for wrongful dismissal or termination of employment; (iv) for tort, tortious or harassing conduct, infliction of
mental or emo tional distress, fraud, libel or slander; and (v) for damages, including, without limitation, punitive or compensatory
damages or for attorneys’ fees, expenses, costs, wages, injunctive or equitable relief.  This Release shall not apply to any claim that
the Releasor may have for a breach of Section [3(b)] [3(f)], 5(e) or 7(h) of the Agreement or any plan or program referred to in
Section 2(b) or 2(c) of the Agreement.

The Releasor agrees not to file, assert or commence any Claims against any Releasee with any federal, state or local court or
any administrative or regulatory agency or body.

The Releasor represents and warrants that there has been no assignment or other transfer of any interest in any Claim which
the Releasor may have against the Releasees, or any of them, and the Releasor agrees to indemnify and hold the Releasees, and
each of them, harmless from any Claims, or
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other liability, demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred by the Releasees, or any of them, as a result of any
person asserting any such assignment or transfer. It is the intention of the parties that this indemnity does not require payment as a
condition precedent to recovery by the Releasees against the Releasor under this indemnity.

The Releasor agrees that if he hereafter commences, joins in, or in any manner seeks relief through any suit arising out of,
based upon, or relating to any Claim released hereunder, or in any manner asserts against the Releasees, or any of them, any Claim
released hereunder, then the Releasor shall pay to the Releasees, and each of them, in addition to any other damages caused to the
Releasees thereby, all attorneys’ fees incurred by the Releasees in defending or otherwise responding to said suit or Claim.

The Releasor hereby waives any right to, and agrees not to, seek reinstatement of his employment with the Company or any
Releasee.  The Releasor acknowledges that the amounts to be paid to him under Section [3(b)][3(f)] of the Agreement do not
include any benefit, monetary or otherwise, which the Releasor has earned or accrued, or to which he is already entitled.

The Releasor acknowledges that he was advised by the Company to consult with his attorney concerning the waivers
contained in this Release, that he has consulted with counsel, and that the waivers the Releasor has made herein are knowing,
conscious and with full appreciation that he is forever foreclosed from pursuing any of the rights so waived.  The Releasor has a
period of 21 days from the date on which a copy of this Release has been delivered to him to consider whether to sign it.  In
addition, in the event that the Releasor elects to sign and return to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation a copy of this Release, the
Releasor has a period of seven days (the “Revocation Period”) following the date of such return to revoke this Release, which
revocation must be in writing and delivered to Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, 200 Madison Avenue, New York, New York
10016, Attention: General Coun sel, within the Revocation Period.  This Release, and the Releasor’s right to receive the amounts to
be paid to him under Section [3(b)] [3(f)(ii)], shall not be effective or enforceable until the expiration of the Revocation Period
without the Releasor’s exercise of his right of revocation.

This Release shall not be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified in any way except in a writing signed by the
Releasor and Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.

This Release shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York,
without reference to its principles of conflicts of law.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Releasor has caused this Release to be executed as of ___________________, 20__.

Michael Zaccaro

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED
BEFORE ME THIS ____ DAY OF
____________________, 20__.

Notary Public

A-3



EXHIBIT 15

Acknowledgement of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in

(i) Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 2-73803), which relates to the Phillips-
Van Heusen Corporation Employee Savings and Retirement Plan,

(ii) Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 33-50841) and Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 33-59602), each of
which relate to the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation Associates Investment Plan for Residents of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico,

(iii) Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 333-29765) which relates to the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 1997 Stock
Option Plan,

(iv) Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 333-41068) which relates to the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2000 Stock
Option Plan,

(v) Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 333-109000), which relates to the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation 2003
Stock Option Plan, and

(vi) Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 333-125694) which relates to the Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
Associates Investment Plan for Salaried Associates, Associates Investment Plan for Hourly Associates and
Associates Investment Plan for Residents of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

of our report dated June 14, 2007 with respect to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Phillips-Van Heusen
Corporation that are included in its Form 10-Q for the thirteen week period ended May 6, 2007.

Pursuant to Rule 436(c) of the Securities Act of 1933, our report is not a part of the registration statements or post-effective
amendments prepared or certified within the meaning of Section 7 or 11 of the Securities Act of 1933.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
June 14, 2007



EXHIBIT 31.1

I, Emanuel Chirico, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this Quarterly Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Quarterly Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Quarterly Report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this Quarterly Report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this Quarterly
Report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this Report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
Report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this Report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated:  June 12, 2007

 /s/ Emanuel Chirico

Emanuel Chirico
Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

I, Michael Shaffer, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this Quarterly Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Quarterly Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Quarterly Report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this Quarterly Report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this Quarterly
Report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this Report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
Report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this Report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated:  June 12, 2007

 /s/ Michael Shaffer

Michael Shaffer
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation (the “Company”) for the
quarterly period ended May 6, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I,
Emanuel Chirico, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(i) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated:  June 12, 2007

By:  /s/ Emanuel Chirico  

Name:  Emanuel Chirico
Chief Executive Officer

 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation (the “Company”) for the
quarterly period ended May 6, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I,
Michael Shaffer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(i) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated:  June 12, 2007

By:  /s/ Michael Shaffer  

Name:  Michael Shaffer
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


